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CORPORATE PROFILE
aTof3:0 )

China SCE Group Holdings Limited (“China SCE” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the”Group”), was
established in 1996 and with its shares listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) in February 2010 (Stock Code: 1966.HK). The Group’s
major businesses include property development, commercial
management, property management and long-term rental apartments
business. The Company is headquartered in Shanghai for its business
operations, while implementing regional focused development
strategy in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim
Economic Zone, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area, the West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone and the Central Western
Region.

The Group's property projects are distributed in 62 cities, including
Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Tianjin, Chongging, Chengdu, Suzhou,
Hangzhou, Nanjing, Zhengzhou, Qingdao, Jinan, Xiamen, Nanchang
and Kunming, etc. Its products cover a wide range of properties
including high-rise residential buildings, offices, shopping malls and
long-term rental apartments. The Company upholds “We Build to
MR RRED) as its key value proposition, “Creating Smart
REB4EE  BERBFAN) as
its mission. The Company was awarded the “2020 Best 40 China Real

Inspire” (%
Living to Help Seize Happiness” (&l

Estate Listed Companies with Strongest Comprehensive Strengths”,
2020 Best 50 of China Real Estate Developers” (2020 Bl 5 ith Z=
£{>2£5058) and “Fortune China 500" in 2020.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates owned a land bank with an aggregate planned gross
floor area (“GFA") of approximately 37.68 million square metres
("sq.m.”), which is believed to suffice the development by the Group
in the next two to three years. In the future, China SCE will continue
(—EMmE)

and secure the regional leading position by implementing more

to deepen the strategic plan of “One Body Two Wings”

proactive and prudent development strategies. In addition, the
Company will strive to become a more competitive property developer
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yuanlai

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Dai Yiyi (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DEER

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Youquan (Chairman)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

Chiu & Partners

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

SCE Tower

No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road
Honggiao Business District, Shanghai
China
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 2801, Hysan Place
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BEER

BB IR EE 2558 500 5%
#H1BEES 2801 =

Eﬂxﬁ%

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@sce-re.com
Fax: (852) 2342 6643

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1966.HK

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWW.sce-re.com

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
HEEEERARLR I —T_TFEFR

KREERE

B : ir@sce-re.com
fEH : (852) 2342 6643

A& KSR
BERBAERHMERAT + 1966.HK
NG Efr

WWW.sCe-re.com



SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

4

MR E

BERRE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2020 2019 Change
i —E-AF s
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
AR®T T AREETF T
Revenue W zs 32,572,605 21,369,802 52.4
Gross profit EH 7,863,817 5,891,871 335
Profit for the year F RS 4,445,626 4,023,466 10.5
Profit attributable to owners R E R ARG ST
of the parent 3,803,238 3,510,045 8.4
Core profit attributable to owners AR #EA AFENE
of the parent’ g ) 3,354,057 2,650,332 26.6
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic — EHAK RMB90.6 cents RMB84.9 cents
ARM90.67 AR%K849%5 6.7
— Diluted — % RMB89.1 cents RMB83.4 cents
AR¥89.15 AR#%834%H 6.8
Dividend per share SO HK29 cents HK24 cents
B 29 7 245> 20.8
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL B FEAR O R 2
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 Change
e —TNF
+=A=+-A +=A=+—8 28
RMB’'000 RMB’000 (%)
AR%T R AREFT
Total assets BEMRRE 170,614,421 149,382,054 14.2
Cash and bank balances V& RIBTEFERES 23,399,742 23,898,660 (2.1)
Total debts B 1BER (46,562,876) (42,077,082) 10.7
Total liabilities BERE (131,461,807)  (119,095,867) 10.4
Total equity R AAEE 39,152,614 30,286,187 29.3

' HRMBRRAIRAEERRARERENEAA(EE
HEHE  RAIELELERBENEE  FEhE
BOTETAARBERERFEXH - BARER
ERHZHF ABENEREENAREZEI
BREEFE  HERAAEFELEZHFA
BENSREERS  HEMBAR . —Ha%
AE R E AR RIS SR IRFE - RIEEEEE
IR ~ REFE A RMIRE RRE R RE —E
BeNEREBRERARER AREER

! It represents profit attributable to owners of the parent excluding the post-
tax net changes in fair value of investment properties of subsidiaries and joint
ventures, premium paid on early redemption of senior notes, fair value gain
and interest expenses of derivative financial instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges, net fair value gain or loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net gain or loss on disposal of subsidiaries, a joint
venture and associates, equity-settled share option expenses, impairment of
investment in associates and loss on forfeiture of a deposit.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results of
the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

“ HEPRE
| AARARIEEAEEBE S -TF

T_A=T—HIFENZEE -

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS HEENEE

The year of 2020 was an atypical year with the sudden outbreak of Z—ZEZFFEPFAN—F @ FHEMAEIFSE
the Covid-19 pandemic, the massive downward pressure on the SA%REE - 2K EmMERE KA TTE S Bib
global economy and the devastating impact on the real estate ETEDHIEBANEE  FTEIESEHENIR
industry. Despite being under a complex environment, China SCE 35K - REEKAUE N2 L ER T¥mitRE
managed to achieve growth with great efforts against the market A REELZERW TEARR @ @565 FEIER
with its contracted sales amount exceeding RMB100 billion, & [ TIEEM(ELEEL] -

symbolising China SCE is officially stepping into the “100 Billion Real

Estate Club”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately RMB32.573 billion, representing an increase of
approximately 52.4% over last year. Profit attributable to owners of
the parent amounted to approximately RMB3.803 billion, representing
a growth of approximately 8.4% as compared with last year. Basic
earnings per share was approximately RMB90.6 cents, representing
an increase of approximately 6.7% over last year.

In appreciation of the tremendous support of our shareholders, the
Board resolved to declare the payment of a final dividend of HK18
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
shareholders, totalling approximately HK$760 million, subject to the
approval by shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Together with the paid interim
dividend of HK11 cents per ordinary share for the year 2020, the full-
year dividend payout ratio amounted to 30.8% of the core profit
attributable to owners of the parent.

CONTRACTED SALES

In the current context of the normalisation of real estate control and
the national policy emphasising on “No Speculation of Residential
Properties”, the Group focuses on ensuring the permanence of its
operation, and is determined to meet head-on with the most difficult
problems related to project management and marketing, and by
optimising human resources allocation and reforming the incentive
mechanism, establish our business capability on each project to
achieve growth with quality and scale. In 2020, the contracted sales
amounts of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
reached another record-high. The contracted sales amount was
approximately RMB101.537 billion and the contracted sales area was
approximately 7.37 million sq.m. for the year, representing an
increase of approximately 26.1% and 16.5% as compared with that
of last year, respectively.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHE

The real estate market fluctuated substantially in 2020 due to the
impact of Covid-19 and the control policy. As a measure to reduce
the impact on sales, the Group has adopted a flexible and versatile
marketing strategy to counter the uncertainty of the real estate
market. With respect to the sales of complex projects, the Group has
adopted a large scale launch model, and will consider distribution
through intermediates and leverage on the surrounding facilities of
the projects. Our first priority is promoting the sales and collection of
cash, and strengthening the development of the sectional promotion
system, refining the design of promotional strategies on its specificity
and time of implementation, as well as the effectiveness of the
implementation. During the year, the Group together with its joint
ventures and associates had an aggregate of over 150 projects for
sales in 54 cities, among which 37 projects were newly launched
during the year. The top six cities with the highest contracted sales
amount were Beijing, Chongging, Nanjing, Xiamen, Kunming and
Quanzhou. The contracted sales amounts of these six cities accounted
for approximately 45.6% of the contracted sales amounts of the
Group together with its joint ventures and associates.

LAND BANK STRATEGY

As the pandemic slowly got under control in the second quarter of
2020, the land market started to turn active and real estate
enterprises became more interested in acquiring land. The regulatory
authorities promulgated the “Three Red Lines” in the third quarter to
control the scale of borrowings by real estate enterprises by tightening
financing channels, and to prevent aggressive expansion of real estate
enterprises. The Group believes that these measures will ensure the
steady and healthy development of the real estate industry as a
whole.
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In 2020, the Group adhered to its development strategy of “One
Body Two Wings”. Apart from facilitating the deployment of the
Funworld and long-term rental apartment business, we have also
promptly acquired land at low prices for sub-centre or above-station
projects in first-tier and second-tier cities, and high-quality residential
land in the centre of third- and fourth-tier cities. With strict research
and calculations in the early stages, we were able to ensure sales of
residential units before acquiring the land. Moreover, the Group
adhered to investing in projects with certain profitability in explored
areas, such as Xiamen and Quanzhou, by relying on its high
understanding of the market, and not taking risks by blindly pursuing
high profits. In 2020, the Group added 38 projects in cities including
Shanghai, Chongging, Suzhou, Zhengzhou, Xiamen, Fuzhou,
Kunming, Quanzhou, Nantong and Weifang. Among them, 14 cities
are newly added, where the total above-ground GFA amounted to
approximately 10.75 million sq.m., aggregate land costs were
approximately RMB40.550 billion (the attributable land cost amounted
to approximately RMB32.281 billion), and the average land cost was
approximately RMB3,772 per sq.m. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group together with its joint ventures and associates had a land bank
with an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 37.68 million sq.m.
(aggregate planned GFA attributable to the Group amounted to
approximately 25.66 million sq.m.), which was sufficient to support
the Group’s development in the next two to three years.

FINANCING STRATEGY

Whilst domestic regulatory authorities continue to tighten loans to
the real estate industry, the Group has been able to use multiple
domestic and overseas financing sources to reduce financing costs to
continue optimising its debt structure and improve its financial
position. In February 2021, Fitch (Hong Kong) Limited assigned the
Company a long-term foreign-currency issuer default rating of “BB-"
with a “Stable” outlook.

In offshore, in January 2020, the Company issued additional offshore
senior notes due in April 2024 with aggregate principal amount of
US$150,000,000 at yield of 6.5%. The additional senior notes have
been consolidated and formed a single class with the senior notes at
coupon rate of 7.375% with aggregate principal amount of
US$350,000,000 due in April 2024. In November 2020, the Company
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHE

issued US$ senior notes due in May 2025 in the principal amount of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7%. In February 2021, the
Company issued US$ senior notes due in February 2026 in the
principal amount of US$350,000,000 at a coupon rate of 6%. In
March 2021, the Company issued US$ senior notes due in September
2024 in the principal amount of US$300,000,000 at a coupon rate of
5.95%. In addition, the Company obtained a dual tranche syndicated
facility with principals of HK$351,000,000 and US$342,500,000 in
March 2021. The loan period is three years and six months, and the
annual interest rate is the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the
London Interbank Offered Rate plus 3.7%.

The Group issued domestic corporate bonds in the principal amount
of RMB1,460,000,000 in July 2020 at a coupon rate of 5.5% and due
in July 2024 and domestic corporate bonds with a principal amount
of RMB2,000,000,000 were issued in October 2020 at a coupon rate
of 5.5% and due in October 2025. The proceeds above are used to
refinance the Group’s existing debt and to provide sufficient liquidity
for future development.

As at 31 December 2020, the coverage ratio of cash and bank
balances to short-term debt was 1.7 times, demonstrating the strong
liquidity of the Group. As a result of these financing initiatives, the
Group’s weighted average cost of financing decreased slightly to
6.5% from 6.7% for the same period last year.

OUTLOOK

As the Covid-19 vaccination begins in various countries, the global
economy will slowly recover, which will be beneficial to the
performance of the domestic real estate market. However, under the
central government’s emphasis on “No Speculation of Residential
Properties”, any irrational speculation in the market would be
effectively controlled and the Group believes that the property market

will maintain a stable and healthy development in 2021.

In 2020, China SCE’s contracted sales amount exceeded RMB100
billion, symbolising the Group's entry into a new era. As the real
estate industry has entered an era of intense competition, the Group
has been determined in implementing the development strategy of
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“One Body Two Wings” to secure land acquisition and business
operation. The Group will continue to explore the five major regions,
taking the operating results and cash flow as the guide for direction,
leveraging project management and marketing as two major
strategies to promote project operation efficiency. The Group will
consolidate its property development business on the one hand while
expanding its shopping malls and long-term rental apartments

business on the other.

Through department store operation and digital operation of
shopping malls, the Group will realise and continuously enhance its
commercial operation capability, in order to provide a solid foundation
for the Group’s sustainable and reliable rental and property
management income. The Group’s commercial management and
residential property management businesses have already established
a certain scale and the Group aims to spin off such businesses for
listing in 2021, providing a longer-term foundation for the sustainable
development of the commercial management and residential
management segments.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
sincere appreciation to all staff of the Group, our shareholders, clients
and business partners!

Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
30 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

MARKET REVIEW

In 2020, it has been a challenging year for the global economy due to
the impact of Covid-19. In the first half of 2020, in order to mitigate
the impact of pandemic on China’s economy, the central government
implemented counter-cyclical adjustment measures, adopting
proactive fiscal policy and flexible and appropriate monetary policy,
and lowered the deposit reserve and interest rates several times to
maintain abundant liquidity in the market. At the same time, local
governments introduced more policies to support the property sector,
which released the pent-up demand. In the second quarter, the price
and quantity of properties in popular cities rose in tandem. In the
third quarter, in order to prevent financial risks in the property sector,
the regulatory authorities introduced the “Three Red Lines” policy to
tighten the loan growth of property developers. In order to relieve the
pressure of capital, property developers accelerated the pace of
property sales in the fourth quarter to speed up the return of capital.

Throughout 2020, the transaction volume and average selling price of
commodity housing in the PRC took a moderate upward trend.
According to the “National Real Estate Development and Sales in
January to December 2020” ({20205 1-12 A 2B E # E I 2R &
MEYE B M) issued by the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC,
the sales amount of national commodity housing amounted to
approximately RMB17,361.3 billion in 2020, representing a year-on-
year increase of 8.7%, of which the sales amount of residential
housing increased by 10.8% as compared with that of last year. The
sales area of national commodity housing amounted to approximately
1.76 billion sg.m. in 2020, representing an increase of 2.6% as
compared with that of last year, of which the sales area of residential
housing increased by 3.2% year-on-year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW EAEI

Contracted Sales EEHEE

In 2020, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates —Z T4  AEFEERESZ AT LEEZE A
outperformed its annual sales target of RMB93.0 billion and achieved — F#BZETEEHHE BIEARK930ET - &l

a record-high contracted sales amount reaching approximately ES$ = 2% ,Eb/f\ﬂiﬁ*%ﬁgﬁé’\]}\&ﬁ%
RMB101.537 billion (including the contracted sales amount of  1,015.37 18/ EFBESE A a M2 N F]
approximately RMB46.093 billion from the joint ventures and KA RIEELEHIARE460.931E L &R
associates) and contracted sales area of approximately 7.37 million $§E@EBEY737BE K HAaEAL QA
sq.m. (including the contracted sales area of approximately 2.63  REtZ AR ASREEEEL 2638 F XK -
million sq.m. from the joint ventures and associates) for the year, IRF DR EF4926.1% % 16.5% °
representing an increase of approximately 26.1% and 16.5% as

compared with that of last year, respectively.

In 2020, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates had —Z T4 - AEFHERESS AR LRBTEEA
an aggregate of over 150 projects for sale in 54 cities, mainly in & 3£#8:8 150 {&@E A J}EE/\E%W( ge » DMHIES4
second-tier, third-tier and fourth-tier cities in the PRC. Among these AT @ TEBEHREPER = - = LIOARH T
projects, 37 projects were newly launched during the year, details of  Hh - 37 (@ AKREEZFHEHAFNIER @ 4171
which are listed as follows: REAR

City Project Name

W HE &8

Zhangzhou Cloudview Palace

BN ESH

Zhangzhou Parkview Palace

BN B

Heyuan Parkview Mount

AR Rig

Shanwei Century Palace

IE (SEAEE !

Jieyang Parkview Mount

B Rig

Jieyang Cloudview Palace

bl ERF

Huizhou Parkview Palace

=M B

Xiamen The Regent

=EF9 RE

Xiamen The Skyland

EF] PN

Shangrao Cloudview Terrace

s 255
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

City Project Name
HWH HE BB
Nanchang Parkview Mount
1= i3

Beijing Cloudview Terrace
iy ERE

Tianjin Gratifying Bay
K= R
Shanggiu Imperial Manor
i) BT
Zhengzhou Imperial Manor
1) B
Pingdingshan Imperial Manor
IR B

Xuchang Parkview Mount
= RIg
Tongchuan Parkview Mount
)11 pi=leS

Qingdao Parkview Palace
=5 BRI
Qingdao Royal Manor
55 BEE S
Weifang Parkview Mount
HED Rig

Taizhou Parkview Mount
Z=M Rig

Chizhou Imperial Manor
A 208

Lishui Mansion Park
BK BE

Yiwu Cloudview Palace
£8 B
Suzhou Parkview Mount
RN Rig
Zhangjiagang Imperial Manor
REK B B

Shanghai Imperial Manor
! B

Jiaxing Parkview Palace
L R
Shanghai GALAFUN

i TR ES
Foshan Royal Terrace
1L =E
Xiangtan Imperial Manor
HWE B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

City Project Name
HWH HE &M
Shaoguan The Royal Bay
Gl F =
Hangzhou China Chic

M 1 2 BR
Taizhou Powerlong Plaza
a M BERES
Sugian Sky Mansion
‘2 P!

Jiangmen Unique Mansion
als =15

The contracted sales realised by the Group together with its joint

CRES S FEEEE )

i
1
o
=
op

ventures and associates during the year are set out below: REEFEAFRAT
By City R E D
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Area Sales Amount Sales Amount
BREHE ARHEE HERHEE
City W [EE Ko SEAIL
(sq.m.) (RMB Million) (%)
(F7K) (ARBBET
Beijing bR 187,537 6,510 6.4
Shanghai 5 113,223 2,517 2.5
Chongging BB 653,514 5,356 5.3
Tianjin KE 279,377 3,767 3.7
Nanjing 23 252,436 5,253 5.2
Hangzhou FL M 116,419 2,786 2.7
Suzhou RN 192,386 4,308 4.2
Xiamen EF 346,727 18,352 18.1
Kunming ERA 538,101 5,436 5.4
Jinan B 198,387 2,493 2.5
Wuxi 5 185,506 2,751 2.7
Quanzhou T 648,151 5,328 5.2
Xuzhou Gl 364,936 3,729 3.7
Lishui BK 183,841 3,253 3.2
Taizhou aM 145,676 2,950 2.9
Other HAih 2,961,557 26,748 26.3
Total =18 7,367,774 101,537 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Quanzhou e
Funworld
SN e tH SR

From the perspective of distribution among cities, contracted sales in
Xiamen, Kunming and Chongqging have been the most remarkable
among the second-tier cities, amounting to approximately RMB18.352
billion, RMB5.436 billion and RMB5.356 billion respectively. Xiamen
set a new record for the Group’s contracted sales in a single city,
accounting for 18.1% of the total contracted sales in 2020. According
to the “2020 Sale Rankings of Commaodity Housings among Xiamen's
Real Estate Enterprises” ((2020F EEFIE @ MEHEHITE))
released by E-House Enterprise Group CRIC, China SCE continued to
rank second in Xiamen in terms of the contracted sales amount.
Contracted sales in Quanzhou have been the most remarkable among
the third-tier cities, with contracted sales amounting to approximately
RMB5.328 billion, accounting for approximately 5.2% of the total
contracted sales amount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

By Region REFE S
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Area Sales Amount Sales Amount
EEHEE EEHE HERHE
Region B & | SEESL
(sg.m.) (RMB Million) (%)
(FHK) (AR¥BE&ET)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone RS SR 881,662 14,336 14.1
West Taiwan Strait st risp <Gy ]
Economic Zone 1,528,666 27,942 27.5
Guangdong — Hong Kong —  E388 KE[E
Macao Greater Bay Area 443,610 4,764 4.7
Yangtze River Delta R=ARKEE
Economic Zone 2,557,613 38,398 37.8
Central Western Region R R 2Rk [ 1,956,223 16,097 15.9
Total A&t 7,367,774 101,537 100.0

Quanzhou e
Gold Coast
SN e TR IEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Contracted sales in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and the
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone were approximately RMB38.398
billion and RMB27.942 billion respectively, accounting for
approximately 37.8% and 27.5% respectively, and continued to be
the two regions with the largest contracted sales for the Group and
its joint ventures and associates. Due to the positive results of further
development in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and the
launch of several new projects in Shanghai, Hangzhou, Suzhou and
Lishui during the year, which were well received by customers,
contracted sales in the regions continued to reach new highs.
Contracted sales in the West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone benefited
from the contracted sales contribution from a number of new projects
in Xiamen Island, including The Regent and The Skyland.

REAKEB R SRARCERNERBEED
RIEI AR 383.9812 L M ARKE279.42187T -
DRNEIE37.8% [ 27.5% @ BEEKARER K
HEZRAIRBENTARBEESERZHM
Al - BRAEBTER=-ALEBREHER
B SWEFE AR EE - A BN RBKE
L ZERSE  EXEFPEN  BEER
HERBA R MERARSEBRNERH
BRXRENZHEEMAESAFTENERAMEESR
Bl BRERBRRESEE -

By City Tier BT ARBIE S

Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Area Sales Amount Sales Amount
EEME EEHEE HERHEE
City Tier 39T 4% 5l [EE Ex-] SHERA
(sq.m.) (RMB Million) (%)

(ErK) (AREBE&ET)
First-tier cities — B 310,858 9,318 9.2
Second-tier cities AR 3,282,313 57,306 56.4
Third- and fourth-tier cities = - U 3,774,603 34,913 34.4
Total &5t 7,367,774 101,537 100.0

Jinan e
Parkview Bay

=

R e AR E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

From the perspective of city tier, the contracted sales amounts of the
Group together with its joint ventures and associates in the second-
tier and third- and fourth-tier cities continued to achieve a record-
high, being RMB57.306 billion and RMB34.913 billion respectively,
contributing approximately 56.4% and 34.4% of the total contracted
sales amount respectively.

Recognised Property Sales Income

In 2020, the Group achieved recognised property sales income of
approximately RMB31.554 billion and area of properties delivered of
approximately 3.25 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 54.3% and approximately 77.0% respectively. The
average selling price of properties was approximately RMB9,712 per
sg.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 12.8%.
Details of the Group’s recognised property sales income are as
follows:

EEEFNWR DN

ARSI - ARBREALERA KB Z
RANZRE=  OETEREESRER

BlETE DRI ARES73.061B TR ARE
349013 L DRI ERAREESRE

56.4% [ 34.4% °

BRYEHEEWRA

—ECEF  AEEERVEHEBRANAR
¥ 315541870 - BRI HYEEIEL A&325
EF IR Ao Bl g & £543% K& 4
77.0%  FEMEHEEBNATFITRKAR
¥9,71270  FILL TBE%712.8% - AEBHER
MEBEEWAFEBLIT

By City R E S

Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Area  Sales Income  Sales Income
LR Y=
iRty ES LY ES SHEWA
City i HEmE SHEWA Bok
(sg.m.) (RMB Million) (%)

(FHkK) (AR¥BE&ET)
Shenzhen Al 48,622 1,490 47
Shanghai B 32,062 964 3.1
Xiamen IElg 102,995 6,166 19.6
Kunming £ 237,331 1,688 53
Tianjin RE 148,443 1,485 4.7
Ningbo B 67,163 1,239 3.9
Chongging BE 189,053 954 3.0
Nanchang ElS] 117,462 889 2.8
Jinan B 71,434 740 2.4
Quanzhou M 763,244 6,204 19.7
Xuzhou RN 444,064 3,393 10.8
Dezhou =M 162,315 1,120 35
Shanggiu [Efas 199,855 1,160 3.7
Shangrao & 112,195 733 2.3
Luoyang 3] 158,585 729 23
Other Hi 394,105 2,600 8.2
Total = 3,248,928 31,554 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

By Region REFE S
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property Sales
Sales Area  Sales Income Income
(o LY ES
AW LY HEWA
Region Ei HEm®E SHEWA Aot
(sg.m.) (RMB Million) (%)
(FHAK) (AR¥BBET)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR S AR P 472,842 3,868 12.2
West Taiwan Strait VIR 78 R A
Economic Zone 1,215,412 14,680 46.5
Guangdong — Hong Kong —  E&F B K&®
Macao Greater Bay Area 89,576 1,860 5.9
Yangtze River Delta R=AKERE
Economic Zone 686,275 6,615 21.0
Central Western Region A 75 BB (& 784,823 4,531 14.4
Total ol 3,248,928 31,554 100.0
By City Tier R AR BI85
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Area  Sales Income  Sales Income
LR Y=
’RWE LY ES SHEWA
City Tier 3 AR B HEER SHEWA BO
(sq.m.) (RMB Million) (%)
(FHK) (ARBBRET
First-tier cities —AR T 80,953 2,490 7.9
Second-tier cities TR 937,921 13,227 419
Third- and fourth-tier cities = USRS 2,230,054 15,837 50.2
Total CEl 3,248,928 31,554 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Land Bank

As at 31 December 2020, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates had a land bank with an aggregate planned GFA of
approximately 37.68 million sg.m., of which the aggregate planned
GFA attributable to the Group was approximately 25.66 million sg.m.
and distributed in 62 cities. In 2020, the Group together with its joint
ventures and associates acquired 38 projects in total, distributed in 25
cities, including Shanghai, Chongqing, Suzhou, Zhengzhou, Xiamen,
Fuzhou, Kunming, Quanzhou, Nantong and Weifang etc., among
which 14 cities were new. Under the development strategies of “One
Body Two Wings” (—EE/I3 ), the “100 Cities Plan” of the Group
was accelerated in 2020 with a total of 14 new shopping mall of
Funworld. In 2020, the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates added an aggregate above-ground GFA of approximately
10.75 million sg.m., at an aggregate land costs of approximately
RMB40.550 billion, with the attributable land cost being
approximately RMB32.281 billion. The average land cost was
approximately RMB3,772 per sq.m. The new land acquisitions in 2020
were as follows:

EEEFNWR DN

T ib A

RZE-ZEF+_A=+—H FTEEERE
BENRIRBENRERS T HEEEREESL
M FE493,768 B F 7K $%lﬁﬁim%%
BIREREMELN 2,566 BF K Hn62
ﬂﬁm°_é_7¢ AEBEREEGE QR

%%ﬁjﬁ?%ﬂﬁﬁin%EEMWW
EE@%ii BEE - &M BN BT

LR RN BRI ENT E¢M
mgﬁﬁAﬁm EI—BmE] EREAN
FET AEEN BRI EZTZF
PERE - HEE 4@ RS EYRISER -
ZEEF  AEEEREAERARIRBER
A FTIGH FEEEEAEL,0758F 5K 21
AR AR 49 A R 405.50 18 7T+ FEAG 1+ A AR
BARE32281EL  FHLHAANETF
FARAREEST7270 o —E —_ZFF L L 5Ff
T

Percentage
of Interest
Type of Above- Average  Attributable
City Project Property ground GFA  Land Cost  Land Cost to the Group
et 74 A58
B BHER MERR EEHE T A TR A bR
(RMB (RMB
(sq.m.) Million) per sg.m.) (%)
(AR®  (ARE/
(EAK) BET) FHK)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone
RBEER
Weifang Funworld Commercial 97,634 67 682 97%
W 75 [GES
Weifang Parkview Mount Residential 293,868 309 1,050 97%
w5 iyl FE
Weifang Parkview Mount Residential 74,948 94 1,261 100%
(Zhucheng)
W R FE
Weifang Parkview Mount Residential 146,124 177 1,210 100%
(Zhucheng)
%] s FE
Weihai Imperial Manor Residential 188,490 348 1,845 100%
B8 =35 FE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBEW

Ko #r

Percentage
of Interest
Type of Above- Average  Attributable
City Project Property ground GFA  Land Cost  Land Cost to the Group
i+ ¥ rEE
i) BEER MERR BEEE T Hi R AR T A iR
(RMB (RMB
(sg.m.) Million) per sg.m.) (%)
(ARE  (ARE/
(E7K) BETL) FHK)
Yangtze River Delta
Economic Zone
REARER
Shanghai Imperial Manor Residential and commercial 108,322 1,323 12,214 70%
! B FEREE
Suzhou Funworld/Imperial Manor  Residential and commercial 337,939 1,734 5,130 100%
B tt FH, B8 FEREE
Nantong Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 265,635 920 3,464 100%
Bl R, B FEREE
Xuzhou Lake Manor Residential and commercial 222,105 627 2,822 54%
&M sl FEREE
Zhangjiagang Funworld/Imperial Manor  Residential and commercial 324,797 748 2,304 90%
KB R, B FEREE
Chizhou Funworld/Imperial Manor  Residential and commercial 369,510 572 1,548 100%
St t FH, B8 FEREE
West Taiwan Strait
Economic Zone
BIREFEEE
Xiamen The Skyland Residential and commercial 210,000 10,355 49,310 62%
EF PN FEREE
Xiamen Glory Sky Residential 65,357 3,300 50,492 75%
EF XE =
Fuzhou Funworld/Imperial Manor  Residential and commercial 330,062 4,560 13,816 99%
&M t FIH, B FEREE
Quanzhou Mansion Residential 145,002 546 3,765 27%
FM N FE
Quanzhou Imperial Palace Residential 79,115 250 3,160 70%
FM RERN FE
Quanzhou Imperial Terrace Residential 101,575 400 3,938 100%
FM b=y} FE
Quanzhou Cloudview Palace Residential 94,652 1,560 16,481 80%
FM £ FE
Quanzhou One Mansion Residential 117,026 1,820 15,552 20%
FM FRE% FE
Shangrao Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 413,633 618 1,493 100%
i R, B FEREE
Longyan Imperial Manor Residential 127,563 380 2,981 100%
BEE Gl 6] =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

Percentage
of Interest
Type of Above- Average  Attributable
City Project Property ground GFA  Land Cost  Land Cost to the Group
i £ ¥ AEE
W HE AR ES ki BEEE  fHRE X iRz
(RMB (RMB
(sg.m.) Million) per sg.m.) (%)
(AR®  (ARE/
(FAK) BET) FHK)
Guangdong — Hong Kong
— Macao Greater Bay Area
EERAEE
Jieyang Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 501,874 690 1,375 53%
1855 R, B FEREE
Jieyang Cloudview Palace Residential 147,497 450 3,051 94%
185 ERF Fx
Meizhou The Royal Bay Residential 94,135 205 2,179 100%
1M iib=ee F=E
Meizhou The Royal Bay Residential 92,978 153 1,645 100%
1 HRE F=E
Meizhou Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 603,766 1,387 2,297 100%
1M R, R FEREE
Shaoguan The Royal Bay Residential 457,612 900 1,968 100%
g ERE F=E
Shaoguan Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 563,457 776 1,377 100%
e R, B FEREE

Chonggqing
Imperial Manor

BE e RIE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

Percentage
of Interest
Type of Above- Average  Attributable
City Project Property ground GFA  Land Cost  Land Cost to the Group
i £ ¥ s
W HE AR ES ki BEEE  fHRE X FEfa Rz
(RMB (RMB
(sg.m.) Million) per sg.m.) (%)
(AR®  (ARE/
(FAK) BET) FHK)
Central Western Region
hEBLE
Chongging Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 775,142 960 1,238 100%
E R, B8 FEREE
Zhengzhou Cloudview Palace Residential 136,447 198 1,450 99%
il ER FE
Kunming Cloud Valley Residential 209,297 131 627 70%
B EANMA Fx
Xiangtan Funworld/Imperial Manor  Residential and commercial 741,812 1,321 1,780 100%
HE R, B FEREE
Zhumadian Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 755,975 1,125 1,488 98%
BEE R e TERHEE
Xuchang Parkview Mount Residential 167,188 221 1,322 97%
= B F=E
Xuchang Imperial Manor Residential 195,199 260 1,334 97%
= BE FE
Zhaotong Parkview Mount Residential 187,463 204 1,088 80%
ey i3 FE
Lincang Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 210,000 247 1,175 100%
BR i3l FEREE
Tongchuan Funworld/Parkview Mount Residential and commercial 797,433 614 770 98%
)1l R, FE FEREE

10,750,632 40,550 3,772
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group mainly derives its revenue from sales of properties,

property management fees, rental income and project management

income.

The annual revenue increased significantly by approximately 52.4%
from approximately RMB21,369,802,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB32,572,605,000 in 2020, which was attributable to the increase
in property sales income.

Sales of properties

Income from property sales increased significantly by
approximately 54.3% from approximately RMB20,452,820,000
in 2019 to approximately RMB31,553,911,000 in 2020.
Delivered area increased significantly by approximately 77.0%
from 1,835,458 sq.m. in 2019 to 3,248,928 sq.m. in 2020. The
average unit selling price decreased from approximately
RMB11,143 per sq.m. in 2019 to approximately RMB9,712 per
sg.m. in 2020.

Property management fees

Property management fees increased by approximately 16.1%
from approximately RMB458,066,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB531,790,000 in 2020, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in number and floor area of properties under
management.

Rental income

Rental income increased by approximately 10.7% from
approximately RMB284,603,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB315,037,000 in 2020, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in rental income of the office buildings of SCE Plaza in
Shanghai and the shopping mall of Funworld in Nan’an.

EEEFNWR DN

875 11 R
g 75
AEBREEBRANEHERA - mEEE

& HSWAMEBREEEA -

2FWEBH_ZT—NFHNHDARE
21,369,802,000 T ARG RAI524% E—F —
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o MIEHERA

MEEERAR-_Z—NFHNARE
20,452,820,000 7T K 1@ 38 &= £954.3% &=
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iﬁﬂrﬂaiﬂ%ﬁﬁ N ZE_ZT_FTF
#3,248,928 F 70K o FHIHEBEEH =
Z-NEFHNEFTHROARE 11,1437
TREZZZZEFHNEFEHRHOARE
9,7127C °

MEERBH _T-NFOHHARE
458,066,000 T K 416.1% = — T —
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o  HEBHKA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

o Project management income

The project management income decreased by approximately
1.4% from approximately RMB174,313,000 in 2019 to
approximately RMB171,867,000 in 2020, which was
attributable to the decrease in project management service and
other property related service income provided to joint ventures.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased significantly by approximately 33.5% from
approximately RMB5,891,871,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB7,863,817,000 in 2020. Gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 27.6% in 2019 to approximately 24.1% in 2020. The
decrease in gross profit margin was attributable to the impact on
average unit selling price of projects as result of price restriction

policy.
Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

The fair value gains of investment properties decreased significantly
by approximately 57.5% from approximately RMB1,404,861,000 in
2019 to approximately RMB596,565,000 in 2020. The fair value gains
of investment properties during the year were mainly attributable to
the value appreciations of certain shopping malls.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased significantly by
approximately 47.1% from approximately RMB516,031,000 in 2019
to approximately RMB758,913,000 in 2020. The increase in selling
and marketing expenses was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in the number of projects for sale during the year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 29.6% from
approximately RMB1,616,310,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB2,094,020,000 in 2020. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly attributable to the increase in administrative staff costs to
cope with the needs for business expansion.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
HEEEERARLR I —T_TFEFR

e HBEEEWA

BEEEBERAH-ZE-NFHNHNARKE
174,313,00075/@@9 ,%’91.4%1_-7?_7—3
FRHARE171,867,0007T © ThAH AR
HIEE BERE R E MY ERBRS S
BENE NERTE -

ER

EMBH-_Z -84 ARYS5,891,871,000
TTRIBIEMNAI335% E S _EFNHARE
7,863,817,0007 c EFHBAIE =T —NFH
#927.6% TREEZZT_FFHL24.1% ° EF
ETRFERREMRTEHE THHEESR
{g °

REVMEQIAEEZD

BEMEIABREH-ZE-NFHOARKE
1,404,861,000 7T A& D £)57.5% 2 =F =
TER L AR 596,565,000 7T © EARREY
ERNAERSEFERARE THRYRSHEMR
g( °

HEREHMAX
HEMREHRAXHA-_ZT-NAFNOARY

516,031,0007z7t¢aaisbu,%@47.1%ifchf
FH A AR B 758,913,0007T © $HE K ZiEMH

SIEMEBEFALEERE BB KEBE AR
o

THEAX

THRREX®E = ﬂiﬁ’]ﬁ)\ﬁ’ﬂé}

1,616,310 ooom“bu%ﬁw 6% 2T -FF
#9149 AR ¥ 2,094,020,000 7T © 17 IR B 5% Y 1
IEBREE A BRAE I B ERAT
@(o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 29.3% from approximately
RMB528,142,000 in 2019 to approximately RMB682,775,000 in
2020. Finance costs mainly represented partial borrowing costs which
have not been capitalised as certain borrowings were not used for
project developments. Due to the increase in bank and other
borrowings (including senior notes and domestic bonds), total interest
expense increased by approximately 10.5% from approximately
RMB2,942,366,000 in 2019 to approximately RMB3,251,263,000 in
2020.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures and
Associates

Share of profits of joint ventures and associates increased significantly
by approximately 315.5% from approximately RMB154,431,000 in
2019 to approximately RMB641,632,000 in 2020. The increase was
mainly attributable to the significant increase in delivery of some
projects of joint ventures.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately 15.7% from
approximately RMB1,830,809,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB2,117,421,000 in 2020. The increase in income tax expense was
mainly due to more provision for corporate income tax and land
appreciation tax made as a result of increase in income from property
sales.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by approximately
8.4% from approximately RMB3,510,045,000 in 2019 to
approximately RMB3,803,238,000 in 2020. Basic earnings per share
amounted to approximately RMB90.6 cents in 2020. Core profit
attributable to owners of the parent increased by approximately
26.6% from approximately RMB2,650,332,000 in 2019 to
approximately RMB3,354,057,000 in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were denominated in different currencies as set out below:

mBET  UHERERER

BEMR

RZE-FTFE+_A=+—H xEENHESL
RARITE R AT A A T AR S EHE

2020 2019
—F-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Renminbi AE#E 21,222,705 20,974,502
Hong Kong dollars s 385,287 1,837,305
US dollars =T 1,791,750 1,086,853
Total cash and bank balances RE RIRITIER GRS 23,399,742 23,898,660

According to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, certain
property development companies of the Group are required to place
certain amounts of cash and bank deposits into designated bank
accounts to provide guarantees for the development of the relevant
properties. The Group also places certain deposits in banks in the PRC
to secure certain bills issued from banks in the PRC. As at 31 December
2020, the amounts of restricted cash and pledged deposits were
approximately RMB4,305,393,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB4,297,558,000) and approximately RMB679,283,000 (31 December
2019: approximately RMB450,253,000), respectively.
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Borrowings and Pledged Assets

The maturity profile of the borrowings of the Group as at 31

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

RREERH

RZZZZF+_A=+—H x5EERE

December 2020 was as follows: SKEABEREAT -
2020 2019
—F-FF —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBF T
Bank and other borrowings: SRITNHME
Within one year or on demand —FAFRIREK 9,390,257 8,858,490
In the second year EF-F 4,734,566 6,529,786
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FCERF(RIEEEMF) 10,177,554 4,761,871
Beyond fifth year ERAEF 1,373,235 1,110,109
25,675,612 21,260,256
Senior notes and domestic bonds: EBAEBERERES
Within one year or on demand —FERNPRIREK 4,449,796 3,436,692
In the second year FE_F 6,709,909 7,574,832
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ZhF(REEREMF) 9,727,559 9,805,302
20,887,264 20,816,826
Total borrowings B 46,562,876 42,077,082
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

The borrowings were denominated in different currencies as set out

below:

ZEERTDAL T ARIE#EHE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —ZT-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMEN

Renminbi AR 20,896,946 17,846,768
Hong Kong dollars BT 3,214,046 3,351,778
US dollars ETT 1,564,620 61,710
25,675,612 21,260,256

Senior notes and domestic bonds: BEEENBEANGES
Renminbi AR 4,000,000 3,976,692
US dollars ETT 16,887,264 16,840,134
20,887,264 20,816,826
Total borrowings B 46,562,876 42,077,082
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

Breakdown of the borrowings by categories is as follows:

ERAARERRRE ST

=

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFT
The senior notes of US$500 millionata RA-—T—+E=AK-F Secured/Fixed BHEE 3,249,909 3,438,934
coupon rate of 5.875% due in March —tFMAEITHR  interestrate & 52 F =
2022 issued in March 2017 and April T &= AFIHM5
2017 (the “Senior Notes due in B3k J05.875% B L=
March 2022") B(—ZZ-—&€=A
FEELRZR])
The senior notes of US$600 million ata R =—Z— /\&EMMAE7T7  Secured/Fixed FoEiigi g 3,909,796 4,131,251
coupon rate of 7.45% due in April —E-—FmARH interest rate EhakilE
2021 issued in April 2018 (the B6{E3EIT7.45% B 5%
“Senior Notes due in April 2021") ER([ - — %0
REEERER])
The senior notes of US$500 million ata R =T —HE—A#1TH  Secured/Fixed HHEm - 3,443,581
coupon rate of 8.75% due inJanuary ~ =ZZ=—F — FE/H  interestrate kRS
2021 issued in January 2019 (the H)5EETTL8.75% B %
“Senior Notes due in January 2021") ER([ - —F—
REEBERER])
The senior notes of US$500 millionata M-Z—HEMAR-Z Secured/Fixed ogiigi g 3,255,329 2,395,960
coupon rate of 7.375% due in April —TE—- QTR interest rate [E e 1|
2024 issued in April 2019 and T UM AE HRS
January 2020 (the “Senior Notes due BETLII%BELE
in April 2024") BI=ZZ=-MEMA
FEELRER])
The senior notes of US$500 million ata A =T —fF+ A#1TH  Secured/Fixed BHEA 3,241,372 3,430,408
coupon rate of 7.25% due in April “T-=FMAEH  interestrate Ehailks
2023 issued in July 2019 (the “Senior HI51BEILT.25% Bk
Notes due in April 2023") ZE((ZE=-=N
REEBERER])
The senior notes of US$500 millionata MR-—ZE=Z & +— %47 Secured/Fixed BIE 3,230,858 -
coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 RZTZZRFHAE  interestrate Ehailks
issued in November 2020 (the HMSEEILTI%E R
“Senior Notes due in May 2025") EE((ZE-_HEHR
REEBERER])
The domestic corporate bonds of RZZ—RF+AETHR  Unsecured/Fixed I - 3,436,692
RMB1,974,058,000 at an adjusted —E-TFE+ BRI interest rates [ 7E FI| &

coupon rate of 7.6% due in October
2020 issued in October 2015 and the
domestic corporate bonds of
RMB1,470,200,000 at an adjusted
coupon rate of 7.6% due in
December 2020 issued in December
2015

A B #1,974,058,000 7T
KB E S KT 6%
NAREHFER-Z
—ARE+ZRABITR
ZTEF+ AR
A B #1,470,200,000
TEABREE LT 6%
BANRRES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

2020 2019
—g-%F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREET T ARKET T

The domestic corporate bonds of RZZE—NFENAEITH  Unsecured/Fixed mIER 540,000 540,000
RMB540 million at a coupon rate of —E-=FNAEH interest rate & F| &
6.95% due in August 2023 issued in AR5 415716.95%
August 2019 BARRER
The domestic corporate bonds of RZTZZTFEHAEITR Unsecured/Fixed mIEAE 1,460,000 -
RMB1,460 million at a coupon rate ZZZMFL AR interestrate (& 7 |
of 5.5% due in July 2024 issued in BWAR14.6(87T5.5%
July 2020 FW”?F%
The domestic corporate bonds of REZTZZTF+ A5 Unsecured/Fixed AR 2,000,000 -
RMB2,000 million at a coupon rate ZTZRHF+TAEIE  interestrate [E] 5E |
of 5.5% due in October 2025 issued MARBE20E7T5.5%
in October 2020 BRAREES
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER Secured/Floating HiEm, 19,083,757 14,949,806
interest rates TFENFIR
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER Secured/Fixed HiE® 6,296,277 5,961,790
interest rates [E] 5E |
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER Unsecured/Floating K38 295,578 348,660
interest rates FENF &

46,562,876 42,077,082

As at 31 December 2020, the following assets of the Group were RZZZTF+_A=+—H &&H
pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the BATEERE  UBRESETAEE®D
Group: BTRITREMERK -
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Bank deposits HRITHER 679,283 450,253
Property and equipment IEYNE L 537,296 10,630
Investment properties LEME 9,606,200 10,260,000
Properties under development KRR 25,582,739 31,504,324
Completed properties held for sale BIELEEERME 2,039,828 2,117,351

38,445,346 44,342,558
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

The net gearing ratio was calculated by dividing the net amount of
borrowings (including bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
domestic bonds after deduction of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and pledged deposits) by total equity. As at 31
December 2020, the net gearing ratio was approximately 59.2% (31
December 2019: 60.0%).

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Exposures

The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and substantially all of
the Group’s revenue and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2020, except for certain
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
bank and other borrowings, Senior Notes due in March 2022, Senior
Notes due in April 2021, Senior Notes due in April 2024, Senior Notes
due in April 2023 and Senior Notes due in May 2025 which were
denominated in foreign currencies, exchange rate changes of RMB
against foreign currencies will not have material adverse effect on the
results of operations of the Group.

No foreign currency hedging arrangement was made as at 31
December 2020. The Group will closely monitor its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISR
As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided financial guaranteesto R-ZT-—ZTFE+—-F=+—H0  KEBEFUT
the banks in respect of the following items: FZIAMBITIRETFEER ¢
2020 2019
—ECBF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Guarantees in respect of mortgage MASEETYEERDY
facilities provided for certain purchasers RREFIEHOER
of the Group's properties 28,666,035 20,307,223

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and associates’ b5 - AEE (GG E R A R & A F A S0
own financial guarantees, which are not included in the above, is as ~ BIIS#ER (WRMA LT -
follows:

2020 2019
—F-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR¥ETE

Guarantees in respect of mortgage BN /N
facilities provided for certain purchasers ETUWEERNIZIBER
of the joint ventures’ and associates’ IRHAEZR
properties 4,643,228 2,652,313

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees to banks in = R -Z-ZTF+ - A=+—H  AEERIET

connection with loan amount of RMB6,340,780,000 (31 December B TFALARNHBMERNRZERSHEAARE

2019: RMB7,935,790,000) granted to joint ventures and associates. 6,340,780,000 L ( ZE—NF+=ZA=+—
B : AR#¥7,935,790,000 7T) IR &R -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

COMMITMENTS I
As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments of the Group were HR-_ZE-—FF+-HA=+—H  KEEFHERX
as follows: AMEMT
2020 2019
—E-EHF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Contracted, but not provided for: BENEREE -
Capital expenditure for properties under ERBREMZERPYE
development and construction of REERIREMENERNEFRZ
investment properties in Mainland China 19,423,718 18,951,500

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’ L7 * REE G E E QA LEEE R AR FH)
own capital commitments, which are not included in the above, is as & ZANFHE GRAAALA LFTl) AN -

follows:
2020 2019
—E-SE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT
Contracted, but not provided for: D2 A B R B
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ and CRWARINE NS RN 35
associates’ properties under development BRAMERBEERKE
and construction of investment properties MENERNEFRZ
in Mainland China 4,357,887 3,737,499
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 9,414 employees
(31 December 2019: 7,592 employees). During the year, the total cost
of employees was approximately RMB1,600,254,000 (2019:
approximately RMB1,379,796,000). The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits and has adopted share
option schemes to provide incentives and rewards to, among others,
the employees (please refer to the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this annual report for further
details of the share option schemes). The Group reviews the employee
remuneration plan at least annually to ensure that it maintains market
competitiveness and allows the employees to receive fair and equal
rewards. The promotion decision is also based on considering the
employees’ assessment results, experience, skills and personal
characteristics. In addition, the Group has established China SCE
College to provide employees with three types of training programs,
namely business courses, quality skills and cultural identity. The Group
has launched its management trainee programme since 2011 for
positions in selected functional areas in order to build pipeline for
succession.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band
and the respective number of persons for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

2 & K s B

BR

R_ZT_TFE+_F=+—8 AEEHLEH
9414%BEB(ZE—NF+=-A=+—8:
75N%F ) FRN - EEXEABEHNARE
1,600,254,0007( Z & — L F: HARE
1,379,796,0007T) - AEEFEESRE AR F
NEFNFB R E R AR ET S S e E &
RE(EFBE) EE(EHEERESING
1B B2HAFRIESTEWE] P [ERES
g —B) AEESIEFRIEIHMA
2 UEREREMISHT NINEETESA
ERFEREE - MBARRENEREES

THFZER &R REREBEARERF
oo AN - AERER PR SER /B TIREM

EBRIE - KERENUERR=HEIIR
B-B-F——F% AREREEXRHBL
FREEAE - RrEf AT HTER -

\

EZNEREIEED

HE T TF+_A=1T—"HILFELXEH
BAREE R FENEE N AR AT ¢

Number of

Persons

Remuneration Bands E0 e A
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #7L%E 2,500,000 47T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 3,500,000 % 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 # 7L % 4,000,000 47T 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T % 4,500,000 % 7T 4

Further details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements,
respectively.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
HEEEERARLR I —T_TFEFR

EEMELhEERTMALNE - FSFE
7 RIER I EREKRMFEI K10



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

China SCE actively fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment and plays an exemplary role by undertaking the mission
of promoting social environmental protection activities. China SCE
gives due consideration to environmental philosophy in various
aspects of its business, including construction works, fitting-out
works, landscaping and property management, and incorporates
environmentally friendly practices into its daily course of business to
save energy and reduce emissions, performing its commitments and
obligations of protecting the environment in all aspects and
contributing to creating a green and harmonious society. Such
environmental initiatives include but are not limited to dust control,
noise control, water and energy conservation and handling
construction waste properly as well as using environmentally friendly
materials.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the
Company will publish an Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report within three months after the publication of this
annual report in compliance with the provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries
incorporated or established in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC and the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Therefore, the Group should comply with relevant
laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Group will seek professional legal opinions
from its Legal Department and legal advisors when necessary to
ensure that the Group’s transactions and business are in conformity
with all applicable laws and regulations.

EEEFNWR DN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

China SCE always adheres to the principle that “People Are The Most
Important Resources” and the policy of “Human-Based
Management”. China SCE recognises value of its employees, and pays
much attention to their development, bringing their potentials into
play and encouraging them to learn and grow, with a view to
stimulating employees’ personal growth through corporate
development and promoting corporate progress through employee
development, thus achieving win-win situation for the Group and its
employees.

The Group maintains a solid relationship with its existing and
prospective customers, which plays a vital role in the development
and success of the Group. The Group’s “SCE Club” ("HEE&") is
established for such purpose. By persisting on the idea and objective
of “Leading a Life Full of Love and Thoughtful Services (B0 4)E + A
LRTE)”, as well as serving the customers, SCE Club is committed to
reinforcing communications and contacts between China SCE and its
customers. As the Group instantly and attentively heeds its customers’
advice and recommendations for China SCE, it has a solid foundation
for introducing more premium properties that satisfy the community
demand. In addition, China SCE builds customer trust and realises its
branding strategy by providing excellent aftersales services, as well as
committing to customised aftersales services of high standards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group also establishes long-term collaboration with international
prominent designers in architecture and landscape and famous
construction contractors, while maximising its efforts to ensure its
adherence to the objective of providing customers with premium
properties. The Group selects qualified construction contractors
through tender process in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, and conducts thorough due diligence review over such
contractors. Successful tenderers are selected based on a variety of
factors, including costs, construction completion schedule, quality
performance of construction projects, construction planning,
manpower distribution, safety measures and standards, equipment
and facilities and the industrial experience of project managers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not hold any
other significant investment, or conduct any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at the date of approval of this annual report, the Group did not
have any future plan for material investments or capital assets.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
EE2YEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projects under  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BIEHE ans REE
EH Wi NERE RENE CERME  RRPNE #ENE BEAR [EfE s
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(F5%) (F5%) (F5%) (FH%) (FAK)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone
BHBLER
Funworld Beijing Commercial 30,899 - - - 30,899 100
L8] IR [EES
Royal Terrace Beijing Commercial 22,640 - - - 22,640 100
RE R [EES
Sunshine Mansion Beijing Residential - - 6,525 - 6,525 100
NEZE R e
Cloudview Terrace/Imperial Beijing Residential and commercial - - 280,581 100,523 381,104 100
Terrace
ERE/RRE IR FERE%
The Regent Beijing Residential and commercial 143,291 - 38,340 - 181,631 70
PN IR FERE%
Marina Bay Tianjin Residential - 13,763 - - 13,763 100
hRE PNz iz
Polaris Bay Tianjin Residential - 36,552 - - 36,552 95
RRE PN e
River Coast Tianjin Residential - - 72,966 - 72,966 4
3 PN e
Galaxy Tianjin Residential - - 95,360 - 95,360 48
X% PN e
Gratifying Bay Tianjin Residential - - 77,056 - 77,056 66
hisE PN e
Royal Manor Qingdao Residential and commercial - - - 396,800 396,800 %
3yt 55 ExhEz
Parkview Palace Qingdao Residential - - 93,196 - 93,196 97
i EL] %
Uptown Jinan Commercial - - 14,021 - 14,021 100
il B Bx
Royal Palace Jinan Residential - - 166,193 - 166,193 9%
R A %
Parkview Mount (Zhucheng) Weifang Residential - - - 221,072 221,072 100
FEE i fix
Funworld Weifang Commercial - - 28391 69,243 97,634 97
JLRiN ] Y [
Parkview Mount Weifang Residential - - 123,365 170,503 293,868 97
Big i e
Sunshine City Tangshan Residential and commercial - 6,829 83,065 - 89,894 90
NEEE EW Exhaz
The Royal Bay Dezhou Residential - 3,275 198,086 - 201,361 40
22 =M iz
Royal Spring City Anshan Residential, commercial and hotel - 21,195 - 1,455,141 1,476,336 70
BRI Bl % HEREE
SCE International Community  Linfen Residential and commercial - - 36,679 8,666 45,345 100
Phases 5
hEERHELE &p Exhax
Yanjiao Funlive Yanjiao Commercial 26,043 - - 26,419 52,462 55
AR Rl EE
Imperial Manor Weihai Residential - - - 188,490 188,490 100
BB ki e
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ETEYEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of

Investment Projects Projects under  for Future Total  Attributable

Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BiFHE 2R r&EE

EH Wi NERE RENE EBERME  RR9NE #ENE BERR [EfE L
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(¥7%) (¥75K) (¥7K) (FK) (F7mK)

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone

R=AEER

SCE Plaza Phase 2 Shanghai  Commercial 155,606 - - - 155,606 61
RS —H i Bx

Skyline Tower Shanghai  Commercial 66,576 - - - 66,576 100
AEES i [EES

The Paramount Shanghai  Commercial 24,627 - - - 24,627 100
7% I5: -

The Glamour Shanghai Residential 2,498 - - - 2,498 100
PN i %

The Royal Bay Shanghai Residential and commercial - 17,894 - - 17,89 100
ERH i TEREE

Imperial Manor Shanghai Residential and commercial 20,539 - 66,966 20,817 108,322 70
BiH i TERESE

Zhoupu Funlive Shanghai Residential 13,664 - - - 13,664 100
Sy g e

Future Sci-Tech City Funlive Hangzhou  Commercial 28,598 - - - 28,598 100
RRRHEH A M Bx

Parkview Bay Hangzhou  Residential and commercial 46,380 - - - 46,380 %
mxE M Exhmz

Suzhou Project Suzhou Residential and commercial - 81,761 - 518,118 599,879 80
EANEL B FEREE

Parkview Mount Suzhou Residential and commercial - - 283,859 - 283,859 47
Big B TERESE

Orient Moon Bay Suzhou Residential - 51,058 - - 51,058 50
2RE B frE

Cloudview Terrace Suzhou Residential - - 115,786 - 115,786 95
ERE B ffE

Glory Sky Suzhou Residential and commercial 50,785 - 136,988 - 187,773 91
P &M FEREE

Funworld/Imperial Manor Suzhou Residential and commercial - - - 337,939 337,939 100
tF5/ BIE &M G T

6 Park Square Nanjing Commercial - 168,607 - - 168,607 64
RREE R BE

Parkview Bay Nanjing Residential and commercial - - 59,225 - 59,225 44
h2E R FERES

Parkview Palace Ningbo Residential - 48,041 - - 48,041 50
MEA ST =9 i

The Royal Bay Nantong Residential - - 175,779 - 175779 55
ERE 3 i

Funworld/Parkview Mount Nantong Residential and commercial - - - 265,635 265,635 100
R/ Bl [k FEREE

Parkview Bay Xuzhou Residential and commercial - - 200,182 - 200,182 70
hgE Gl =T

Golden Riviera Xuzhou Residential and commercial - - 103,931 - 103,931 70
E | 1M TEREE

Parkview City Phase 1 Xuzhou Residential - - 452,957 - 452,957 46
B —H &M %2

Parkview City Phase 2 Xuzhou Residential - - 151,636 117,904 269,540 46
=5 = BM e
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
EE2YEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projects under  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE B8 T5E
EH i nxER REMmx BEANX BEPIR #ENE BEAR i 5
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(F5%) (F5%) (F5%) (FH%) (FAK)
Lake Manor Xuzhou Residential and commercial - - - 222,105 222,105 54
FHLE &M FEREE
Parkview Palace Jiaxing Residential and commercial - - 121,765 - 121,765 93
i 5 FEREE
Parkview Mount Taizhou Residential and commercial - - 253,302 - 253,302 %8
%k ZM FEREE
Funworld Taizhou Commercial 113,829 - 85,291 - 199,120 100
R M EE
The Royal Bay Lianyungang  Residential and commercial - - 3,708 - 3,708 60
ERE BE) EERhEE
Sunshine City Zhenjiang  Residential and commercial - 202,107 - - 202,107 %
mERG% #L TERESE
Mansion Park Lishui Residential - - 296,524 - 296,524 49
B Bk €
Funworld/Imperial Manor Zhangjiagang  Residential and commercial 86,781 - 238,016 - 324,797 0
R,/ B REB TERESE
Funworld/Imperial Manor Chizhou Residential and commercial - - 26,773 342,737 369,510 100
R,/ B8 M TERESE
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone
BRERLER
Funworld/Imperial Manor Fuzhou Residential and commercial 138,802 - - 191,260 330,062 99
A,/ B M EEhEz
The Royal Bay Nanchang  Residential and commercial - 30,435 - - 30,435 0
R e G T
Uptown Nanchang  Residential and commercial - 12,890 - - 12,890 100
Bhil B FERE%
Funworld/Parkview Mount Nanchang  Residential and commercial 112,232 - 171,855 - 284,087 99
i,/ 5lE B xRS
SCE Building Phase 1 Xiamen Office and commercial 10,098 - - - 10,098 100
mEEEAE—5 B BREREE
SCE Building Phase 2 Xiamen Office and commercial 36,597 - - - 36,597 100
mEEEARE S B HrgRER
The Regent Xiamen Residential and commercial - - 177,003 - 177,003 39
R& B FERES
Sapphire Peninsula Quanzhou  Commercial 7441 - - - 7441 100
£2+8 M [EES
Funworld (Nan'an) Quanzhou  Commercial 44,777 - - - 44,777 100
5 (%) FM [EES
Imperial Manor Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 56,880 43,511 - 100,391 40
ERE M TEREE
Enjoy City Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 18,062 - - 18,062 40
il M TEREE
The Paramount Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial 42,723 - - - 42,723 100
PN FM YN TS
Quanzhou e Funworld Quanzhou  Residential and commercial 206,283 - - - 206,283 58
FI ot R FN TEREE
Fortune Plaza o Imperial Terrace  Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial - - 30,988 - 30,988 100
HERLHEE FN % WABRESE
Parkview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 6,690 135,938 - 142,628 70
BEM FN TERESE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ETEYEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projects under  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE F5E] i |
BH W nEER RENE CHEANE  ERTUE RN BEEE EiEs
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(FHK) (ERK) (EAR) (ERXK) (EAX)
SCE Mall Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial 23,848 - - - 23,848 100
e FM % BAEREE
Gold Coast Quanzhou  Residential and commercial 28,547 177,410 - 195,062 401,019 45
EEa)d FM TEREE
SCE Mall (Shishi) Quanzhou  Office 28,711 - - - 28,711 60
s (R ) £ N
Parkview Palace (Shishi) Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - - 135,358 - 135,358 60
HER M TEREE
SCE Plaza Quanzhou  Office and commercial 36,992 - - - 36,992 100
HEES M WABREE
Cloudview Palace (Nan'an) Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 96,857 - - 96,857 90
3 FM TEREE
Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - - - 101,575 101,575 100
HER FM fF=x
Funworld/Parkview Mount Quanzhou  Residential and commercial 84,357 16,911 181,111 - 282,379 92
R/ B FM TEREE
Imperial Palace Quanzhou  Residential - - - 79,115 79,115 70
RER FM =z
Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential - - - 94,652 94,652 80
EE FM =z
Cloudview Terrace Zhangzhou  Residential - - 1,662 - 1,662 75
E5E EM =z
Royal Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 83,990 - 88,990 80
EER ENM TEREE
Cloudview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 138,439 - 138,439 43
ERH ENM TEREE
Parkview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 73,866 - 73,866 90
ESH EM TEREE
Royal Palace Shangrao  Residential and commercial - - 218,777 - 218,777 27
i e RR e ERN I TERESE
Cloudview Terrace Shangrao  Residential and commercial - - 227,506 256,554 484,060 9%
ERE & TEREE
Funworld/Parkview Mount Shangrao  Residential and commercial - - - 413,633 413,633 100
R4,/ Bl fin TEREE
Funworld/Parkview Bay Putian Residential and commercial 82,855 - 194,460 - 277315 90
Ry, g & TEREE
The Royal Bay Jivjiang Residential and commercial - 3913 43,558 - 47,471 0
ERE T TEREE
Imperial Manor Longyan Residential - - 153,169 - 153,169 100
fER s TE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
EE2YEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of

Investment Projects Projects under  for Future Total  Attributable

Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BIEHE 2 REE

EH i NERE RENE CERME  RRPNE #ENE BEAR [EfE s
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(F7%) (¥5K) (7K (¥7K) (F7mk)

Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area

BRAAEE

Cloudview Palace Shenzhen  Residential and commercial - - 2,761 - 2,761 95

EREM A EEhAx

Royal Terrace Foshan Residential and commercial - - 41,757 69,196 110,953 %8
ERE Bl TEREE

Parkview Palace Huizhou Residential and commercial - - 142,530 40,479 183,009 %

BRI 2M TEREE

The Royal Bay Huizhou Residential and commercial - - 204,073 - 204,073 93

ERE = B

Royal Terrace Huizhou Residential and commercial - - 2,398 - 2,398 95
ERE 2 Exhaz

Cloudview Palace Jieyang Residential - - 185,469 - 185,469 9%

ESR el e

The Royal Bay Meizhou Residential - - - 187,113 187,113 100

i3 1M e

Funworld/Parkview Mount Meizhou Residential and commercial - - - 603,766 603,766 100

Ry BE izl TERESE

Funworld/Parkview Mount Shaoguan  Residential and commercial - - 201,218 362,239 563,457 100

Ry i TERESE

The Royal Bay Shaoguan  Residential - - 161,298 296,314 457,612 100

Funworld/Parkview Mount Heyuan Residential and commercial 91,568 - 297,200 156,504 545,272 %

R/ B R TERESE

Century Palace Shanwei Residential and commercial - - 141,570 206,717 348,287 92

BRAH WE FEREE

Central Western Region

PEBLE

Cloudview Terrace Chongging  Residential and commercial - 34,957 - - 34,957 9%

ERE Ed FEREE

The Royal Bay Chongging  Residential and commercial - 202,810 - - 202,810 9%
ERE B FERES

Imperial Terrace Chongging  Residential and commercial - 162,934 239,308 - 402,242 47

RRE Bf FERES

Liberty Mountain Chongging  Residential and commercial - - 178,305 - 178,305 48

bl Ed FERkEE

Imperial Manor Chongging  Residential - - 278,066 - 278,066 50

B8 Ed %

Funworld/Parkview Mount Chongging  Residential and commercial - - - 775142 775142 100

R,/ 58 Ea TEREE

Imperial Manor Zhengzhou  Residential - - 117,353 - 117,353 90

B M e

Cloudview Palace Zhengzhou  Residential - - - 136,447 136,447 9

R M e

Cloud Valley Kunming Residential and commercial - 31,643 489,124 1,280,051 1,800,818 67

EANE 26 TERESE

The Royal Bay Luoyang Residential - - 137,614 - 137,614 80

35 BB e

Mansion Park Luoyang Residential - - 109,583 - 109,583 70

B B i3
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ETEYEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projects under  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BiFHE 2R r&EE
g Wi NERE RENE EBERME  RR9NE #ENE BERR [EfE L
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FH%) (FAX)
Royal Terrace Shanggiu  Residential and commercial - 6,659 86,180 - 92,839 100
RE [l FERES
Parkview Palace Shanggiu  Residential - 63,037 - - 63,037 85
ERM B 1%
Cloudview Terrace Shanggiu  Residential and commercial - - 126,118 110,131 236,249 76
ERE BE EEhAx
Funworld/imperial Manor Xiangtan Residential and commercial - - 71,987 669,825 741,812 100
R,/ B HE =T
Funworld/Parkview Mount Zhumadian  Residential and commercial - - 287,022 468,953 755,975 %8
R,/ Bl BEE (=T
Parkview Mount Xuchang Residential - - 212,179 - 212,179 97
% iFE %z
Imperial Manor Xuchang Residential - - - 195,199 195,199 97
B8 iE %z
Funworld/Imperial Manor Pingdingshan  Residential and commercial 86,684 - 229,827 74,250 390,761 95
tH,/ B T EEhAx
Parkview Mount Zhaotong  Residential - - - 187,463 187,463 80
%i& i i3
Parkview Mount Lincang Residential and commercial - - - 210,000 210,000 100
Hi& fg Exhazx
Funworld/Parkview Mount Tongchuan  Residential and commercial 124,298 - 237,665 435,471 797,434 98
tH,/ Bl gl ExhEx
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSNEEANEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Chiu Yeung (E&iR3), aged 55, is one of the founders of the
Group and the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2007, as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC, Hong Kong and
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Wong is responsible for formulating
business development strategies for the Group, commercial property
management and financial investment management. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in 1996,
Mr. Wong has been involved in all of the projects developed by the
Group thereafter, and has about 25 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Wong is the vice chairman of Hong Kong
Association for the Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of China (%
BFF 44— (R & EFBAEE), guest professor of Nanchang University,
vice chairman of the board of directors of Quanzhou Normal
University, chairman of the board of directors of Nan‘an Huagiao
Middle School (FAZZEEH £), permanent honourable chairman of
HK Federation of Fujian Associations (Z/&1&E4t B ). Mr. Wong
holds an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from
Xiamen University. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is the sole director of
each of Newup Holdings Limited, East Waves Investments Limited and
Keen Century Investments Limited, which had interests of
approximately 39.15%, 5.45% and 5.45% respectively in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2020 that would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Chen Yuanlai (BRJt3K), aged 54, is one of the founders of the Group
and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Chen was
appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009 and is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chen is responsible for
formulating business development strategies for the Group. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in 1996,
he has been involved in all of the projects developed by the Group
thereafter, and has about 25 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Chen also has extensive experience in investment
management and project management through his involvement in all
of the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Chen completed the
Executive Management course in Business Administration of
Commercial Real Estate Development and Funding, a one-year
programme offered by the School of Professional and Continuing
Education of The University of Hong Kong and Fudan University,
Shanghai, in May 2008. Mr. Chen has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University. Mr.
Chen is the sole director of Rising Trade Holdings Limited, which had
interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 that would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Cheng Hiu Lok (EREE£%) aged 56, is one of the founders of the
Group and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr.
Cheng was appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009
and is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC, Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr.
Cheng is responsible for formulating business development strategies
for the Group. Since his involvement in the development of the
Group’s first project in 1996, he has been involved in all of the
projects developed by the Group thereafter. Mr. Cheng has about 25
years of experience in real estate development. Mr. Cheng also has
extensive experience in investment management, project
management and construction management through his involvement
in the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Cheng completed his
college education at Fujian Normal University in 1987. Mr. Cheng is
the sole director of each of Wealthy Gate Holdings Limited, which had
interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 that would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Huang Youquan (Z{&#&), aged 52, is an executive Director and an
executive president of the Company. Mr. Huang was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 May 2011 and was appointed as the chairman
of the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate Governance
Committee”) with effect from 1 January 2017. He is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is responsible for the financial management
of the Group. Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Huang was the
audit manager and assistant to the head of the Xiamen office of
Fujian Hongshen Accounting Firm ({2 23A B S TR =R E R
AR)EFISHAF]). Mr. Huang graduated from the Department of
Mathematics of Xiamen University with a Bachelor’s degree in Science
in 1991. Mr. Huang is a PRC Certified Public Accountant and a
member of the Fujian Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Huang has completed an Executive Master of Business Administration
programme in Xiamen University.

Wong Lun (Zf#), aged 33, is an executive Director and an assistant
president of the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2017. He is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC, Hong Kong, the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.
Mr. Wong is responsible for investor relations and commercial
management of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in September
2010. Mr. Wong graduated from the School of Engineering of
University of Warwick with a Bachelor’s degree of Science in
Engineering and Business Studies in 2010. Mr. Wong holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Wong Lun is the son of Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung, an executive Director and chairman of the Board.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ting Leung Huel Stephen (T R#), aged 67, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(Practising), CTA (HK), ACA, FHKIoD, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the ”Audit
Committee”), and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Ting is an accountant
in public practice and has more than 30 years of experience in this field.
Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting is a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (0116), a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of six other companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (1666), Tongda
Group Holdings Limited (0698), New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
(0472), Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (0046), Texhong
Textile Group Limited (2678) and Dongyue Group Limited (0189).

Lu Hong Te (& "f&), aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Lu obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Industrial and Information Management from
National Cheng Kung University in 1983, and a Master’s degree and a
Doctoral degree in Marketing from the Graduate Institute of Business
Administration of the College of Management of National Taiwan
University in 1985 and 1992, respectively. Mr. Lu is a professor at the
Department of Business Administration of Chung Yuan Christian
University in Taiwan, specialising in marketing management and
corporate competitive strategies. Mr. Lu is an independent non-
executive director of China Lilang Limited (1234) and Cosmo Lady
(China) Holdings Company Limited (2298), the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lu is an independent
director of two companies which are listed on the Taipei Exchange,
namely Firich Enterprises Co., Ltd. (8076) and Lanner Electronics Inc.
(6245), and an independent director of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation (1216), which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. From February 2007 to February 2019, Mr. Lu was an
independent non-executive director of ANTA Sports Products Limited
(2020), which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From April
2007 to October 2020, Mr. Lu served as an independent non-executive
director of Capxon International Electronic Company Limited (stock
code before the withdrawal of listing: 0469), the withdrawal of the
listing of whose shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange became
effective on 23 October 2020.
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Dai Yiyi (B7~
executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also the

—), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-

chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Dai is a
full-time professor of the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme of the School of Management of Xiamen University and
the chairman of the Board of the Jin Yuan Research Institute of
Xiamen University. Mr. Dai also serves as an adjunct professor for real
estate CEO programmes hosted by Tsinghua University and Peking
University. Mr. Dai has been a consultant with the Fujian Real Estate
Association since 2005. Mr. Dai is the vice dean of the School of
Management of Xiamen University between January 2008 and
December 2015. Mr. Dai is an independent non-executive director of
Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (2298) and
Guangdong-Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited (1396),
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, an independent
director of Fujian Septwolves Industry Co., Ltd. (002029) which is
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent director
of two companies which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
namely Xiamen C&D Inc. (600153) and Xiamen ITG Corp., Ltd.
(600755). From May 2013 to May 2017, Mr. Dai was an independent
director of New Hua Du Supercenter Co., Ltd. (002264), a company
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. From October 2009
to September 2018, Mr. Dai was an independent non-executive
director of Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited (0846),
which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai graduated
from Xiamen University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics in
1989, and received a Doctoral degree in Economics from Xiamen
University in 1999. Mr. Dai was awarded a certificate as a PRC
Certified Property Valuer in 1997. Mr. Dai was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Guangdong-Hong Kong
Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited (stock code: 1396), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 March
2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zheng Quanlou (E8%1€), aged 49, is an executive president of the
Company. He is responsible for operation plan and design
management of the Group. Before joining the Group in November
1998, Mr. Zheng was an on-site manager of Quanzhou Dong Hai
Development Company Limited (SRMTERIEFEHFRAF]). Mr.
Zheng completed his college education in construction engineering at
College of Architecture and Civil Engineering of Fujian ({824 255
£ HRIER) in 1992 and obtained his Bachelor's degree from the
Department of Civil Engineering of Fujian Agriculture and Forestry
University in 2009. Mr. Zheng is a PRC Registered Cost Engineer, and
serves as an expert of bid evaluation of construction project in
Quanzhou since 2006. Mr. Zheng has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

Wang Meng (E£&h), aged 34, is an executive president of the
Company. He is responsible for land acquisition and marketing
management of the Group. Before joining the Group in March 2015,
Mr. Wang was the marketing director of Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Mr. Wang graduated from North China University of Technology with
a Bachelor’s degree in Arts in 2009. Mr. Wang holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from Peking University.

Tang Xiaojuan (Zf&18), aged 48, is an assistant president of the
Company. She is responsible for managing daily operation of the
office of president and information technology management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in August 2002, Ms. Tang served as
the office manager of Xiamen Yong Hong Ji Real Estate Development
Company Limited (EFfkZEFMERZ AR A A]). Ms. Tang
graduated from the Department of International Trade and Economics
in Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics in 1994. Ms. Tang has completed an Executive
Master of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.
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Ku Weihong (E#4L), aged 52, is an assistant president of the
Company. She is responsible for legal affairs, administrative and
human resources as well as property management of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group in November 2010, Ms. Ku served as the chief
legal officer of Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited. Ms. Ku
graduated from the Department of Law of Peking University with a
Bachelor’s degree in Law in 1990. Ms. Ku holds the lawyer
qualification certificate of the PRC and has extensive experience in
legal affairs. Ms. Ku holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Peking University.

Peng Fei (&), aged 38, is an assistant president of the Company
and is responsible for the management of the Shanghai, Jiangsu and
Zhejiang regions of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in October
2007, Mr. Peng served as a marketing manager of Xiamen Strategic
Property Agency Limited (BP9 Bt & S5 IEA R A R]). Mr. Peng
graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in Business
Administration in 2016. Mr. Peng has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

Wang Yue (E8), aged 45, was appointed as an assistant president
of the Company on 1 July 2020. He is responsible for cost
management and construction management of the Group. Before
joining the Group in May 2002, Mr. Wang was a project manager in
China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd. (FF B Z 2858 —
TR BARAT]). Mr. Wang graduated from the Department of Civil
Engineering of Tongji University ([A/&AZ2) with a Bachelor’s degree
in Engineering in 2007. Mr. Wang has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

Keith Chan (FRE2), aged 48, is the vice chairman and chief executive
officer of Funlive rental apartments business. He is responsible for
overall strategic direction, business operations and management of
Funlive. Prior to joining the Group in April 2018, Mr. Chan was a
senior managing director, co-head of China and head of China Real
Estate of Macquarie Capital. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience
in corporate finance, investment banking and principal investments.
Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Wisconsin-Madison with a
Master degree in Business Administration (Finance and Investment) in
1997. Mr. Chan has also completed a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Accounting from the same school.
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Li Siu Po (Z4]), aged 52, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for the financial
reporting, equity and debt financing and company secretarial work of
the Group. Before joining the Group in January 2008, Mr. Li was a
manager of one of the international CPA firms. Mr. Li graduated from
the Department of Accounting in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in 1994. Mr. Liis a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Li has extensive experience in financial management and auditing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Li Siu Po (Z4), a member of senior management of the Group, is
the financial controller and company secretary of the Company. The
biography of Mr. Li is set forth above.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkeREEABRERE

FOR 5258 NRRMIBRERATWE
BEAKENMBER BELEERELA
AMETIIE - TEER =TT N\E—AMER
RAE] > ZHABEER -RERAXSHMER
FTEVAEEE - FRAR—NNTUFEXZNEFEE
TARBEFE  BEABELEU - FTRAER
BREHNAEER - FEABELENYH
B N EA R

NEIWE

FOR AEESREEEKEZ— BAR
A BHRERAPWE - FLEENBES KA

i o

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
REEEZERAERAT I —T_TFFR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has been committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the operational efficiency of
the Company. The Company believes that such commitment is
beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and the
Board had been in compliance with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions
by directors.

The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all
the Directors confirmed that they have strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year under
review.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The members of the Board of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yuanlai

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Mr. Lu Hong Te

Mr. Dai Yiyi
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, both of whom are executive
Directors. Save as disclosed above, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has considerable experience in accounting and financial
management, which is in line with the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules which states that “at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise”.

In accordance with the provision A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in respect
of any possible legal action against them.

In accordance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members.
In formulating its nomination policy, the Company has created
measurable targets in the following areas, including expertise,
experience, knowledge, professional skills, education background,
independence, age, etc. In doing so, the Company can ensure its
Directors reach the eligible level in terms of their expertise, industrial
experience, education background, independence, age and other
factors, which enable them to make corresponding contributions to
the Board whenever necessary and practicable. The Company and the
Nomination Committee periodically review the nomination policy and
are open to adopt further measurable objectives in the future based
on the business needs of the Company and to keep pace with the
prevailing regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Nomination
Committee” of this corporate governance report regarding details of
the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted by
the Board and progress on achieving the measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy.
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In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for each financial
year, the company secretary of an issuer must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the year, the Company
confirmed that the company secretary of the Company, Mr. Li Siu Po,
had participated in proper training programmes for not less than 15
hours to ensure his expertise is in line with all the requirements as
applicable to him.

In accordance with the provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, all the
Directors have complied with the requirement of provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code through attending trainings and/or reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to director’s duties and
responsibilities.

Name of Directors

RIEETRAEI2MERT - EEEMRE
B BTANRRWERZNTDRI5/NE
FMEBAEREI - £ ARAERATWE
FLRFECZ ML/ NS @ -
FERE BB AR P Z R B RERHE ©

RAIRTRIBAGSIRME  IAEFRESZ AR
BEXURE BEREMANSREE - F
N AEERECEBILFEIIRHBEEEA
RAIRBHEFHARBETRANENUFTE
STRIEA6.5RHE °

Trainings on Corporate
Governance, Regulatory
Development and
Other Relevant Topics
hEER BEEBER

BEEfE Hb 10 R EREEZ I
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =PGBS E v
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BRIT R A& v
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok =3t v
Mr. Huang Yougquan =S E v
Mr. Wong Lun =fm A 4
Independent non-executive Directors BUHBITESE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRBEA v
Mr. Lu Hong Te BEEEE v
Mr. Dai Yiyi C) il v
Directors’ Responsibilities EEEPNEME

The Board is responsible to all shareholders for supervising and ZZHeWLUREES  2EEEREEAN

overseeing all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of overall management and operation
strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policy
and monitoring the performance of the senior management, so as to
achieve high efficiency in relevant business of the Company. The
senior management is responsible for the daily management and
specific operation of the Group.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Pursuant to the provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the board of issuers
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has held five board meetings, and passed eight written resolutions. It
is considered that the Directors were well acknowledged to the
operation of the Group for the year under review. The attendance of
each Director for the board meetings and general meeting of the
Company is contained in the following table:

TEERRE
BB ERHESE

BETFAEANIGHE  BOANESSRE
THHE  EFLLREETFERELTKR -
BHE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE &M
HARAXESRE  WUAAEEFABER
ER - BMBEESNESHASREREEFTNA
HIEE B RANMANE - SESMERHEAR
AEEEERLKBRRAEERE N THIRE :

Number of Number of
Attendances/ Attendance/
Number of Written  Total Number of
Board Meetings Resolutions  General Meeting
HERE HERE
EEEREAE E@mRER BRASHEE
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =mHG LA 5/5 8/8 01
Mr. Chen Yuanlai ﬁ%ﬁﬂ??ﬁi 4/4 8/8 0/1
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok 2 e 40 4 A 4/4 8/8 01
Mr. Huang Youquan EUUE?‘EE 4/4 8/8 0/1
Mr. Wong Lun =HmiE 4/4 8/8 1/1
Independent non-executive BV #HITESE :
Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T B #&5c 4 5/5 8/8 171
Mr. Lu Hong Te BREAe L 5/5 8/8 0/1
Mr. Dai Yiyi k& 5/5 8/8 0/1
g Except for chairman of the Company, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, all executive ! RZZ_TENA+IBERANESELZE LT
Directors were exempted from attending the board meeting held on 19 WERITESNEKRBESESHZE K
August 2020 in which the composition, duties and responsibilities of the NAEFEHEABGEEIN  EBRPTESFTHTE

executive Directors were discussed.

¥ N/NET|
.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review, Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung performed his duties as both the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that
serving by the same individual as chairman and chief executive officer
during the rapid development of the business is beneficial to the
consistency and efficiency in execution of business plans and decision-
making of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a non-competition deed (the “Non-
competition Deed”) with Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung on 6 January 2010
pursuant to which Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the
Company not to compete with any business of the Group and shall
use his best endeavors to procure his affiliates not to engage in, assist
or support a third party in the operation of, or participate or be
interested in any property development business in the PRC.
Furthermore, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the Company
(for itself and for the benefit of the Group) that during the term of
the Non-competition Deed to procure any investment or commercial
opportunity relating to property development business in the PRC that
he or any of his affiliates identifies or proposes or that is offered or
presented to them by a third party to first refer such opportunity to
the Company in accordance with terms of the Non-competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung for his compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Deed during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report. All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the matters relating to enforcement of the Non-competition Deed and
consider that the terms of the Non-competition Deed have been
complied with by Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received the written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, confirming that he has met the
independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence requirements.
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The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
applying their independent analysis and professional judgments to
provide a professional and fair view to the decisions of the Board. This
is not only beneficial to the warranty of the scientific element of the
decision, but also enhancing the protection of interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” in
the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for the term of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
its Remuneration Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of issuers must appoint
an independent non-executive director as the chairman, and the
majority of the members shall be independent non-executive directors.
With effect from 1 April 2012, the Remuneration Committee,
comprising of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (an executive Director) and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen (an independent non-executive Director), is
chaired by Mr. Dai Yiyi (an independent non-executive Director).

The prime duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o to assess performance of executive Directors and approve the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors;

. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; and

. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to discuss the 2019 management bonus and 2020 salary
under the service contracts for executive Directors. Details of the
attendance by members of the Remuneration Committee are set out

CEFEA - FMEES AR T —REH AW
HITES T NFERRAR_T_FTFR
BERFMER - ERERFTMEZE2EHN

BRI EERET -

as below:
Number of
Attendance/ Total
Number of Meeting
HERY, ERER
Mr. Dai Yiyi B — kA& 1/1
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =G E 11
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRIBEAE 171
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES
According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established — #RiE<FEIEE - ZIS AR =T — 2@¢ H7NH
the Nomination Committee on 6 January 2010. Under the provision X iERZEE & o WRSFAIEAS 1 IEHE -

A.5.1 of the CG Code, the majority of the nomination committee of
issuers must be independent non-executive directors, and the
chairman of the board or an independent non-executive director must
be appointed as the chairman of this committee. With effect from 1
April 2012, the Nomination Committee, comprising independent non-
executive Directors Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, is chaired by Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung, chairman of the Board.

The prime duties of the Nomination Committee are:

. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board based on, amongst others, the Board Diversity Policy
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
chief executive officer and the policy concerning the diversity of
Board members.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss the composition of the Board and the terms of
reference, the diversity policies for the Board, and other issues. Details
of the attendance by members of the Nomination Committee are set
out as below:
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Number of

Attendance/Total

Number of Meeting

HERE SEAR

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =HGEE 11
Mr. Lu Hong Te BREE 171
Mr. Dai Yiyi IS — A& 1/

The Company and the Nomination Committee periodically review the
nomination policy and monitor the progress on achieving the
following measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) which
have been set for implementing diversity on the composition of Board.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, under the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board has adopted and the Company has fully achieved
the following Measurable Objectives:

(@) To ensure at least two members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualification;

(b)  To ensure at least 35% of the members of the Board have more
than 10 years of experience in real estate development;

(c)  To ensure the appropriate proportion of the independent non-
executive Directors to the executive Directors in order to
maintain the independence of the Board. In particular, at least
35% of the members of the Board shall be independent non-
executive Directors;

(d) To ensure at least 60% of the members of the Board shall have
attained Bachelor’s degree or higher level of education; and

(e) To ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board is
such that the Board comprised of people from at least three
decades.

ARRARREEE TR RALEE
ER BB ERAR S T ARREN T
HERE(THERE)NERER - BE=
ToFFT-AS+-ALFE REEFE
ST  HREECFMAFTARELEE
BATAHERIE

BREFSZVAMBKBERGETH
Hih BEER

BREFSEVAIINNKERERTF
PA L #B5 st EE R 3R AR B

BRBUIIFNTESHURTESZAAS
EHP - NERREFTSNBEILIE - L
HE BFEELABUNKNEREL
FEMITES

HRESeE VL E60%HKEREEL

HEBHEKRF &

BREFENEFHKIMELA=ET
RFERBENALTHEK

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020

HREBMEZERERAR /I T -_TFFRH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i

AU

EEAWME

DIT COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Audit Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the audit committee of issuers must comprise of all non-

executive directors. The Audit Committee comprises three

independent non-executive Directors, with Mr. Ting Leung Huel

Stephen as the chairman, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi as

members.

The prime duties of the Audit Committee are:

responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and

oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two

meetings to review the 2019 annual report and the 2020 interim

report of the Company. Details of the attendance by members of the

Audit Committee are set out as below:
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Attendances/Total
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HERE ERAH

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Company
established the Corporate Governance Committee on 1 April 2012 to
better implement and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance. Mr. Huang Youquan, an executive Director, was
appointed as chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and Mr. Lu Hong Te, both independent
non-executive Directors, were appointed as members of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The prime duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and approve the annual corporate governance report
and related disclosures in the annual and interim reports of the
Company and monitor and ensure compliance with relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules or the rules of any other
stock exchange in respect of which the securities of the
Company are listed or quoted, or other laws, regulations, rules
and codes as may be applicable to the Company;

o to make sure that appropriate monitoring systems are in place
to ensure compliance against the relevant internal controls
systems, processes and policies, and in particular to monitor the
implementation of the Company’s plans to maintain high
compliance with its own risk management standards;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the Company’s
annual reports.
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During the year under review, the Corporate Governance Committee
met once to discuss the adoption of the CG Code. Details of the
attendance by members of the Corporate Governance Committee are
set out as below:
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Number of
Attendance/Total
Number of Meeting
HERY, SRE-

Mr. Huang Youquan =T E
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRESRAE
Mr. Lu Hong Te BEEEE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the fees paid to the auditor of the
Company, Ernst & Young, in respect of the audit services and non-
audit services provided to the Company amounted to approximately
RMB5,192,000 and approximately RMB7,368,000, respectively. Non-
audit services mainly consisted of advisory and other reporting

services.

The Audit Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board on
matters related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2021, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, and
confirm that the financial statements give a true view of the financial
position and results of the Group as at the date and for the year of
the date ended, and are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 97 to 104 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective
internal controls and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency
of the financial, operational, compliance, risk controls, human
resources and other aspects of the system in order to safeguard the
independence of the respective duties and powers of the Group
which in turn can protect the investment of shareholders and the
assets of the Company.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company,
being the Company’s internal audit function, is responsible for regular
review and audit of the finance and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended. For weaknesses of
internal controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditor have identified and reported to the Company, the
Company would pay full attention to the recommendations made by
the external auditor and make appropriate improvements.

Besides, the Company has also appointed Ernst & Young (China)
Advisory Limited to review the internal controls of the selected
processes of the selected entities of the Group. The 2020 internal
control assessment report revealed that no material control weakness
was identified.
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
their effectiveness and concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group were adequate and effective
during the year.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/or
matters which he/she considers potentially inside information, will
report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board for
the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.

The aforementioned risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Establishing a good relationship with investors plays a vital role in
enhancing the operational efficiency of the Company and in
protecting interests of the shareholders. The Company insists a
transparent, honest and timely disclosure of related information on
the business development of the Company through various channels
to ensure that the shareholders and investors have an adequate
understanding of the operations of the Company.

The Company’s website at www.sce-re.com provides information
such as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers,
etc. for making inquiries to the Company in order to maintain
effective communication with its shareholders and investors. In
addition, interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the
Company will be despatched to shareholders in compliance with the
Listing Rules and the same will also be published on the website of
the Company and that of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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During the year, the Company has received numerous visits from  E£RX » "R FEEFRZH AN EER G @ &
investors and arranged investors and analysts to visit the Group’'s HH&EE RO MENZXE A EB N SHAIER -
property sites at various locations. The Company has also presented S [ FI/ 43 A Bl2E R 2R IS R TR L EIF T o
to them the development strategies and business operation status of ~ HfIIRZ A2 NI EESZRIELFHIKE » 18
the Company. The Company also participated in various investor =EX¥REURNATNRHE - BEEHE @ 18k
conferences and non-deal roadshows to enhance the industry —SERERRRE RIREEEYHEAER - 2R
awareness of the Company. The management believes actively I ATMELHRIFIE - FRNRIIREE S
seeking face-to-face communication with shareholders and investors — ZAIFEIFE I TK ¢

is the best way to enhance their confidence in the Company.

Particulars of the investors’ meetings during the year are set out in the

following table:

Date Description Place
=p: RE b 26
6-7 January 2020 Huatai HK Research China Property & Property Hong Kong
Management Corporate Day
20201 A6ZE7H EFBRTEFEHMEIMEEREEA e
13-15 January 2020 UBS Greater China Conference 2020 Shanghai
202051 A13%E 15H IniRE — T EARERFTE =
1-3 April 2020 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
2020F4 A1E3H FERZIEE L
14 April 2020 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
20204 A14H HERZIKIR mE
17 April 2020 Industrial Securities Virtual Spring Conference 2020 Virtual
2020564 A17H HR 520208 EF R ERESR R
29 April 2020 Haitong Securities Virtual Spring Conference 2020 Virtual
202054 A 29H BB F 20205 F R RS B
22 May 2020 Morgan Stanley PWM Credit Virtual Conference Virtual
20205 A 22H ERTANLAMEEEZ LEERES mE
11 June 2020 UBS Virtual HK/China Property Conference Virtual
2020F6 A11H IR B BEBMER ERES R
12 June 2020 Industrial Securities China Property Mid-year Conference Virtual
202056 A 12 H B E S BIMOED RS L
17 June 2020 Everbright Securities Mid-year Conference 2020 Virtual
20206 A17H KRFEFH 2020 FH HARIEE mE
18 June 2020 Haitong International 2020 China Property Corporate Virtual
Day
20206 A 18 H 2020/ mER DB AERREBEEA mE
23-24 June 2020 Citi's Asia Pacific Property Conference 2020 Virtual
20206 423%24H TEFHEE K 2020 EREF & R
20-21 August 2020 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
20208 A20% 21 H FERZIEE s
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TEERWRE
Date Description Place
H RE 3 B
26 August 2020 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
202048 26 H FERZIEE mLE
3 September 2020 Huachuang Securities Autumn Conference 2020 Virtual
202049 A3H EREF 2020 EREE L
4 September 2020 Haitong Securities Financials & Properties Conference Shanghai
2020F9 A4 H BREFCRMETELTARRZIRS s}
16—17 September 2020 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
202069 A 16 £ 17 H FERZIEE mE
13 October 2020 BofA Securities 2020 Asian Credit Conference Virtual
20204F10 A 13 A FIRFEF 2020 a5 M5 EimiE L
29 October 2020 Nomura Asian High Yield Corporate Day Virtual
20204F10 A29H BNZEsEMEkERER mE
2 November 2020 Deutsche Bank 24th Annual European Leveraged Virtual
Finance Conference 2020
2020411 A2 H FEEERTEF - THBRFEBRMNESFREERSE mE
3 November 2020 2020 BofA China Conference Virtual
202011 A3H FEiRFFH 2020 RIEERIB L
6 November 2020 Citi China Investor Conference 2020 Virtual
2020 11 A6H EEFETHRETEREES mLE
19 November 2020 Reverse Roadshow Virtual
202011 A19H R\ & mE
3 December 2020 UBS Global Real Estate CEO/CFO Virtual Conference Virtual
2020
2020412 A3 H 1648 2020 2 B E HE CEO/CFO X & mE
4 December 2020 Haitong Securities Annual Conference 2021 Virtual
2020 12 A4H BBEF 2021 FEREE L

The Company's annual general meeting of shareholders is a good
opportunity for communication between the Board and shareholders
of the Company. Notice of annual general meeting and related
documents will be sent to the shareholders pursuant to the

requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the

website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

1.1

The following procedures for shareholders (the

“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company

to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM")

of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article

58 of the articles of association of the Company:

)

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition (the “Requisition”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company via
email at the email address of the Company at
ir@sce-re.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

If the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1

2.2

2.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect
of the Company via email at the email address of the
Company at ir@sce-re.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the
prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.

Procedures and contact details for putting

forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

3.1

3.2

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of
his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information via email at the email address
of the Company at ir@sce-re.com.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that
the request is made by a Shareholder and such request is
proper and in order, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice
of meeting.
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3.3 The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in
an EGM;

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an EGM other than by way of a
special resolution of the Company.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in property development, commercial
management, property management and long-term rental apartments
business in the PRC during the year. Details of the principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the subsections headed “Market Review"”, “Business

Review”, “Financial Review"” ,”Environmental Policies and

Performance”, “Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations”
and “Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Outlook” of this annual
report , which form part of the contents of the business review of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 as contained in this

Report of the Directors.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 105 to 278.

An interim dividend of HK11 cents per ordinary share was paid on 8
October 2020. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK18 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 30
June 2021 subject to approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of factors
including our earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to the approval of
our shareholders. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any given year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, perpetual
capital instruments and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on pages 279 to
280. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and
15 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the properties under development of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the completed properties held for sale of the Group during
the year are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB2,295,623,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately RMB15,600,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, combined sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
total revenue for the year. Combined purchases from the Group'’s five
largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Chen Yuanlai
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok
Mr. Huang Youquan
Mr. Wong Lun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting, one third of the directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest in
office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. There are no provisions relating to
retirement of directors upon reaching any age limit.

Accordingly, Mr. Chen Yuanlai, Mr. Huang Youquan and Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all the three
independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report
still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 52 to 59 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, Mr. Chen Yuanlai and Mr. Cheng Hiu
Lok, being executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 5
February 2010. Mr. Huang Youquan, being an executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term from 1
May 2011 to 4 February 2013. Mr. Wong Lun, being an executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term from 1 March 2017 to 29 February 2020. Each of their service
contracts is renewable automatically upon the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ written notice.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, being
independent non-executive Directors for an initial term of three years
commencing from 6 January 2010. Upon expiry of the initial term, the
Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, for their
appointment as independent non-executive Directors for a term of
three years commencing from 6 January 2013 to 5 January 2016,
which is renewable automatically thereafter for successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party
giving not less than two months’ written notice and the retirement by
rotation requirement in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company and the Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee oversees the overall remuneration
policy and structure of the Group. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits. The remuneration policy
is reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level.

The authority of the Board of Directors to determine directors’ fees
are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. The
emoluments payable to the Directors are determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the transactions set out in note 45 to the financial statements
and the transaction specified in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” in this section, no Director nor a connected entity of a
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company being in
force.

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS EZE=E=ZNFETHAEREMD -

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, R A £ Bo A8 1 R B # 2 MK
UNDERLYING SHARES, AND DEBENTURES =}

At 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the R-ZE-—ZTE+—-A=+—H BEHHTEIT
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, HBAEBRAAFTSHBEZB (TR EHFL

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated — ERE {§HIZE XV 2170 ([ FH R EAEIEH])) %
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and {5 « }HEAR D REREZED - HEHREEFS KE
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required — E{&HIE 352 EAR A FIA TR EHELMES
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as  si iR IFIZXEST AIIZEB AN AN 7] R & 7B B 2 BTy
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock  #z:INEAEIT :

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of the Company: NARANTEBIR (RG] BFE -

Interest in Shares

R
Percentage
Total of the
Interest of Number of Company'’s
Beneficial Controlled Shares Held Issued Share
Name of Director ESpP Owner Corporation or Interested Capital

R MAAQFCRT
ERAA SEGEEERS ZBRHBE  RANEDL

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (“Mr. Wong") E#8F5 % & ([Z5 4 ) - 2,113,000,000  2,113,000,000 50.05%
(Note 1) (BifzE1)

Mr. Chen Yuanlai ("Mr. Chen”) BRI REE (TFREH]) 20,000,000 230,230,000 250,230,000 5.93%
(Note 2) (FizE2)

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok (“Mr. Cheng")  EBEE4&s04 ([ #0504 |) - 230,230,000 230,230,000 5.45%
(Note 3) (Fifz£3)
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

EEEWE

RARRBRENTR

Number of Share Percentage

Options Directly of the Company'’s

Name of Director = Beneficially Owned Issued Share Capital
EEERRH EARARE LT

ZBEREHE BRANE DL

Mr. Huang Youquan =R A 16,000,000 0.38%

Note 1: These 2,113,000,000 Shares comprised 1,652,540,000 Shares registered in
the name of Newup Holdings Limited (“Newup”), 230,230,000 Shares
registered in the name of East Waves Investments Limited (“East Waves")
and 230,230,000 Shares registered in the name of Keen Century
Investments Limited (“Keen Century”). Mr. Wong held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century and
was deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 2,113,000,000 Shares
held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century pursuant to the SFO.

Note 2: These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Rising Trade
Holdings Limited (“Rising Trade”). Mr. Chen held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Rising Trade and was deemed to be interested in the
230,230,000 Shares held by Rising Trade pursuant to the SFO.

Note 3: These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Wealthy Gate
Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Gate”). Mr. Cheng held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Wealthy Gate and was deemed to be interested in
the 230,230,000 Shares held by Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BEE1 : 3%22,113,000,000 % B% 17 B2 38 DA 37 A 42 AR B BR
AR)([#T A ) & E 7 A 1,652,540,000 % A%
7 AEBREERAT([EE)BHEZIHN
230,230,000 i & 1n R AR E G R A E ([
#]) 4% 5 & 50 #9230,230,000 BEAX 15 © = 5 A4
BAEHE REMRBHENZHDEBITRA
I IRIRFE 5 K B E KPR AR S BT SE
REREMIFER4ET2,113,000,000 A ©

MIaE2 © 72230,230,000 8B A B BB R AR ([
BNEBREFL BREEFAESENDHE #HT
RA - Bt IREES R A EAIEEAEES
B# A1 230,230,000 XA °

MI7E3 © 7%230,230,00088 B0 A S EIERBR AR ([E
ENEBRER - BEAFEEENE DT
IR - EUL IR IR E %&Hﬁiﬂlﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁa
FHI5H /230,230,000 A B

PR EXFAEEIN  RZBBF+ _A=+—
B ARAMESFLATIRTRAEETTRAN
NESEBBEENRD - BN LEEE
A NRIERE S R RDISE 352 R AR
ATHFENECMECIREZEETRIZBEBM
ARRREBBIANER SRR
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Mr. Chen and Mr. Cheng exercised 20,000,000 and 20,000,000 share
options during the year, details of which are included in the section
headed “Report of the Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this
annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted to
any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, nor
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2018 (the
“2018 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The participants of the 2018 Scheme include any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of any member
of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group.

The 2018 scheme became effective on 23 April 2018 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of
10 years up to 22 April 2028.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at 23 April 2018, being the
adoption date of the 2018 Scheme, i.e. 382,384,000 shares
(representing approximately 9.06% of the total number of issued
shares as at the date of approval of this annual report), unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to refresh the
10% limit, provided, inter alia, that the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the number
of shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options granted to each eligible participant in
the 2018 Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval at a general meeting. Share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 5
business days from the date of delivery of the offer letter, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, which period may commence from the date of the offer
of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the grant of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the 2018 Scheme as to the value of the share
options granted are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements.
The values of share options calculated using the binomial model are
subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent
limitations of the model itself. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to
the variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair
value of an option.

At the time of grant of the share options, the Company may specify
any minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.
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During the year, details of movements in the share options under the

RAFEER  RE-Z— \FA2MRLEER

EEEWE

2018 Scheme were as follows: BEHEEFEBO T
Weighted Average
Outstanding Closing Price
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed at Exercise Immediately
Category and at 1 January during during during during 31 December Price hefore the Date(s)
Name of Grantee 2020 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020 per Share  Date of Grant Exercise Period of Exercise
RZB2BE R-B-BE RERRRE
-A-8 tZB=+-A EE L
REABARER HRGE ERRH QTR EmH EREN HATE BROKE RELAH 8 FamE
Directors
g%
Mr. Chen 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 - = = HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 344
11 December 2028
[t 18EL ZE-N “R-EELA-AE
+-A+zA 2 \FTZAT-
Mr. Cheng 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 - = = HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 353
11 December 2028
i3 18ET ZT-N\E “TCRELA-BR
t-AtzA ZECNETZAT-
Mr. Huang Youguan 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 -
11 December 2028
EfiErE 18%T ZE-N\E “ECRELA-RE
t=AtzH B \FTIAT-
Sub-total 56,000,000 - 40,000,000 - - 16,000,000
Nt
Employees of 135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July2019to -
the Group 11 December 2028
F5EET BB 23\ “F-NFtR-BE
+=A+=R “ECN\E+ZAT-
135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 =
11 December 2028
18T ZE-)\E “RoRFLA-BE
t-AtzA 2o \EtZAt-H
Sub-total 270,000,000 - - - - 270,000,000
Nt
326,000,000 - 40,000,000 - - 286,000,000

Total

hon

During 2018, the Company granted 382,000,000 share options under

the 2018 Scheme to the Group’s employees (including Directors). As
at 31 December 2020, the Company had 286,000,000 share options
(31 December 2019: 326,000,000 share options) outstanding under
the 2018 Scheme, which represented approximately 6.77% of the

total number of issued shares as at the date of approval of this annual

report.

—F-N\F - ARFRE-_T - N\FHERE

382,000,000 B EFAEEE T (BREE
Z-ZF+-A=+—8 FAF
B = Z — N\ % 5t 2 A 286,000,000 ( ==
—hE+=A=+—H : 326,000,000 A% i %

) R

W) M ARITEE 2 BB E - (ERAFRALEZ B
B BEITIRDAREN6.77% °
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries nor contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business whether or not for provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions: A :
Number of Percentage of
Capacity and Shares the Company’s
Nature of Held or Issued Share
Name Interest Interested Capital
HHR FrEEsR HAERT BT
£ EmME BERGOEE RAMBE DL
Newup (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,652,540,000 39.15%
A (M) E=AA
East Waves (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
= (fEE) BEmEAA
Keen Century (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
st (Mt 1) EmEa A
Rising Trade (Note 2) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
8 (7t 2) E=AA
Wealthy Gate (Note 3) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
=& (fFE3) BEmEAA

Note 1: Each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century was wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong; accordingly, Mr. Wong was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Wong was the sole director of Newup, East

Waves and Keen Century.

Note 2: Rising Trade was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Chen; accordingly,
Mr. Chen was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Rising Trade
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Chen was the sole director of Rising Trade.

Note 3: Wealthy Gate was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Cheng;
accordingly, Mr. Cheng was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Cheng was the sole director of

Wealthy Gate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other

than a Director or chief executive of the Company, whose interests

are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”

above, had registered an interest or short position in the Shares and

underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Mz : A RERBUERELERERA RIE
Hit - RIBEEHFRPEGD - ZAEWRRSE
BHA RERBUSENRD - HALERH
F REREUEHE—ESE -

W2 BEEHMRELCEZEHEERZEH Bt - BIEE
HFREEEG  RAEHEAEEEEREN
fR1D - BRECEREENH—EFS -

MiFE3 : BEEAESEE2EEARIEH Bt RIEE
HRHEE - BEERELEREEFAN
Befp - MELREEMHE—EE -

Br EXCATHEBEE I N2 :;EJr A
=+—HB BEAT(BRARREFHEET
A BLASN - H Az Eﬁﬁ"b_Té%&Ex
TTIRABRIRG - BN REEE R X
KEIEHR)EARTRG REBROPE
REBRERARABRERE SR BAEKOE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements, certain related
party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14 March
2018, pursuant to an agreement (the “2018 March Facility
Agreement”) dated 14 March 2018 entered into by and among, inter
alia, the Company as borrower, certain of its subsidiaries as original
guarantors, and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant
to the Company a HK$3,172,100,000 and US$9,000,000 dual
tranche term loan facility (the “2018 March Facility”) to refinance
existing financial indebtedness and finance the general corporate
funding requirements of the Group.

The 2018 March Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation of the 2018
March Facility is made under the 2018 March Facility Agreement, and
is guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 October
2018, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (the
“2018 October Bank Facility Letter”) issued by a bank dated 22
October 2018 granting a term loan (the “2018 October Bank Facility”)
in the amount of up to HK$390,000,000 to finance or partly refinance
the existing indebtedness of the Group and to finance the general
corporate funding requirement of the Group.

The 2018 October Bank Facility is for a term of 36 months
commencing from the date of the first drawdown.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6
September 2019, pursuant to an agreement (the “2019 Facility
Agreement”) dated 6 September 2019 entered into by and among,
inter alia, the Company as borrower, certain of its subsidiaries as
original guarantors, and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed
to grant to the Company a HK$516,000,000 and US$180,000,000
dual tranche term loan facility (the “2019 Facility”) to refinance
existing financial indebtedness of the Group and finance the general
corporate funding requirements of the Group.

The 2019 Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation of the 2019
Facility is made under the 2019 Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 January
2020, by an agreement dated 2 January 2020 (the “2020 January
Facility Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Sleek Time
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower,
and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant to the
borrower a term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar
equivalent of RMB560,000,000 (the “2020 January Facility”).

The 2020 January Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation of the 2020
January Facility is made under the 2020 January Facility Agreement,
and is guaranteed by the Company and the Sleek Time Limited’s other
shareholders on a several basis.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 July 2020,
by an agreement dated 8 July 2020 (the “2020 July Facility
Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Best Access
International Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as borrower, and a bank, the bank has agreed to grant to the
borrower a term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar
or United states dollar equivalent of up to RMB400,000,000 (the
“2020 July Facility”) to, amongst others, finance the repayment of
shareholders’ loan owed by the borrower’s indirect holding company.

The 2020 July Facility is for a term of three years commencing from
the date on which the first utilisation of the 2020 July Facility is made
under the 2020 July Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the
Company and Best Access International Limited’s other shareholder
on a several basis.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
November 2020, by an agreement dated 26 November 2020 (the
“2020 November Facility Agreement”) entered into by and between
Bohai International Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as borrower and Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender,
the Lender has agreed to grant to the borrower a term loan facility in
an aggregate of US$50,000,000 (or its Hong Kong dollars equivalent)
and which may, subject to the approval of the Lender in its sole and
absolute discretion, be increased by an aggregate amount of up to
US$40,000,000 upon the request of the borrower in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the 2020 November Facility Agreement
(the “2020 November Facility”).

The 2020 November Facility is for a term of three years and six
months commencing from the date on which the first utilisation of
the 2020 November Facility is made under the 2020 November Facility
Agreement, and is guaranteed by the Company and the Bohai
International Investment Limited’s wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March
2021, pursuant to an agreement (the “2021 Facility Agreement”)
dated 22 March 2021 entered into by and among, inter alia, the
Company as borrower, certain of its subsidiaries as original
guarantors, and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant
to the Company a HK$351,000,000 and US$342,500,000 dual
tranche term loan facility (the “2021 Facility”) to refinance existing
financial indebtedness of the Group and fund payment of any fees,
costs and expenses payable by the Group in connection with the 2021
Facility Agreement and other related documents.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The 2021 Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation of the 2021
Facility is made under the 2021 Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Each of the 2018 March Facility Agreement, the 2018 October Bank
Facility Letter, the 2019 Facility Agreement, the 2020 January Facility
Agreement, the 2020 July Facility Agreement, the 2020 November
Facility Agreement and the 2021 Facility Agreement contain a
requirement that Mr. Wong, a controlling shareholder of the
Company and an executive Director, and his family members (together
with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”), (a) must remain as the single
largest shareholder of the Company; (b) must hold legally and
beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% (under the 2020 July Facility
Agreement, the 2020 November Facility Agreement and the 2021
Facility Agreement only) or 40% (under the rest of the agreements) or
more of all classes of the Company’s voting share capital and/or must
directly or indirectly control (as defined in the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers) the Company; and (c) Mr. Wong or a
member of the Wong Family must remain as the chairman of the
Board of the Company throughout the respective life of the 2018
March Facility, the 2018 October Bank Facility, the 2019 Facility, the
2020 January Facility, the 2020 July Facility, the 2020 November
Facility and the 2021 Facility. A breach of such requirements will
constitute an event of default or (as the case may be) mandatory
prepayment event under the 2018 March Facility Agreement, the
2018 October Bank Facility Letter, the 2019 Facility Agreement, the
2020 January Facility Agreement, the 2020 July Facility Agreement,
the 2020 November Facility Agreement and the 2021 Facility
Agreement, and as a result, the 2018 March Facility, the 2018
October Bank Facility, the 2019 Facility, the 2020 January Facility, the
2020 July Facility, the 2020 November Facility and the 2021 Facility
will be liable to be declared immediately due and payable.

As at the approval date of this report, Mr. Wong and his associates in
aggregate own approximately 50.05% of the voting share capital of
the Company.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement —
Outlook” for an indication of the likely future development in the
Group's business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWS

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

Set forth below were the details of the changes in the information of
the directors of the Company since the publication of the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020:

FRERE

UTRARRBEZZ-_EFAA=1THILEX
BEANTRAREEME  ARREFEAED
EVEEARTENR

Name of director

EspR

Mr. Lu Hong Te

BB E

Mr. Dai Yiyi

BI—kE

Save for the information disclosed above, there is no information
required to be set out in this annual report pursuant to the

Details of the change
BEFHE

The withdrawal of the listing of the shares of Capxon International Electronic Company
Limited (stock code before the withdrawal of listing: 0469) from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, of which Mr. Lu had been serving as an independent non-executive director,
became effective on 23 October 2020.
BAEREBYIATESNINENRBERE FAR AR (BEE EmATAIRERSE -
0469) WEHERMAETBMI AN LT R -TE_TF+A-t=H&EK-

Mr. Dai was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Guangdong-Hong
Kong Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited (stock code: 1396), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 March 2021.
HAXE T —F=-ATNBEEZEABBHIMETA
(BRHRHR - 1396) KIB FENITESE ©

BB RRERAR

B EXPTIEMERSIN - RIE LT HRRNE
1351B() RV AR TE - AF I | ERA

requirements under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EY::

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China SCE
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 105 to 278, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BIET R S

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
REEEZERARAT I —T_TFFR

BHRENEZERARAFAZERR
(RESHBITMALAERAA)

FAs =T F IR

RE FRSREBEAMANERAE - RAY
ARG EMBRENETRAEZNER -5
LEHEAEHFAMBRRBEETELL
RERNER TETREN  RAITHELSE
RREEBNER - ZME TS RERTF
SENA] FE S BV R B AL BB R e

BPCKEIT T AREEHENG Tt 56
HEALENEEBNBEANEE - BIRREE
PR E S RMERN AT - HEM - AT
A TERRATRAREFENGREVBRRE
RERRR BRI R T A& AT O BAHIR FF » BAPIBTT
EAIEFNER  BREEHE TARRENFR
FRITHORR - RS M RAEBERES

TREHETER-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

B M A B EN RS

BHhREEZERERAFZERR
(RESHBEMALAERAF)

FRET =R (®)

HARETEE

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group has various investment properties in Mainland
China. Such investment properties are measured at fair value
and the aggregate carrying amount of these investment
properties was approximately RMB29.3 billion as at 31
December 2020.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the investment
properties. To support management’s determination of the fair
value, the Group engaged external valuers to perform
valuations on the investment properties at the end of the
reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of
the fair value of investment properties are included in notes 3,
4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuers. We also involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us to assess the methodologies and assumptions
adopted in the valuation for estimating the fair value of the
investment properties, or compared prices of recent
transactions of comparable properties to benchmark the fair
value of the investment properties held by the Group on a
sampling basis.

REMEQ RERNMGE

EEBEPEANMEEZERENE - ZEREY
ERANENE MUESEREVER_FT_ZTF
TZA=1T—BNREAENSARKE 2938

BEEREEREMENAAER  AEHEKRM
AERFE - RBHEREEBEEANE S EEERK
HEHRE BN ERMALHIREYRETHRE -

REMERAARBNGAASHBRRLEEZED BIEE
AT TRRMIFES 4 & 15 ¢

RREASHEFTTROMESN

RMPEFEEEMOEHRNL B ERED - B
MEXRAMEEER BB R A EERBETRED
ERARENRERMRANTEZRBRIZEMS
FHAMENSOIXNRZE  IREVELAENS
BB H RO

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
REEEZERAERAT I —T_TFFR




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 HEN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
50.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BIET R S

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 HEN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chi Kit.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBRmkHEMEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2020 &E — T - F+— A =+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E2-% T NF
Notes RMB*000 RMB'000

i & AR®TRT ARKBTE

REVENUE &3 6 32,572,605 21,369,802
Cost of sales SHE KA (24,708,788)  (15,477,931)
Gross profit EH 7,863,817 5,891,871
Other income and gains N NS 6 1,252,155 1,155,838
Changes in fair value of investment REMEAAEEE)
properties, net FER 15 596,565 1,404,861
Selling and marketing expenses SHE REHAX (758,913) (516,031)
Administrative expenses TBRX (2,094,020) (1,616,310)
Other expenses HEmAx (255,414) (92,243)
Finance costs B 5 & A 7 (682,775) (528,142)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE T 5113518 % A1) J B 18
Joint ventures EERNTA 607,657 181,599
Associates ik /NG| 33,975 (27,168)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A E R 8 6,563,047 5,854,275
Income tax expense FIERE X 11 (2,117,421) (1,830,809)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 4,445,626 4,023,466
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Ht2EEA(FE)
INCOME/(LOSS):
Other comprehensive income/(loss) e rRERREN EE
that may be reclassified to BaEmMEMEERA
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (Es18)
Share of other comprehensive JEIh & & AR EM
income/(loss) of joint ventures 2EKA(EE) 10,981 (97)
Share of other comprehensive FE(RESE = A A H A
income of associates 2EKA 32 8
Exchange differences on translation MEINETFRINE X Z R
of foreign operations 1,219,091 (307,848)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ RIgEAER BB EH DEE
that may be reclassified to profit or BEmEMEEBR A (BE)
loss in subsequent periods HEE 1,230,104 (307,937)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREMEZERA(BE)
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 1,230,104 (307,937)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZEBAERE
FOR THE YEAR 5,675,730 3,715,529
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBEmHEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 &E — T —ZTF+ - A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—t
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5E AR¥T T ARETIT
Profit attributable to: T3 & EEGRF :
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE Y =N 3,803,238 3,510,045
Holders of perpetual capital instruments sk A B4R T E#H A - 35,408
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M 7 642,388 478,013
4,445,626 4,023,466
Total comprehensive income THEIBEGEZEEA
attributable to: 4EEE -
Owners of the parent BRAREA A 4,957,948 3,229,686
Holders of perpetual capital instruments kK A EAR T E#&HH A - 35,408
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS M 7 717,782 450,435
5,675,730 3,715,529
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B ATIZEREZRIZEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FEESRER
OF THE PARENT 13
Basic R RMB A R # RMB AR
90.6 cents7  84.9 cents 73
Diluted By RMBAR¥  RMBARK

89.1 cents

83.4 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

E BISIR R

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—B= —NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt aE ARETT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment I EYS &L 14 827,345 827,422
Investment properties B 15 29,329,219 22,631,743
Intangible asset mEE 17 2,986 3,153
Properties under development ERERPYE 18 9,852,502 13,248,794
Contract in progress ERETIRRAR 19 345,518 343,244
Investments in joint ventures EAE\%’R_JEI’\J&%T 20 13,741,153 8,863,038
Investments in associates AL N BIRIRE 21 899,806 1,036,532
Prepayments and other assets AR REREMEE 24 3,107,817 4,969,729
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIAE E 32 981,237 714,805
Total non-current assets FMBEERE 59,087,583 52,638,460
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BRERAYE 18 64,671,346 49,136,052
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEE SR 22 7,775,568 8,021,749
Trade receivables B 5 IR 23 241,493 782,142
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE « HADEUERIE
other assets EMEE 24 9,398,292 8,449,634
Financial assets at fair value through BARENEBEEE A
profit or loss BN e & E 26 816,687 665,070
Due from related parties FEUR RE 5 5RIE 25 3,512,370 4,379,165
Prepaid income tax SEANERE 1,711,340 1,411,122
Restricted cash XREIHR 2 27 4,305,393 4,297,558
Pledged deposits BEHEAER 27 679,283 450,253
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEY 27 18,415,066 19,150,849
Total current assets MENE EMAR 111,526,838 96,743,594
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—=- — &
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5E ARET R ARETIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Trade and bills payables B EMNFEREE 28 11,806,110 14,959,698
Other payables and accruals HAth R IB R ERTE A 29 13,811,236 12,433,555
Contract liabilities SRAaE 29 45,695,562 34,902,065
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMER
other borrowings 30 9,390,257 8,858,490
Senior notes and domestic bonds BREERNIBEANES 31 4,449,796 3,436,692
Due to related parties FEfHRRE 5 28 25 5,346,192 7,505,159
Tax payable PR IE 3,554,757 2,953,045
Total current liabilities ME B ERRE 94,053,910 85,048,704
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETHE 17,472,928 11,694,890
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBERE
LIABILITIES 76,560,511 64,333,350
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMER
other borrowings 30 16,285,355 12,401,766
Senior notes and domestic bonds BREERNIBEANES 31 16,437,468 17,380,134
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 279,697 186,421
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIAERE 32 4,344,758 4,026,165
Provision for major overhauls NI 33 60,619 52,677
Total non-current liabilities EREEELREE 37,407,897 34,047,163
Net assets BEFRE 39,152,614 30,286,187
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—B-% _"ThF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt aE AR%T R ARETT
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners of BARHEEABERES
the parent

Issued capital BETIRA 34 365,064 361,497
Reserves ] 36 20,633,339 17,217,513
20,998,403 17,579,010
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 18,154,211 12,707,177
Total equity AR 39,152,614 30,286,187

Wong Chiu Yeung
=S
Director

g

Huang Youquan
=i
Director

EBF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARKBER

Year ended 31 December 2020 &E — T —ZTF+ - A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREARLE
Share Statutory Property Share Exchange Perpetual Non-
Issued ~ premium Capital surplus Merger  revaluation Other opton  Hedging fluctuation  Retained cpital  controlling Total
@pitdl acount  reseve  fesee resene feseVe  feserves feseve fesee  resene profits Total instruments  interests equity
BET it EE ES BlE i3 XA AR
WA EER  AABR REEE AKEE EMEE  AbRERE R HARE KIRR  REE #  EXIA s Eag
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARMTR ARETT ARBTR ARMTT ARETT ARETR ARMTT ARBTL ARETT ARMTL ARBTT ARETR ARETI
(note 34) (note 36(b)  (note 36(c))  (note 36(d) (note 36(e))
(H34) (KigE36()) (WEE36(0) (Rfak36(d) (M3 361e)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-N5-F-8 353077 1726337 (266,975) 1,286932 30 82872 21M 1430 (44817)  (349,843) 12678074 15482,186 700,000 5957221 22,139407
Profit for the year ERER - - = = = = = = = - 3510045 3,510,045 35408 478013 4023466
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZE
forthe year: WA/ (558)
Share of other comprehensive oss EEAEAAR
of joint ventures 2EEE = = = = = = 97 = = = = (1) = = 9
Share of other comprehensive EERERDE D
income of associates 2ERA = = = = = - 8 - - - - 8 - - 8
Exchange differences on translation BERIEEYN
of foreign operations 353 = = = = = = = = - (280270) - (280270) - (7578)  (307,848)
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) FRRERA/(FE)
for the year et - - - - - - (89) - - (280270) 3510,045 3,229,686 35408 450435 3715529
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ FEARREAAZ S
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - 4275386 4275386
Dividends paid to non-controling THHBARELR
shareholders of subsidiaries BROKE - - - - - - - - - - - - - (205,000) (205,000)
Acquisition of non-controling interests  EZiERIER = - (5404%3) = = = = = = = - (540433) - W13 (1,013187)
Disposal of subsicaries HERBAR - - (wm) - - - - - - - - (loa) - s 80867
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) WERBAR (f38) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 912813 912813
Deemed acquistion of a subsidiary (note 38) B RME—RIHBAR (F38) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1099376 1,099,376
Acquistion of subsidiaries that WEFERIEEONBLA
are not a business (nofe 39) (Bis¥39) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 568392 5683%2
Redemption of perpetual capital instruments  BEIKABAT & - - - - - - - - - - - - (700,000) - (700,000)
Distrbuton to holders of perpetual AXAERIASEA
capital instruments Mk - - - - - - - - - - - - (35,408) - (35,408)
Share options exercised BifeERE 8420 24099 - - - - - (453) = = - 484 = - 4ss
2018 final dividend —E-\FRERE - (507878 - - - - - - - - - (507.878) = - (507,878)
2019 interim dividend “E-NERERE - 362770) - - - - - - - - - (362770) - - (362,770)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BRSETRUREE - - - (109324 - - - - - - 109324 - - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements  kiEks BB IRERH - - - - - - - B - - - B - - 9T
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+=A=1-A 361497 1,096,688  (847,849) 1,177,608* 30¢ 881 2083 83562¢  (44811)¢ (630,113 16,297,443* 17,579,010 - 12,707,177 30,286,187
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

e E:

£ 4=4

ﬁ mom

EJ B

Year ended 31 December 2020 E — T - TE+ A =+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAIREAEL
Share Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Capital surplus Merger  revaluation Other option Hedging fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
aapital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
oEf B EE FES BRE EX FER
e BEE  HAHE  BBER  AKEE  EGRF  RtER BE  HEEE  RBEE  REBEA #it BE EEEH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
(note 34) (note 36(b)) (note 36(c)) ~ (note 36(d)) (note 36(¢))
(I3 34) (isE36(b)  (WHEE36(0)  (Hfak36(d) (HizE36(e))
At 1 January 2020 R=%-2%-A-H 361497 1,096,688*  (847,849)*  1,177,608* 30% 82.872* 2,083* 83562+ (44811)*  (630,113)* 16,297,443* 17,579,010 12,707,177 30,286,187
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - - - - 3803238 3803238 642,388 4,445,626
Other comprehensive income EREHRERA -
for the year:
Share of other comprehensive EEASATEY
income of joint ventures 2EKA - - - - - - 10,981 - - - - 10,981 - 10981
Share of other comprehensive EERERRER
income of associates EELUN - - - - - - N - - - - N - )
Exchange differences on translation &5 ERH
of foreign operations EXZE - - - - - - - - - 1143697 - 1143697 7539 1,219,091
Total comprehensive income ENRENALE
for the year - - - - - - 1,013 - - 1143697 3803238 4957948 M8 56715730
Capital reduction of subsidiaries HBARZREHS - - - - - - - - - - - - (90,400) (90,400)
Capital contributon from FERBRARER
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 6009199 6,009,199
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y28 3k g - - (141,806) - - - - - - - - (741886)  (1,150954)  (1,892,800)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HENBAT (Hitd0) - - - - - - - - - - - - (1,953,354)  (1,953,354)
Acquisition of subsiciaries (note 38)  EEMB AR (Rit38) - - - - - - - - - - - - 100,980 100,980
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary ~ BEWE—BHEAR
(note 38) (Rf3t38) - - - - - - - - - - - - 1813781 1813781
Share options exercsed BfiltEkE 3567 10792 - - - - - () - - - 99,168 - 99,168
2019final dvidend “E-NERERE - (53%) - - - - - - - - - (238%) - (538%)
2020 interim dividend ZE-TRRERE - (393870) - - - - - - - - - (393870) - (393870)
Transfer to statutory suplus resenve ~ EBEEERAEE - - - A06977 - - - - - - (406977) - - -
Equity-ettled share option RiEEERRERS
arrangements - - - - - - - 249 - - - 149 - 249
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=1-H 365064  287,304*  (1,580,695)% 1,584,585* 30¢ 82.81* 13,006* 92,670 (44,811 513584+ 19,693,704* 20998403 18154211 39,152,614

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREEBRE ’\ﬂjﬁ.ﬁﬁéﬂ?ﬁ%ﬂjﬁiﬂiqﬂ/\ﬁﬁg
—NLFE: AR¥

RMB20,633,339,000 (2019: RMB17,217,513,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

20,633,339,0007t( — =
17,217,513,000 7T) E’J,ﬁ?é\.

G
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mERESRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE — T -~ TFE+ A =+—HItFE

2020 2019
—E-8 —NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BiaE AR®TR ARETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETDHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax P& F5 A1 Yo ) 6,563,047 5,854,275
Adjustments for: HTIIFIBELRE
Finance costs MIEER 7 682,775 528,142
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE T 51 B T8 5 A Mo 1S
Joint ventures YN (607,657) (181,599)
Associates /NG| (33,975) 27,168
Interest income IS N (259,249) (325,220)
Gain on disposal of items of HEMERREEE
property and equipment, net Wzt 558 6 (593) (251)
Gain on bargain purchase FEEREN WS 6, 38 (33,673) (564,349)
Gain on deemed acquisition of a 15 [3) Uk BE — 1 B BB A Rl Y Ui 26
subsidiary 6, 38 (35,031) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, HENBATNER,
net (Ug25) 558 6, 8, 40 216,790 (17,217)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeE AT 6 - (14,046)
Gain on disposal of associates HE RN RA IS 6 (2,000) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AAEEE (W) F5E
Derivative financial instruments JEEREROTAT A
— transactions not qualifying
as hedges 6 - (26,843)
Financial assets at fair value RAnETEBEZE)
through profit or loss AR RIEE 8 (199,663) 6,088
Remeasurement of investments in BHFTTERNAERRRIERE
joint ventures 6 (159,575) (47,023)
Premium paid on early redemption of IRRIELB L EEMNRE
senior notes 8 38,624 59,820
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYEK S
properties 6 (16,268) -
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEZRAABFEBEEE)
fair value through profit or loss SFABENESREERN K S 6 (2,316) -
Depreciation of property and equipment  #2 KR 1EITE 8, 14 53,732 47,957
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENITE 8, 14 55,454 47,898
Changes in fair value of investment KEMER T EEB)FE
properties, net 15 (596,565) (1,404,861)
Amortisation of an intangible asset EREEEE 8,17 167 166
Write down to net realisable value of BELEEERME
completed properties WIEZ A B0 FE
held for sale 8 32,493 39,035
Write down to net realisable value of BROPMEREE ] ETFEE
properties under development 8 194,515 -
Impairment of investments in associates ~ FAR & A T H) R & HRIE 8 - 32,423
Equity-settled share option expense REHE 4 B R AR RE R 8 21,429 93,776
5,912,461 4,155,339
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2020 &E — T - F+— A =+—HILFE

2020 2019
—B=-¥F C—ThF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt & AR¥TR ARETIT
Increase in properties under development 2% A ¥ % 12 N (39,031,804) (34,723,872)
Increase in contract in progress ERIEAREM 19 (2,274) (16,337)
Decrease in completed properties BIEHES ZRYER D
held for sale 24,172,885 15,249,000
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B oW FIER (3L h) 82,636 (380,357)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTERIE - HihEUerE R
other receivables and other assets HiBERLD,(380) 4,741,883 (2,966,296)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B S ERZE N ZEE N
payables CRd) (2,176,854) 6,696,429
Increase in other payables and accruals — EL i (< 7138 2 fE 51 & FB 42 N 3,048,250 849,362
Increase in contract liabilities SRIBEEM 4,498,021 7,705,846
Increase in provision for major overhauls, K& &% hn5 58
net 33 5,218 4,893
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & ELERE(FTE)RS 1,250,422 (3,425,993)
Interest received B FE 259,249 325,220
Interest paid BAFE (3,237,619) (2,520,268)
PRC corporate income tax paid B R B ETSEH (734,383) (798,326)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B 5 R B 4 s (E R (915,483) (668,953)
Net cash flows used in operating activities &4 EBFTAIR SR E %5 (3.377,814) (7,088,320)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ IE:@UH}E%%

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE — T -~ TFE+ A =+—HItFE

2020 2019
=R=F —TAhF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bi5E AR¥TR ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZDHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of BEMENZEER
property and equipment (74,618) (98,844)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMEREKMBIEE FBRIE
property and equipment 8,899 5,624
Additions to investment properties RIS B (1,021,612) (1,010,024)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEMSHIE
investment properties 72,952 -
Settlement of consideration payables HEEEMRE (255,200) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries G =PNG] 38 (115,170) (709,425)
Acquisition of subsidiaries that are U B IE % TS M E AT B A 7
not a business 39 (28,447) (681,435)
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 2RI BT E A Al 38 36,439 526,937
Disposal of subsidiaries T ENE A ] 179,417 465,360
Investments in joint ventures KENGE AT (5,892,660)  (1,459,138)
Proceeds from disposal of HE—H&aEQRMESHKRIE
a joint venture - 65,000
Dividend from joint ventures ENANETIE ) <N 439,765 5,608
Investments in associates FE R E N F] - (521,778)
Capital reduction of associates Bt N Az IR AR A 287,919 -
Proceeds from disposal of associates I E B & N B TS IR 147,000 =
Dividend from associates /N0 sy 196,000 24,616
Repayment from/(loans to) joint ventures & & /A 7] & Hi 2 A B 50E
and associates B (B3) 3,176,757 (2,815,441)
Purchase of financial assets at RBEAREFEAHE
fair value through profit or loss STAEGHNE/REE (30,461) (20,149)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZ AN E= B EEZEFZHT A
at fair value through profit or loss B e MEEMSRIA 50,918 =
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FE W B T 2R IE R D (32 0)
from related parties (36,310) 60,031
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZIRFIR SR A, () (7.835) 112,034
Increase in pledged deposits B IRTE SR IE N (229,030) (402,344)
Increase in time deposits with original REHBZR=EH 2
maturity over three months TE HATF 5138 N (1,224,000) =
Net cash flows used in investing activities & /EEFTHIIR GRS/ F58 (4,319,277) (6,453,368)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

%5: = Iﬁﬁuw%%

Year ended 31 December 2020 &E — T - F+— A =+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EB=-F —NFE
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5T AR%T R ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of senior BITEEEBERERES
notes and domestic bonds FT15 5838 7,877,677 9,633,385
Issuance costs of senior notes and {ﬁf‘ﬁmﬁ&iﬁﬁq%#%ﬁﬁﬂfi
domestic bonds (47,901) (102,266)
Redemption of senior notes BT, (3,464,250) (2,388,628)
Premium paid on early redemption IRAE R BB RE
of senior notes 8 (38,624) (59,820)
Repayment of domestic bonds EEBEANES (3.444,258) =
New bank and other borrowings HIERITREMER 20,970,092 16,422,709
Repayment of bank and other borrowings 1EiER1T R EMER (15,003,545)  (14,790,194)
Capital contribution from FEFE AR AR R & AN F R
non-controlling shareholders 6,009,199 4,275,386
Capital reduction of subsidiaries i) o (90,400) =
Advances from/(repayment to) JEIERR AR R BT (B
non-controlling shareholders (2,111,312) 524,798
Principal portion of lease payments S RHEERE M0 41 (55,160) (42,874)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B JEI AR e 25 (1,892,800) (1,013,187)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FEfTREE 5 e IEiEan, Op
related parties, net R (2,158,967) 67259144
Distribution to holders of perpetual MXKABEARTEEE AR
capital instruments - (35,408)
Redemption of perpetual capital BRKAEBEARTA
instruments - (700,000)
Proceeds from exercise of share options fﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂiéﬁﬁ’%%ﬁlﬁ 99,168 224,884
Dividends paid TR (917,306) (870,648)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AR B A B FEIE A AR R A IR B
shareholders of subsidiaries - (205,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities EEETEIR e RE R 5,731,613 17,132,281
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN REeRBELZEYE M ORD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HFHE (1,965,478) 3,590,593
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  F#E& MBS EEY
of year 19,150,849 15,515,314
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ERE BT L FEE
net 5,695 44,942
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAELHAESZEY
AT END OF YEAR 17,191,066 19,150,849
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEWERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BITSARR R TSI 23R &
the statement of financial position HeEEY 27 18,415,066 19,150,849
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B BARIBBEZR=ZEAZ
original maturity of over RASHE AR E BifF 51
three months when acquired (1,224,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ﬁﬂfﬁ/f/ﬁgﬁﬁﬁf\ I E K&
in the statement of cash flows Z(EBY) 17,191,066 19,150,849
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRk MRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRREEER
China SCE Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is REEeEEIERAER AR (AAR])ERM
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company SHEFMEKMY AERRER AT K
with limited liability. The registered office of the Company is A 7 ) 5 1 3% 55 B (i 72 Cricket Square,
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of the Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands o 7%
principal place of business of the Company in the People’s AERPEARKEFRE(HE]D) REH
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong are SCE Tower, MEELSEMEB AUt D R AR E EF
No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road, Honggjiao Business District, UL 1% @ BB R B& 1688 7F 2 5 B &
Shanghai, China; and Room 2801, Hysan Place, 500 Hennessy B K = Ko & 78 i 8 /& T JE 55 8 500 5% &
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, respectively. 1EES 2801 = °
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the FAN AR RERBAR (GFE [ AE
“Group") were principally engaged in property development, B TEERENEWEERE  WER
property investment, property management and project B ESHEREEER -
management in the PRC during the year.
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of EERE NARBNRRIERAR EH
the Company is Newup Holdings Limited, which is incorporated SERABER AR ZABNREBRZE
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). S(RERZHSE ) FMKL -
Information about subsidiaries Ve NGIE= ¢
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E-_ZEE+_-_A=+—HBHEHEBELRE
December 2020 are as follows: EXZMBARFBEHIET
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ML ERTRMRE NG 3
a8 HEMRER L RAE BEEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE A
Affluent Way International Limited ** BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
HREERERAR EBRAES 157 RAZER
SCE Intelligent Commercial Cayman Islands US$1,000 - 75 Investment holding
Management Holdings Limited REHE 1,000%7T REER
("SCECM")
RERESERBERERAR
(ThEEmE )
South China Group (H.K.) Limited #* Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
mBESE(FR)BRAAS B 1007%87T RAZEK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRkEEER@®
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEATER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E-ZEE+_A=1+—BEBELE
December 2020 are as follows: (Continued) EFXrERBATEIBEHINGOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
TR ERITRHBRE ANFERS
i MR E R BRAFE ERBEA TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE i
Xiamen Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.***  China HK$1,670,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Xiamen Zhongjun”) trading of construction
materials
EFRREEARAR FE 1,670,000,000/8 7 AR R
(EE) BRREHH
Shanghai Zhongjun Property Co., Ltd.**  China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
trading of construction
materials
LBRRELXBRAR w AR 100,000,0007C REZRK
BEREMK
Beijing Zhongjun Commercial China RMB 100,000,000 = 100 Property investment
Management Co., Ltd. **#
ERPHREEEEERAF ** H AR 100,000,000 NERE
Fujian Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.** China RMB1,000,000,000 - 100 Investment holding, property
development and
property investment
RETREXBR A H AR 1,000,000,0007 REZR  NEER
BOERE
Shanxi Yuanhong Real Estate China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
LB REFEHERERRARF H AR 100,000,0007C NEER
Quanzhou Puxi Third Property China RMB900,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Co., Ltd. ***# property investment
REMNTREE=REXERAR <+ H AR 900,000,000 NEBRIMERE
South Fujian Gold Coast Resort China RMB400,000,000 - 45°  Property development and
Co., Ltd. Shishi**# property investment
ARTEEELERERN # AR 400,000,000 7 NEERRRDERE
BRRAR
Shenzhen Pacific Prestige Real Estate China HK$160,000,000 - 95  Property development
Development Limited***
Rz R MEREBRAR <+ H 160,000,000 77T MEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRIREEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEATER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E-ZEFE+_-_A=1+—BEBELE
December 2020 are as follows: (Continued) BETXEMNBATEBEHIDT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
TR ERITRBRE AN
A% TR E XL BRAFE EREAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE ik
Tianjin Junkun Real Estate Development ~ China RMB300,000,000 - 100  Property development
Co., Ltd.**
AREMEHEREERAR it AR300,000,0007C NEER
Nanchang Junda Real Estate China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
HERERMEREER AR HE AR 100,000,0007C MEER
Shanghai Heng Zhi Property Co., Ltd.**  China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
LEEERMERRAR w AR 100,000,0007C MEER
Shanghai Junbo Real Estate China RMB209,000,000 - 100  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*"* property investment
HERBENEREERAR H AR 209,000,000 NEBRIMFRE
Shanghai Junming Real Estate China RMB1,062,500,000 - 100  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. ***# property investment
EREEEREHRAR <+ HE AR 1,062,500,0007T NEERIMERE
Nan'an Junhong Real Estate China RMB 150,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd**
BB ERHERERRAR HE AR 150,000,0007C MEER
Hangzhou Junjin Industrial China RMB363,787,500 - 96  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
MMEREXERERAF H AR 363,787,500 7T NEBRIMFRE
Xuzhou Junjia Real Estate China US$3,500,000 - 96  Property development
Development Co., Ltd***#
BN EEHEREBRAR H 3,500,000 7T NEER
Shanghai Zhongjun Chuangfu China RMB1,800,000,000 - 61  Property investment
Real Estate Co., Ltd.***#
LEPRAERMERRAR < H AR 1,800,000,0007C NERE
Shanggiu Zhongyu Property Co., Ltd.**  China RMB200,000,000 - 100  Property development
BEmPHERERAR HE AR 200,000,0007C MEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

NalREBER #)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E-ZEE+_A=1+—BEBELE

December 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

BXEMBARFERIIMOT - (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ML, BRTRAR QAR ES
i MR E R BRAFE BRADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HH# &
Suzhou Junyuan Real Estate China RMB21,085,900 - 95  Property development
Development Co. Ltd.**
NS REHEREBRAR # ARH21,085,900 7T NEER
Chongging Junhuigongchuang Real China RMB360,000,000 - 47°  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.*#
ERFRELARIFHEREERAR*  HE AR 360,000,0007C NEER
Qingdao Zhong Yutai Property China RMB52,241,100 - 96  Property development
Co., Ltd.**
BEERRRERERAF HE AR%52,241,100 ¢ NEER
Xiamen Junyou Real Estate Development  China RMB2,000,000,000 - 96  Property development
Co., Ltd.****
("Xiamen Junyou”)
EFREEEREHRAR <+ H AR 2,000,000,0007 NEER
(TEFi8A]D)
Tianjin Junyang Real Estate China RMB729,943,350 - 95  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
RERGRHEREERAR w AR729,943,350 7 ESE
Tianjin Bijun Real Estate China RMB30,000,000 - 48°  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
REEERMEREERAR H AR#30,000,0007 NEER
Suzhou Junda Real Estate China RMB1,247,387,740 - 91  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
FMEERHEREERAR w AR1,247,387,740 T MEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRIREEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E-ZEFE+_-_A=1+—BEBELE
December 2020 are as follows: (Continued) BETXEMNBATEBEHIDT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
TR ERITRBRE ANFERS
A% TR E XL BRAFE EREAL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE iF
Xuzhou Junxing Real Estate China RMB1,437,000,000 - 46°  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
("Xuzhou Junxing”)
FMEEEERERR AR H AR 1,437,000,0007 NEER
(TRIMERE])
Shangrao Junmao Real Estate China RMB30,000,000 - 96  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
TETRKEHERRBRAR it AR #30,000,0007T NEER
Chongging Sanchengyihui China RMB1,000,000,000 - 50® Property development
Enterprise Co., Ltd.**
("Chongging Sanchengyihui”)
BERHnEERERAR HE AR 1,000,000,0007T EE
([EE=%nE])
Xiamen Junming Real Estate China RMB3,000,000,000 - 39¢  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.***#
("Xiamen Junming"”)
EFREEERERRAR < HE AR 3,000,000,0007T MEER
([ErIEE])
Fuzhou Junyue Real Estate China RMB10,000,000 - 99  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
BMEREEREERAR H ARH10,000,0007 NEBREMERE
Zhumadian Junxin Real Estate China RMB10,000,000 - 98  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
ESERSRHERRERAR HE AR 10,000,000 70 NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law
Registered as wholly-foreign-owned entities under the PRC law
Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law

The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the best
effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names only for the purpose of these financial
statements as no official English names have been registered.

At 31 December 2020, the equity interests of these companies were
pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings of
RMB5, 143,806,000 (2019: RMB5,649,205,000) granted to the Group
(note 30(b)).

As at 31 December 2020, the equity interests of these companies
were pledged under share mortgage to the holders of the senior
notes of US$600,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7.45% due in April
2021 (the “Senior Notes due in April 2021"); the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.875% due in March 2022 (the
“Senior Notes due in March 2022"); the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7.25% due in April 2023 (the
“Senior Notes due in April 2023"); the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7.375% due in April 2024 (the
“Senior Notes due in April 2024") and the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 (the
“Senior Notes due in May 2025") (note 31).

Certain companies are accounted for the subsidiaries of the Group
based on the factors explained in note 4 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

1.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

NalREBER #)

MEARER (&)

RZE_ZEF+_A=+—HEBELE
EEXEZHEBARFBEIHIOT « (&)

* RBHBEDEEEMAERET AR
= RIBPFEDAREMAIEEEAT
ok RIBRBUAREM AT INEEDRE

# ZERBRARNEXEREAR AR EE
BRZENERREMBRANE HER
BREEPXER  RESXWEZME TR
X -

" R-B-_TF+-_A=+—0 ' Z52A
ZRAERDIEHEURER TASENS
TFR17 R EAth B3 A R #5,143,806,000
T(ZZE—NF : AR¥S5,649,205,0007T)
(Hft3E 30(b)) °

z R-ZZB-_TF+-_A=+—0 ' Z52AA
WERAESEEATELZEEBAES
KT = —F M A E 54 600,000,000 3
TL7.45% BAEEE ([ Z T ——400 A 35
BEZER]) R-ZT=-=F=AFHH
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T__FE-AIBMELEER]  R=Z
— =49 A E|HI89500,000,000%7T7.25%
BEER(ZZ-_=€1AIHELE
BD R-_ZT_MmMFMAIHH
500,000,0003 Jt7.375% 18 %&£ Z#E ([ =
ToMENANBHELEZEE]) ER T
— A% A A F|Hj#9500,000,000 3 7T 7%
BEER(—_E_RERAFHELRE
B ) K93 (FEE31) o

°  ETARRBMBRENTFEROE
ETRRARAEEOIBAT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
("RMB’000") except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has fully assessed and adopted, to the extent that is

relevant to the Group, the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

Covid-19-related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Definition of Material

HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set
of concepts for financial reporting and standard setting,
and provides guidance for preparers of financial
statements in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new
chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts
contained therein override the concepts or requirements
in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

()

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the issues affecting financial reporting in the period before
the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and
(iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMERRERNT Y

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework ?
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture #

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts’

(lassification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current ?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use ?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract ?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41 2

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a
gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
properties under development, completed properties held for
sale, contract in progress, deferred tax assets, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. T EZe:HEHE )
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties BER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ER—FWMBUATER IR AEREE
HIRAE T -
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@) ZAAETEAALHERKENBRER
family and that person: 8 MaZAL:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; ()  IEHlIsk LRI AL
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEMUAERNFE :
(i is a member of the key management personnel of (iy AAEELAEE QA
the Group or of a parent of the Group; MEEEEEXREMNEH—
BB
or 5%
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) ZHAEFETHIEHENERE :
conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBEAEBEER %8
group; 0] 4=VNCIiE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EERRE—EB(ES—
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow BEMNE AT B AFK
subsidiary of the other entity); CEL NG ) NG
BEQTA]
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iiy ZERBEAEEHRER—F=
same third party; FHEE AR
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —EABEAFE=7BENE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ERE ME—EBEBAE=

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZREBRBAAEENEAEER
benefit of employees of either the Group or an ERENEREESFmRX
entity related to the Group; S BERARAET S

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (i) ZERX()TTEEATES
person identified in (a); X HREIES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual

value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under Over the lease terms
finance leases

Buildings Over the lease terms

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

19% to 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Transportation equipment 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Changes in the values of revalued property and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the property revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

Over the remaining term of the lease
two to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term of the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as properties under development, they are subsequently
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with the Group’s policy for properties under
development.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of total land and construction costs attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or
by management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as completed properties held for sale, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the Group’s policy for completed
properties held for sale.

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession arrangement
with a government body in Quanzhou, the PRC, for the
operation and management of certain sports and recreation
facilities. The transactions related to such service concession
arrangement are accounted for by the Group as follows:

Consideration paid by the Group

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public services. The intangible asset (operating concession) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
“Intangible asset (other than goodwill)” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Service concession arrangement (Continued)
Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the sports and recreation
facilities to a specified level of serviceability.

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as a
condition of its licence. The obligations are (a) to maintain the
sports and recreation facilities it operates to a specified level of
serviceability and (b) to restore the sports and recreation
facilities to a specified condition before they are handed over to
the grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the sports
and recreation facilities, except for the upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for “Provisions” below.

Intangible asset (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
recognised in profit or loss in the period is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible asset (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Operating concession

Operating concession represents the right to operate certain
sports and recreation facilities and is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over
the period of the operating concession granted to the Group of
30 years.

Investment properties

Investment properties include both completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction.

Completed investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Investment properties under construction or development for
future use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to initial recognition,
at the end of the reporting period when the fair value can be
determined reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of a completed
investment property or an investment property under
construction are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
"Property and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property and equipment and depreciation” above.

When the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group's policy for “Investment properties”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and lease of
low value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonable certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Bt

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s current portion of lease liabilities were
included in other payables and accruals whereas the non-
current portion of lease liabilities were separately disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Lease in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. When the Group is an
intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a finance lease or
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating
lease.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

3 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment

under the general approach and they are classified within the

following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade

receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1T —

Stage2 —

Stage3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
accruals, amounts due to related parties, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and senior notes and domestic bonds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and domestic bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability
and early redemption option (which is not closely related to the
host contract) are classified separately into respective items on
initial recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and
early redemption option components are recognised at fair
value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are
allocated to the liability and early redemption components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the senior notes using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and
how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship
qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following
effectiveness requirements:

3 There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

o The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

3 The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the
net investment, are accounted for in a similar way to cash flow
hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to
the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised in profit or loss. On disposal
of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains
or losses recorded in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

3. FESHBEBE@®

FRiG® (&)

BEERBABTI ARG Z8
R M N IUBSERID -

o EEMBREIEE AL IEES
EHORGPREREE - BE
FBREMEL  ERRSRATF
ST MEHERRNERER
K

o HMEXRHBAR BEQRRGE
RAZBREERNERNE R EZR
meE @ EEZENEDEESAE
W BB ERERN ARG RA
BT EEM o

BB EETD A AR E K=
] RBAHRIEER R MERARE AR
BIENEEMER - BEVHEEE W
B LA B FE AR LA B R AT A0 G B
Z8 - ARPARBERMAEAHIERES
BOEEAEHEAR - ETIBERE
S

o HAHRERERABNETHIEA
BEDEE-RAFEXBHAHFHR
FRVIREREERBBEMEL -
ARR SR TEESFFELE
AP AR - &

o HMEXRHBAR BMEQRRGE
RAZBRERBNAIHIRE R 8
ms BERABEEENEREH
AR 5.5 57 7 BB 3 LA K2 i e
R B DA B R B B = RE AR T 5
RIS - 77 TRER »

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020

HREBMEZERERAR /I T -_TFFRH




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(@) Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b)  Rendering of services

Revenue from the provision of property management and
project management service is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

(c)  Land development

Revenue from land development is recognised at a point
in time, when the customer obtains control of the assets
and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income and facilities rental income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
REEEZERARAT I —T_TFFR

3.

\

T2

ml‘>

T BRI E ()

W s HERR ()

REFFERKKE(E)

(a)

(b)

VRHE

MERHEERSENERRBERTY
ENEREBEIOETERAREAN
SERANFER - A AW E
REZFHER

TEHIR

IR R E S A E E R IR
HEETHENUERERER - A
BEFRBE AR EB IR
BRIz o

(c) THFIE
THRAENRENEFPREEEXE
7 S A SR ER A AR - TR E
Al BRI BB B R

H Aty 3R R B W 55

& YA B 3R e AE & U DA B R Lt 71
ERHEFHARESR -

VS CRIES: L LSNP NN
HEANSTHBANERREBA -

Heto e A

R8I A SRS B0 - R B R 80K
5 A S BT B AT MRS R
KBS WAFRAER S BAEEESE
SEEES



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to a customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfer the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfer control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development and property and equipment, costs incurred to
fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all
of the following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future.

(¢)  The costs are expected to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs (Continued)

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Land development contract

The Group has entered into a land development contract (the
“Land Development Contract”) with the local government of
Nan’an City (the “Nan’an Government”), the PRC, to carry out
the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities on certain land
parcels in Nan‘an City.

Pursuant to the Supplemental Contract (as defined in note 19),
upon completion of the necessary construction and preparation
works of each land parcel, the Nan’an Government will pay the
Group the construction and other related cost plus a margin.
Such amount will be paid by the Nan‘an Government upon the
related land parcels to be sold by the Nan'an Government
through public auction.

Revenue from the Land Development Contract is recognised at
a point in time when the Nan‘an Government obtains control of
the assets and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, which occurs upon the
completion of related construction and preparation works as
well as the sales of the relevant land parcel. The timing of sales
of each land parcel by the Nan’an Government is uncertain and
out of the control of the Group.

Costs incurred by the Group in connection with the Land
Development Contract comprise the aggregate costs of
construction, materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowing funds during the period of development
and other costs directly attributable to such Land Development
Contract and are classified as “Contract in progress” before the
relevant land parcels are sold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Land development contract (Continued)

Contract in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
Group'’s revenue derived from the construction and preparation
work carry out less costs to completion and the costs to be
incurred in realising the revenue based on prevailing market
conditions.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (”Equity-Settled
Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 35 to the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. Where employees
leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be
used to reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension Scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Pension
Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under the Pension
Scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

Bt

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates operating outside the PRC are currencies other
than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is
made by management on determining whether a property is
designated as an investment property or a property held for
sale. The Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties. During
the course of construction, the related properties under
construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale
after its completion, whereas, the properties are accounted for
as investment properties under construction included in
investment properties if the properties are intended to be held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion
of the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at cost, while
the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to completed investment properties.
Investment properties, both under construction and completed,
are subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Valuation of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The estimated
net realisable value is the estimated selling price less selling
expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may
result in a provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale. Such provision requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to each phase are allocated to each
phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase as a
percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire project.
The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor area in
square metres sold during the year multiplied by the average
cost per square metre of that particular phase of the project.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Whether the presumption that investment properties
stated at fair value are recovered through sale is rebutted
in determining deferred tax

The Group has investment properties located in the PRC which
are measured at fair value. Investment property is property held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In considering
whether the presumption in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that an
investment property measured at fair value will be recovered
through sale is rebutted in determining deferred tax, the Group
has developed certain criteria in making that judgement, such
as whether an investment property is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time or through sale. The presumption is rebutted only in the
circumstance that there is sufficient evidence such as historical
transaction, future development plan and management’s
intention to demonstrate that the investment property is held
with the objective to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits over time, rather than through sale. Continuous
assessments on the presumption will be made by management
at each reporting date.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less
than majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls certain entities, even
though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights of these
entities, because the Group is entitled to appoint a majority of
directors in the board of directors and accordingly, the Group is
able to control and direct the financing and operating activities
of these entities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction, were
revalued at each reporting date during the year based on the
appraised market value provided by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
development, property investment, property management and
project management. For management purposes, the property
development and property investment businesses are monitored
as one operating segment on a project basis to allocate
resources and assess performance. For financial reporting
purposes, the property management segment and project
management segment are combined with the property
development and investment segment as its reported revenue,
reported results and assets are less than 10% of the
consolidated revenue, consolidated profit and consolidated
assets of the Group.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from each
product or service is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KREDHWER
(Continued)
The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely AEBEBREBIBEFHBRAEREER
from its operations in the PRC, and the non-current assets of PR ER  mAEBRR RS IER
the Group are substantially located in the PRC. BEE IR o
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December BHE_Z_ZF+_A=1+—HEZ-Z
2019, no revenue from transactions with a single external —jli‘?‘_ﬂ =+—HIEFEA  BE
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's total HE—INPEEMRX FHEENRAE R
revenue. EEBUAR 10% KA L -
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. W&
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBHUWZEDITIOT :
2020 2019
—E-®F  —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRE ARETE

Revenue from contracts with customers B & F &R KE

Sales of properties YIEIHE 31,553,911 20,452,820
Property management fees MEEEE 531,790 458,066
Project management income THE EERA 171,867 174,313
Revenue from other sources H b R E LB Wz
Gross rental income from investment RIEEYELEHETWER
property operating leases: HEWALLEE
Variable lease payments that do not T\E’Xi)&ﬁ“?‘é%ﬁ(‘iﬂ%ﬁ@
depend on an indexorarate A& BHEX 4,386 17,269
Other lease payments, including &Tﬁmgﬁﬂlﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂﬁgﬁ?ﬂ
fixed payments 310,651 267,334

32,572,605 21,369,802
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Yz« A Rz )
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFSEHWE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WaEDsFER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BT -—FTFf - H=+—HiF
FE
Property Project
Sales of management management
properties fees income Total
MEHEE WEEEE HAEERA k]

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARET:R

Timing of revenue recognition: Wi MEE

Goods transferred at a EE-—RREEEN
point in time =t 31,553,911 - - 31,553,911
Services transferred over time RIS RN IR TS - 531,790 171,867 703,657
Total revenue from contracts RERPAR
with customers Wasia%E 31,553,911 531,790 171,867 32,257,568
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZFE-—NF+_H=1—HI
FE
Property Project
Sales of management management
properties fees income Total
YEHE WEEEE EEEEKA B

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTR ARETE ARBTRL

Timing of revenue recognition: WE MR

Goods transferred at a EX—FREEEN
point in time EH 20,452,820 - - 20,452,820
Services transferred over time EEREEN R = 458,066 174,313 632,379
Total revenue from contracts RERFPAR
with customers WS 4a%E 20,452,820 458,066 174,313 21,085,199
176 China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020

HREEMZERERAT —T-_TFFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

6. Wz - EUlA Kz
REEFEFERMKE (&)

() WEDFER(E)

2020 2019
—EDEF —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Revenue recognised that was AREHEIARAEN
included in contract liabilities R
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sales of properties VIS 23,989,214 17,024,268
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEMT
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is AR ANEEE 4 & (T8 & Lt an
summarised below: T
Sales of properties Y E

The performance obligation is satisfied when the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property is
obtained by the purchaser.

Property management fees and project management
income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and short-term advances are normally
required before rendering the services. Management
service contracts are for periods of one year or less, and
are billed based on the time incurred.

The amount of unsatisfied performance obligation
principally comprises the balance of contract liabilities,
which are expected to be recognised in one to three years
as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

6.

N

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wia - HAbU A MW Es )
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFSEIHWE &)
(Continued)
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt EE AR%T R AR®ETT
Other income and gains Hig A & W
Bank interest income RITF B U A 190,897 206,298
Consultancy service income BB AR 75 WA 220,084 66,809
Interest income on amounts due YA & R El IR A A E A
from joint ventures 68,352 118,922
Forfeiture income on deposits received 8 Uti% £ KU A 28,782 15,522
Gain on disposal of items of HEERRFHER e F5E
property and equipment, net 593 251
Fair value gain on derivative financial  JE¥HHRESRIDTA TAARE
instruments — transactions not Wz
qualifying as hedges - 26,843
Fair value gain on financial assets BASEFE BEEBTA
at fair value through profit or loss BRI EENANE
BB eas 199,663 -
Fair value gain on remeasurement of ~ E¥fstE8NA L AT
investments in joint ventures ®E 2 A ERE 159,575 47,023
Gain on bargain purchase ABEYEERN W 38 33,673 564,349
Gain on deemed acquisition of 15 [3) Uk BE — 1 B BB R Rl Ui 25
a subsidiary 38 35,031 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net &M B A 7 /AU FEE 40 - 17,217
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeE QAT - 14,046
Gain on disposal of associates e AN ol 2,000 -
Gain on disposal of investment HEREY RS
properties 16,268 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HER AR ETE HHEE)
fair value through profit or loss SFAEZRNEREERAKRT 2,316 -
Foreign exchange differences, net X = E 35 31,160 -
Government grants B B 106,166 23,552
Others Hi 157,595 55,006
1,252,155 1,155,838
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥ B

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: PEBRASMAT :
2020 2019
—E-BE —IZTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Interest on bank and other borrowings, MITREMER - BEERER

senior notes and domestic bonds BREFFE 3,226,193 2,920,220
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) HEBEHFE (M 16(b) 22,346 19,774
Increase in a discounted amount of DR PR 57 370 347 T B A B KIS B 4

provision for major overhauls arising iR (B EE (5 33)

from the passage of time (note 33) 2,724 2,372

Total interest expense on financial liabilities FE3Z AR EF ABREH SR A GEN

not at fair value through profit or loss T B 4a %8 3,251,263 2,942,366
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI FILE (2,568,488) (2,414,224)
682,775 528,142
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

SR 5 B g A

AEBOBRBEIENEMRGEA) T

(crediting): 5| R IR :
2020 2019
—ECBRE  —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Lz AR®T ARETT

Cost of properties sold B EWEKAN 24,172,885 15,249,000
Cost of services provided BR R A 535,736 228,765
Depreciation of property and YRS ETE

equipment 14 53,732 47,957
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENITE 14, 16(b) 55,454 47,898
Amortisation of an intangible asset* L& E#E S * 17 167 166
Provision for major overhauls NS B 33 5,710 5,465
Lease payments not included in the ~ FHEFE(TREHERE

measurement of lease liabilities fH18) 16(b) 5,444 4,412
Direct operating expenses (including ~ E£EMR SR EMEMEER

repairs and maintenance) arising BEEEERAY

from rental-generating investment (BiEBERRE)

properties 830 615
Auditor’s remuneration 2= H G B 5,192 4,870
Employee benefit expenses (including 1EE@F|FA> (BHEEEME

directors’ remuneration (note 9)): (FFzE9)) :

Salaries and other staff costs TERHEME TR 1,444,200 1,090,625

Equity-settled share option expense REHE 45 B R IS RE BT 21,429 93,776

Pension scheme contributions BRINEETEIER 134,625 195,395

Less: Amount capitalised B BN & RE (342,778) (287,885)

1,257,476 1,091,911
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

NOTES TO

8. BRFiAN

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

a7 ()

2020 2019
—E-®BF —NnE
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
k3 ARBT T ARETT
Premium paid on early redemption of 32 A fE E1E L 2 A (B **
senior notes** 38,624 59,820
Foreign exchange differences, net PE R = EFRE (31,160) 16,450
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets #A A EztE B &8t A
at fair value through profit or BERNEmEENAR
loss, net BEEBEE (W) F58 (199,663) 6,088
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net**  H &} &E A BIH)EE/F 58 ** 40 216,790 -
Write down to net realisable value of #F{EHEBEZXWERESR
completed properties held for sale A48 (E 32,493 39,035
Write down to net realisable value of  2%fE R 2B 2 0] B4 30 )R (E
properties under development 194,515 -
Impairment of investments in RE & A TR E R RE **
associates** - 32,423
* The amortisation of an intangible asset for the year was included in * FRNEFEEBN T AGABEREMSD
“Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and BEUWERE [SHERAN] A -
other comprehensive income.
x These items were included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated * ZUTE B R ERNEF AGZ S IBE R 2T

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

WaRA [EmmEx | JHT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EFME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FR BB LETRE - FEQTEMHE
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong 383(1)@)  (b) * QMO IERA AR (HEE
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure ENFER) ROIE B EAESE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as ST :
follows:
2020 2019
—B-EF _—TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Fees we 897 888
Other emoluments: Hitni < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R MEYH S 6,051 6,899
Discretionary performance FEEBERBIEA
related bonuses 8,251 8,177
Equity-settled share option expense RS A 45 E BE AR AE R =2 6,406 28,258
Pension scheme contributions BIRBF T B 5K 104 108
20,812 43,442
21,709 44,330

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
REEEZERARAT I —T_TFFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EFH

T E)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

(a) BUFHTES

Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
e RMR E3 il RE&R BIER
ik BnRE BiERd  BRERX HE @zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARBT:R
2020 —R0%F
Independent non-executive B FEHTES :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRERAE
Huel Stephen 299 - - - - 299
Mr. Lu Hong Te BRELE 299 - - - - 299
Mr. Dai Yiyi 1) R e 299 - - - - 299
897 - - - - 897
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
e 2HR E3 il RiEER SRR
e By Rk BRERX sFEIRR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT AR%TR ARETT ARETR  ARETR
2019 “E-hE
Independent non-executive BV 3EH{TES :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRIBEHE
Huel Stephen 296 - - - - 296
Mr. Lu Hong Te BB ELE 296 - - - - 296
Mr. Dai Yiyi E1Y) e 296 - - - - 296
888 - - - - 888
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’" REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EFM=w
(b) Executive directors (b) HITE=S
Salaries,  Discretionary

allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension

and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total

oe BER FERE REER ERER
e BNNE BETL  BRERX HE 25 @zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR AR®Tn  ARETR

2020 b St 22
Executive directors: RnTES:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =854
("Mr. Wong") (rE%E]) - 1,490 2,483 - 16 3,989
Mr. Chen Yuanlai RLR%EE - 1211 1,570 2,288 16 5,085
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok it - 1,211 1,570 2,288 16 5,085
Mr. Huang Youquan ~ EiEL A - 1,071 1,346 1,830 40 4,287
Mr. Wong Lun Bkt - 1,068 1,282 - 16 2,366
- 6,051 8,251 6,406 104 20,812
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
g RER E il RiEsE RINER
ik ENhlE KEEL  BRERX AR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR  ARET:
2019 It Syik:3

Executive directors: WTES:

Mr. Wong BEAE = 1,641 2,461 = 16 4,118
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BRI R4 = 1,334 1,556 10,092 16 12,998
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok L= - 1334 1,556 10,092 16 12,998
Mr.Huang Youquan ~ E{ELAE - 1320 1334 8,074 44 10,772
Mr. Wong Lun i - 1,270 1,270 = 16 2,556
- 6,899 8177 28,258 108 43,442
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FRN - BEEEWEXRBRESE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year AT HE(—ZE—hE : &) -
(2019: Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2019: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining one (2019: two) non-director, highest paid employee
for the year are as follows:

10.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

EE&eHFH AL

N

FR - AUERSFATFOER(ZT—A
F:ZR)RARAES - 2HFHFE
BN EXMEI - R T —R(ZE—NF:
M%) FEF R HIERMFBFEN
T

2020 2019

—E-FF ZFNF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET R ARBTFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREYFZER 962 3,247
Discretionary performance related bonuses 345 #H 78 BY 15 fE 4T 1,004 1,200
Equity-settled share option expense i e 4 B s AR Al <2 1,669 14,366
Pension scheme contributions RIREFIET B3R 77 156
3,712 18,969

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

e BRIA T HEBHIEES RIFTRAR
BEREHEENHRBHIINT

Number of employees
EEHE
2020 2019
—F=%F —TNF

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000

4,000,001 7 7T = 4,500,00078 7T
10,500,001 7 7 2 11,000,000 78 7T - 2

1 —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

11. INCOME TAX 1. BERX
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been R B A b Y R RR R i R B0 FR I IR AN S B
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the cities in which the B ARKEMERTHRERAE -
Group’s subsidiaries operate. No provision for Hong Kong MAEBRFARNIL BT BES(F0)E
profits tax has been made as the Group did not generate any BERN  WEBEREBNEEEL R
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2019: HZE—NF &)
Nil).
2020 2019
—EF-FF TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AREFTT
Current charge for the year: FANEAY -
PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") RRECERMSH ([CEMER]) 1,688,796 1,215,624
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") A B 3B (E R ([ I (E R ) 529,056 387,840

Under/(over)-provision in prior years, net:  @EEEN R, (HB5E) BiE F5E

Mainland China FR B A 3 34,671 (6,970)
2,252,523 1,596,494

Deferred tax charged/(credited) FERNE(GtA)ELE
for the year (note 32) FRE (F1aE32) (135,102) 234,315
Total tax charge for the year FARIBFA B 2,117,421 1,830,809
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11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

11. BMIEFEZ @)

RIFA R E R H KR P 8 A B e 7]
ERER BETE,/ 8 AR AT E R ATR
MERNRAERBREERTXFE

to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: MR IBE S WEE N T -
2020 2019
—ECEH —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARETTT

Profit before tax KR 5 Bl A 6,563,047 5,854,275
At the statutory/applicable rates of BB RAERAETE,#E B

different jurisdictions MEtE 1,640,762 1,557,132
Lower tax rates for specific cities BERTRERER X (85,945) (48,649)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AR AT AR R E BTSN

previous periods 34,671 (6,970)
Profits and losses attributable to joint X VNSINE Nt ey 53

ventures and associates il (160,408) (38,608)
Income not subject to tax BAERTAIBA (148,833) (137,491)
Expenses not deductible for tax GR35 452,598 265,045
Tax effect on unrealised profits arising HEBEANRRBENRZEER

from transactions within the Group REW G F BT E (12,216) (50,530)
LAT T3 IRER 529,056 387,840
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PRC CIT AIFEFR B> ¥ AT SR F0m T3

BERNHETE (132,264) (96,960)

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BEASEERBEAENTIERX 2,117,421 1,830,809

The share of tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2020
attributable to joint ventures amounted to RMB112,982,000
(2019: RMB255,520,000). The share of tax charge for the year
ended 31 December 2020 attributable to associates amounted
to RMB428,000 (2019: RMB1,726,000). Both are included
in“Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE
DEEERRMEEHERS AR
112,982,000L( ZF —NF: ARK
255,520,000 7T ) J* & (H Bk & A A1 Y B I8
R ABARKEA4280007T(=F—H4F:
AR#1,726,0007T) - HEFTALZEIE
mRkEMEERERN[EHEE AT
REVE R RIARMREE]ET -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. K2
2020 2019
—ECBRE  —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFTT
Interim — HK11 cents RHEIRE — BREBEREE 19
(2019: HK10 cents) per ordinary share (ZE—N%F : BE10D) 393,870 362,770
Proposed final — HK18 cents FRARHARE — BREER
(2019: HK14 cents) per ordinary share B D (ZZT—NF ¢
B¥145) 639,983 523,436
1,033,853 886,206
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the R R HA IR B B IE AN R B IR R IR JE IR
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming REFRKSHE -
annual general meeting.
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,196,013,161 (2019: 4,134,224,457) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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— N 4,134,224,457 FR) 5T & ©

BhESANERIVIRFAGARES
AR BEONE PG E -
Mt E A ERBRINEFHBE /AR
AEEREARRNNFADHTEAR
2B RBRRNTA EEEE N B BRI
GEETHERBRKEBRE D IAEE
FEABATROE B IIHE B ey AN -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥ B

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. SRRl EBREREE AR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE {Eﬂﬁgﬂ (%)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FREARNRESEZFNTIREAT&E
based on: g .
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-nEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETET

Earnings BEF|
Profit attributable to owners of the parent  F{EstEGRER LB ERF] 2
used in the basic and diluted earnings ISYNSIEZ PN Lyl
per share calculations 3,803,238 3,510,045
Number of shares
[igng - ¢!
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NEF
Shares [igni)
Weighted average number of ordinary R EERERBNZFA
shares in issue during the year used in 23T @R 2 INRE 5 &)
the basic earnings per share calculation 4,196,013,161 4,134,224,457
Effect of dilution — weighted average WEYE — TRk MEFHE
number of ordinary shares:
Share options B A 74,453,336 73,602,653
Weighted average number of ordinary RETESREERT 2 FA
shares in issue during the year used in BT L AR T8
the diluted earnings per share calculation 4,270,466,497 4,207,827,110
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31 December 2020

—E-_ZTF+_-_H=+—H

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 M

14. U3 MRkt

Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
NERRE EREEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office  Transportation Leasehold
buildings improvements  equipment  equipment Subtotal land Buildings Subtotal Total
f-
ik RER
1HRET NEZE  BOERE E#If Nf & 2 gt Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTn  AR¥TR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2020 “E-EEt-AST-A
At 1 January 2020: R=Z-F5-F-R:
Cost A 359,359 55,111 164,081 115,642 694,193 250,459 148,223 398,682 1,092,875
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (16,376) (34,852) (67,786) (96,036) (215,050) (7.514) (42,889) (50,403) (265,453)
Net carrying value BEFA 342,983 20,259 96,295 19,606 479143 242,945 105,334 348,219 827422
At 1 January 2020, R=F-2%5-A-A
net of accumulated depreciation B 23tE 342,983 20,259 96,295 19,606 479143 242,945 105,334 348,279 827,422
Additions AE 1,546 31,157 39,921 1,994 74,618 - 42,976 42976 17,59%
Acquisition of subsiclaries (note 38)  WEHIBA R (F3£38) - - 218 - 8 - - - 8
Deemed acquisition of asubsidlary ~ RRERE-EHBAR
(note 38) (Hiz¥38) - - 51 1,063 1114 - - - 1114
Depreciation g (10,984) (7,662) (27,862) (1.224) (53,732) (5,009) (50,445) (55,454) (109,186)
Disposals LE - (1,830) (6,448) (28) (8,306) - - - (8,306)
Disposal of subsidiaies (note 40) HEMBAR (k) - - (1,478) (67) (1,581) - - - (1,541)
At 31 December 2020, RZBZEE+ZA=1-H
net of accumulated depreciation B 2:E 333,545 41,924 100,731 15,344 491,544 231,936 97,865 335,801 827,345
At 31 December 2020: RZBZBF+ZA=1-A:
Cost KA 360,905 82,260 194,237 1821 755,673 250,459 191,199 441,658 1,197,331
Accumulated depreciation 2iHHE (27,360) (40,336) (93,506) (102,927) (264,129) (12,523) (93,334) (105,857) (369,986)
Net carying value BEE 333,545 41,94 100,731 15,344 491,544 237,936 97,865 335,801 827,345
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

14. MENEZE @)

Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
HEYEL FREAE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office  Transportation Leasehold
buildings  improvements equipment equipment Subtotal fand Buildings Subtotal Total
fifh
HE RER
T REF nExE  HAERE EHIA It BELH Bs It &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT ARETR ARBTr  ARETn ARBTr  ARETR  ARBTn  ARETR
31 December 2019 “E-h&E+-A=1-H
At 1 January 2019: RIZ-NE-A-R:
Cost A 346,787 65,584 106,803 104,456 623,630 250459 49,885 300,344 923974
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (10,515) (42,337) (47,617) (90,331) (190,800) (2,505) - (2,505) (193,305)
Net carrying value EEFE 336,272 23247 59,186 14125 432,830 247,954 49,885 297,839 730,669
At 1 January 2019, net of RZE-N5-F-H
accumulated depreciation NB2:E 336,272 23247 59,186 14,125 432,830 247,954 49,885 297,839 730,669
Additions AE 12512 6,828 66,578 12,866 98,844 = 98,338 98,338 197,182
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)  MEEME A E (5 38) - - 293 3 325 - - - 35
Deemed acquisition of asubsidiary ~ BRKE-EHBAR (i 38)
(note 38) - - 474 - 474 - - - 474
Acaquisition of subsidiaries that YRR ENHBAR
are not a business (note 39) (FzE39) - = 7 = 7 = = = 7
Depreciation & (5,861) (9,354) (25352) (7,390) (47,957) (5,009) (42,889) (47,89) (95,855)
Disposals HE - (462) (4,884) 1) (5373) = - - (5373)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HERBAR (Hi40) = - 1) - 1] = = = 0]
At31 December 2019, RIF-NETZA=1-H
net of accumulated depreciation NB2:HE 342,983 20,259 96,295 19,606 479143 242,945 105,334 348,279 827422
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NE+-A=1-A:
Cost A 359,359 55,111 164,081 115,642 694,193 250459 148,223 398,682 1,092,875
Accumulated depreciation Z2iHE (16,376) (34,852) (67,786) (96,036) (215,050) (7514) (42,889) (50,403) (265,453)
Net carying value KEFE 342,983 20259 96,295 19,606 479143 242,945 105,334 348,279 827,422

RZF_FF+-_A=1+—H x5E

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB537,296,000 (2019: RMB10,630,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to
the Group (note 43).

BEEES A AR 537,296,000 7T (=
Z—NF : AR¥10,630,00070) & T
HE T REFEEMR TRITURER
TAEEMSE TRITREMEFK(K=E
43) °

AEEBRAAREEN L RETHE
B RigZFLMBEGRK - AHE
B W EEE - (HHA40E504)
AIEMEE — RN - WEIEAEETH
K - WABHE-—RERS2E20%F -

The Group has lease contracts of land and buildings used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the PRC Government with lease periods of
40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings
generally have lease terms between two and 20 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. EME

Under
Completed construction Total
(25351 g st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—HF—H
REHE 17,547,760 2,751,300 20,299,060
Additions NE 394,597 728,110 1,122,707
Transfer from properties under RERPOEEA
development - 1,461,389 1,461,389
Transfer from completed properties AFELEREXK
held for sale ESL-UN 64,726 = 64,726
Transfer i 2,144,465 (2,144,465) =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEHB AT (HiE40) = (1,721,000) (1,721,000)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment D/ EFHB U F5E 798,795 606,066 1,404,861
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R=Z—NF+-_A=+—8BxR
and 1 January 2020 —ZE-EF—A—BEREFE 20,950,343 1,681,400 22,631,743
Additions NE 284,237 855,251 1,139,488
Disposals HE (56,684) - (56,684)
Transfer from properties under RERPYEEA
development - 3,967,918 3,967,918
Transfer st 1,506,200 (1,506,200) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) A= NG EEL) - 283,909 283,909
Acquisition of subsidiaries that are WM E N B AR
not a business (note 39) (BIzE39) 766,280 - 766,280
Net gains/(loss) from a AMERRKE/(B1R) 8
fair value adjustment (468,757) 1,065,322 596,565
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZF+-_F=+—H
BREFE 22,981,619 6,347,600 29,329,219
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group’'s investment properties are situated in
Mainland China.

The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2020 based on valuations performed by Cushman &
Wakefield and Valtech Valuation Advisory Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB29,329,219,000 (2019:
RMB22,631,743,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB9,606,200,000 (2019:
RMB10,260,000,000) were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 43).

The Group's completed investment properties are leased to third
parties and companies controlled by Mr. Wong and his family
members (together with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”) under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

15. REYEE #)

REEA B MR BIAME -

REBOREMERBBEIEXESER
MEMBERTARARRARTESE
RAaIR=ZZT_EF+-_HAH=+—H=&
HF{GHE A AR 29,329,219,000 T (= Z
—h&F : AR#22,631,743,0007T) °

RZZE_TF+=-—A=+—H ~5H
FREE S £ AR ¥ 9,606,200,000 7T (=
T—h4a : AR¥10,260,000,0007T) &Y
BEMEDEIF - UEER T AE®H
ATRITREMER(HE43) o

AEENEERREDEORELEH
WBETE=DRFELEREFEKE (&
RERENTEEXEKK])FMEH 2R 7] -
E—HHBREHNME 16 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cContinued)
Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019, the fair value measurements of all investment properties
of the Group were categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy and details of their movements are disclosed above.

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that
are measured at fair value, the properties have been used in
their highest and best use.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement of the
Group’s investment properties:

15. IREYEE #)

DIREER

BE-_ZT-_TFT-_A=+—HBR=ZF
—“NE+-_A=1T—HBLEE  A&H
ERENENIAEBAEDIEELR
EFRE=ZE MEZBFER LA H
& o

EZRR - MANARAEFENKREY
% BAIOVEANERS M&EER -

R TRIBITARBEREMENRE

5HE

Fair value measurement
using significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
RRAE X
FABRERABEN
NREFE
(BB=#%)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT

Recurring fair value measurement for: RN SENEEURAARETNE

Office and commercial properties FENEYSESEL ) 26,918,160 21,554,462

Residential properties FEM= 811,000 —

Car parking spaces ZE5 1,600,059 1,077,281
29,329,219 22,631,743

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value FHRN - F—RRE_BAAEHELE

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020
REEEZERARAT I —T_TFFR

8% %:%&Wﬁ%)\ﬁkﬁ%ﬁ °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REYEE #)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBHK B

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

AT REEDEMFEBEETERGE

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FTE{ABEHE -
Range
Significant unobservable #iE
Valuation techniques inputs 2020 2019
fhatiE EATAERBARE —E-ZF  ZTNF
Office and Investment method Estimated rental value per 30 to 630 35t0 616
commercial and direct comparison square metre and
properties method (refer to below)  per month (RMB)
N YN REEREZELEE BYARKBAGAESER
[EEZZES (RTx) (AR®TT)

Capitalisation rate

CEN(eBS

1.5% to 6%

1.5% t0 6.5%

Price per square metre (RMB) 6,200 to 8,000 to
FEAARER(ARKET) 31,000 104,000
Residential properties  Direct comparison method Price per square metre (RMB) 44,000 to N/A
EEYE (refer to below) FBEHKRER(ARET) 58,600
BERELERE
(RTx)
Car parking spaces Investment method Estimated rental value per 300 to 1,600 650 to 1,600

FE5

and direct comparison
method (refer to below)

REEREZLER
(RTx)

car parking space and
per month (RMVB)
BREFEMLREAGESERE
(AR%7T)
Capitalisation rate

CEN[eRS

3.5% to 4.5%

3.5% to 5%

Price per car parking space (RMB) 100,000 to 100,000 to
BEFEEMER(ARET) 256,000 500,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The valuations of completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were based on either
the investment method by capitalisation of net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with allowance for the
reversionary rental income potential of the properties or the
direct comparison method by reference to comparable market
transactions.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value per
square metre or per car parking space or price per square metre
in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value of the investment properties. Significant increases
(decreases) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in
a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the investment
properties.

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value per square metre and the price per square metre is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
development profit and an opposite change in the capitalisation
rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

16. LEASES 16. HE
The Group as a lessee rEBEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for properties used in operations. NEBHEAERANLENDERESR -
Leases of properties generally have lease terms between two YERE—REIE2E204F -

and 20 years.

(a) Lease liabilities (a) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under HEaBEB(BRNEMENRIEK
other payables and accruals) and the movements during EErEAETHNHESE) WEE
the year are as follows: BERFREFHNOT :
2020 2019
—EIRF  —TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—AMEREE 246,792 78,645
New leases MHE 160,852 211,021
Accretion of interest recognised FAERF BHEE

during the year 22,346 19,774
Payments (B (77,506) (62,648)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=+—HMEAE 352,484 246,792
Analysed into: DT

Current portion ENER D 72,787 60,371

Non-current portion ERBNED D 279,697 186,421
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBENEBHA ST RIS
48 to the financial statements. M 48 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P EE

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. % =4¢ 9
The Group as a lessee (Continued) rEBEREABEAE)
(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (b) RETHIALEEEEBENSBEL
leases are as follows: N
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETT ARETIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERME 7 22,346 19,774
Depreciation charge of CREEENERX
right-of-use assets 8 55,454 47,898
Expense relating to short-term EA5G HAFE & % E M FE
leases and other leases with FHE R RS Rk
remaining lease terms ended ZRIAERHEE R
on or before the end of A (GFATTBRX)
the reporting period (included in
administrative expenses) 8 5,444 4,412
Total amount recognised in RIBEERNE ST
profit or loss 83,244 72,084
(c) The total cash outflows for leases are disclosed in note () HELRSREIHNPEHRRME
41(c) to the financial statements. 41(c) °
The Group as a lessor AEBERHBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting

of various office properties, commercial properties and car

parking spaces in Mainland China under operating lease

arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the

tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent

adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB315,037,000 (2019: RMB284,603,000), details of which
are included in note 6 to the financial statements.
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16.

17.

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR E R

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

16. HE @)
AEBERHBAAE)

R|BEHR - ARER KRR RES

Al H AR 2 T 40 Y R AT 3R R M E A R

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: BRI :
2020 2019
—ECEHF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREFIT
Within one year —F K 95,895 76,733
7 > =
INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. BIEEE
Operating concession B iREE
2020 2019
—ECEH —E—NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETIT
Cost at 1 January, R—A—HZKAK

net of accumulated amortisation Ik 2 tEEsy 3,153 3,319
Amortisation provided during the year FARERES (MIFES)

(note 8) (167) (166)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 2,986 3,153
At 31 December: Rt+=-—A=+—8:

Cost [D#%N 4,861 4,861

Accumulated amortisation ESe T (1,875) (1,708)

Net carrying amount BT FE 2,986 3,153
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

Operating concession (Continued)

On 28 March 2006, Quanzhou Straits Sports Centre Co., Ltd.
(“Straits Sports Centre”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an operating right concession agreement (the “Operating
Right Agreement”) with the Quanzhou Sports Bureau (the
“Sports Bureau”), a local government body in Quanzhou, the
PRC, at a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000. Pursuant to the
Operating Right Agreement, Straits Sports Centre is granted
with an operating concession (the “Operating Concession”) to
operate and manage certain sports and recreation facilities (the
“Facilities”) in Quanzhou for a period of 30 years (the
“Operating Period”).

This service concession arrangement involves the Group as
operator (i) paying a specified amount as consideration to
obtain the Operating Concession of the Facilities; (ii) operating
and maintaining the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability
on behalf of the Sports Bureau for the Operating Period; and (iii)
receiving a right to charge users using the Facilities. The Group
is entitled to operate and manage the Facilities, and is entitled
to all the income associated with the operation of the Facilities.
However, the relevant government bodies as grantors will
control and regulate the scope of services provided and the
prices charged by the Group during the Operating Period, retain
ownership, and be entitled to any residual interest in the
Facilities at the end of the Operating Period.

The cost of the Operating Concession is being amortised over
the Operating Period.
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. LEAYZE
2020 2019
—E-EHF ==k
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Properties under development expected TR BR 5 T 71 BRRR & Bk Y B R R

to be completed: L/E
Within normal operating cycle included FIEREERBANIERESEE

under current assets 64,671,346 49,136,052
Beyond normal operating cycle included RRIBIE R & ERARTE

under non-current assets FERBEE 9,852,502 13,248,794

74,523,848 62,384,846

Properties under development expected TEHAS A IE & L@ REAN AR
to be completed within normal operating  stIR1ERIZE B R E ¢
cycle and recovered:
Within one year —F R 38,176,071 26,514,105
After one year —F% 26,495,275 22,621,947

64,671,346 49,136,052

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s properties under R-F_FF+-_A=+—H0 x5HE
development, including the relevant land use rights, with an MR E 1B & AR 25,582,739,000 7T
aggregate carrying amount of RMB25,582,739,000 (2019: —EF—N%F : ARM¥31,504,324,0007T)
RMB31,504,324,000) were pledged to secure certain bank and mETERFTYR(BEHEEL0ER
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 43). B EER - URERTARENE TR

T REAMER (HFE43) °

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased RIFZE LA BT AR EBATR
land from the PRC Government with lease periods of 40 to 70 BHE L (HEA40E705) A1 1E
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms H RIS R - AR IEAEE{TEON 3K ©

of these land leases.
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19. CONTRACT IN PROGRESS

19. EEIRERE

2020 2019
—2-FF T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARKBTE

At 1 January n—A—H 343,244 326,907
Additions 140 2,274 16,337
At 31 December WNt+—A=+—8 345,518 343,244

On 18 August 2009, the Group entered into the Land
Development Contract with the Nan‘an Government to carry
out the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over certain land
parcels in Nan’an City. Pursuant to the Land Development
Contract, although the Group does not have the ownership title
or land use right to such land parcels, when the land parcels are
sold by the Nan’an Government through public auction, the
Group is entitled to the sales proceeds arising from such land
sales.

Contract in progress represents costs incurred by the Group in
connection with the construction and preparation work of the
relevant land parcels under the Land Development Contract and
comprises relocation and demolition work, costs of construction,
materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of development and other
costs directly attributable to the Land Development Contract.

On 22 February 2016, the Group entered into a supplemental
Land Development Contract (the “Supplemental Contract”)
with the Nan’an Government, pursuant to which certain terms
and conditions of the Land Development Contract were revised.
In accordance with the Supplemental Contract, the Group
continues to carry out the construction and preparation work in
respect of land infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over
certain land parcels in Nan‘an City. The Nan’an Government will
pay the Group the construction and other related costs plus a
margin. Such amount will be determined and paid by the
Nan’an Government upon the related land parcels to be sold by
the Nan’an Government through public auction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

20. REENAINIKE

2020 2019
—E-FF ZFNF
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Share of net assets DIHEEFRE 11,054,907 4,042,985
Due from joint ventures FEUE &R AEIFIR 2,698,159 4,831,966
Due to joint ventures A BRRNGIE /S (11,913) (11,913)

13,741,153 8,863,038

The amounts due from/(to) joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In accordance with the
terms of the joint venture agreements, all joint venture partners
are required to provide loan capital to the joint ventures in
proportion to their shareholdings under equal terms. Repayment
of any amount of the loan capital requires unanimous approval
from the joint venture partners subject to the sufficiency of
assets and retained profits of the joint ventures. Accordingly,
the loan capital forms an integral part of the Group’s equity
investments in the joint ventures.

FEY(FERT) & & R R FIE R B
REREBEREER - RESERRHH
MRS - A& &R IR AR NER &
HILPIIRHERE ARG LR L RR
MBEMEEREATEMBAERH
M—BRABARBRRZALELRAESR
BRERHWEBERADEMNE - Bt » &
LERENGRAAEEHZLEER
RIS E R —#B1D -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

20. REEARIMIRE @)

Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows: REFBERESLRDNTMEEBWOT -
Percentage
Place of of beneficial
Particulars of incorporation/ interest
issued and registration attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital and business to the Group activities
BRTR HMARZ, FEBESL

=t BREXEHE S 2 B SmAsk TEEK

Xiamen Taiming Property Development ~ RMB5,500,000,000 China 62 Property
Co., Ltd.** development
("Xiamen Taiming”)

EFREEMEREFR AR * AR#5,500,000,0007T MEER
(EFIZ=E])

Sure Source International Limited US$118,018,100 BVI 50 Investment
(“Sure Source”) holding

IER IR B R A ) 118,018,100 % 7T RERZHE HEER
(MER1)

Chongging Rongchuang Bohang RMB50,044,000 China 24 Property
Property Agency Co., Ltd.** development
("Chongging Rongchuang”)

EEREEMEHESLERAR Y  ARMS50,044,000  FE MEER
([=ERE])

@ Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law & BEPBEEREMAEREEAR]

# The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the best g ZERERNRNENEBEREAARER

effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names as no official English names have been
registered.

The above investments are held indirectly by subsidiaries of the
Company.
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continues) ~ 20. FAE &N TIHIRE (&)

Notes: BdsE -

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information in
respect of Xiamen Taiming, Sure Source and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Sure Source Group”), Chongging Rongchuang, Tianjin Meijiang Qiushi
Property Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Meijiang”), Foshan Hongsheng Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Hongsheng”) and Cangluan (Xiamen) Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Cangluan”) adjusted for any differences in

TRITEERNER AL EEEREEARNE
FIZEs - IR R E B AR (5 [IRREE]) -
HERA  REGTIKEEXARAR (K2
L) LA ERERERAE (THWLEATT])
Frg(EMEXERAR(TNEZ(EM) K
MIBEMB LB SRR LN ERER R E

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial B &R R AV BR E{E Y1 R -
statements:
(@)  Summarised financial information in respect of Xiamen Taiming, Sure (@) HBEBEREMRE - IBREEREERMEIN
Source Group and Chongging Rongchuang B FG & R
2020
—ECEH
Xiamen Sure Source Chongging
Taiming Group Rongchuang
EMRR JER & B EEmA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T AR%TR
Cash and cash equivalents B NESEEY 207,063 85,341 354,456
Other current assets HimEEE 11,232,985 316,703 2,662,709
Current assets RENEE 11,440,048 402,044 3,017,165
Non-current assets EREBEE 9,320 1,515,000 138
Other current liabilities HinghaE (475,028) (295,964) (2,154,460)
Current liabilities mENEE (475,028) (295,964) (2,154,460)
Non-current liabilities EmB AR (5,500,000) (492,687) (9,256)
Net assets BEFE 5,474,340 1,128,393 853,587
Recondiliation to the Group’s MAEERZEE
directly held interest in the HEBAER 2R
joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's AEBFEEAS L
ownership 62% 50% 24%
Share of net assets DB EFRE 3,417,631 564,197 204,861
Carrying amount of the ZREMREE
investment 3,417,631 564,197 204,861
Revenue Wz - - 2,980,526
Bank interest income RITHI B WA 508 1,002 15,130
Depreciation e (33) - (82)
Tax credit/(expense) BiEE R () 8,485 (19,243) (226,603)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EE) (25,659) 57,112 918,875
Other comprehensive income HEmzmiA - 10,996 -
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. APl p: -
20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) ~ 20. A& E A RIHIRE ()
Notes: (Continued) Mozt : (&)
(b)  Summarised financial information in respect of Tianjin Meijiang, (b) ABERKENWT - #LUBLT - IERER KX
Foshan Hongsheng, Sure Source Group and Xiamen Cangluan B (EPY) BB 7% & Rt
2019
T NF
Tianjin Foshan Sure Source Xiamen
Meijiang Hongsheng Group Cangluan
RENGT AN Say JERER = B (EP)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT AREETTT AREFTT
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MRS EEY 11,715 204,695 85,548 285,925
Other current assets HimE & E 1,863,047 18,567,134 270,535 3,286,767
Current assets mEBEE 1,874,762 18,771,829 356,083 3,572,692
Non-current assets IEREEE 30,109 174 1,292,000 36,082
Other current liabilities HiREam (849,313)  (16,241,744) (123,878) (1,240,820)
Current liabilities mEAE (849,313)  (16,241,744) (123,878) (1,240,820)
Non-current liabilities JERBARE = (1,309,788) (463,920) (920,000)
Net assets BEFE 1,055,558 1,220,471 1,060,285 1,447,954
Reconciliation to the Group’s ~ EAREBRZAEE A AIH
directly held interest in the HERBEER 2 HIR
joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's AEBMEEE DL
ownership 25% 49% 50% 24%
Share of net assets DI EEFR 263,890 598,031 530,143 353,301
Carrying amount of the ZIRENREE
investment 263,890 598,031 530,143 353,301
Revenue s 2,521,019 499,468 = =
Bank interest income SRITHI B YA 914 1,179 19 1,467
Depreciation e - (85) = -
Tax credit/(expense) BEE R, () (647,259) (1,691) (82,289) 3,514
Profit for the year FREF 707,655 154,454 222,004 73,374
Other comprehensive loss H b 2w EE = = (2,258) =
In the opinion of the directors, Tianjin Meijiang, Foshan Hongsheng EERE BET-ZTF+-A=1—

and Xiamen Cangluan are no longer considered as material joint
ventures of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, and
therefore, the summarised financial information of Tianjin Meijiang,
Foshan Hongsheng and Xiamen Cangluan for the year ended 31

December 2020 are not presented in the financial statements.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) ~ 20. IAE S A BIRIIRE ()
Notes: (Continued) Mozt : (&)
(0 The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of (© THRIFAEELIFFANEANESEAT
the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material: AE W TR E RS
2020 2019
e —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit/(loss) DMESERBINERER(EE)
for the year, net JRER 374,590 (199,902)
Share of the joint ventures’ other PMEEERRNEMEE
comprehensive income A 5,483 1,032
Share of the joint ventures'’ total DIEAERARNRERA(EE)
comprehensive income/(loss) Fok] 380,073 (198,870)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREERRINREREERE
investments in the joint ventures 9,554,464 7,117,673
AL A N = >
21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REEE AR E
2020 2019
—E-BE —EZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFT
Share of net assets DMHEEFRE 574,796 604,100
Due from associates JE WiHsE & R A RUIR 325,010 464,855
Provision for impairment AR - (32,423)
899,806 1,036,532

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. In accordance with the terms of the
shareholder agreements, all shareholders of the associates are
required to provide loan capital to the associates in proportion
to their shareholdings under equal terms. Repayment of any
amount of the loan capital requires unanimous approval from
the shareholders subject to the sufficiency of assets and retained
profits of the associates. Accordingly, the loan capital forms an
integral part of the Group's equity investments in the associates.

FEM B 2 RR IR R EEN - RERIZ
EREE - REBEBRMZHIRK - B
Bt 2 ) RO R 2 1R AR R R R B B L 15
RUBEEENGZEBRERR - MEBEE
BEEEANENSEFTEMARE
ME—BRBLZRNZLAZERF R
BHRARHEERRDENE - ELt -
SZLERERNNDNRE G Z LB EDR
RIS E R — 81D -
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (cContinued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

A E N AR E ()

TRIVRAEEYL JEERI ERAEEE R
AAFTHMEER

2020 2019
—E-BF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) paN iy NS ke
for the year wmA (E1E) 33,975 (27,168)
Share of the associates’ other paN iy /NS 0|
comprehensive income EHh2mEURA 32 8
Share of the associates’ total DEBE RN RNEE
comprehensive income/(loss) WA/ (E518) #58 34,007 (27,160)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s 7R BERHEL D AR E
investments in the associates BRI 4258 899,806 1,036,532
22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22. FELRE 2 BAM=E

All the completed properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB2,039,828,000 (2019: RMB2,117,351,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 43).
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables arise from the sales of properties,
leasing of investment properties and provision of property
management services.

Consideration in respect of the sales of properties is payable by
the purchasers in accordance with the terms of the related sale
and purchase agreements. The Group normally requires its
customers to make payment of monthly/quarterly charges in
advance in relation to the leasing of investment properties and
provision of property management services. The Group generally
grants a rent-free period of three months to the lessees of the
Group's investment properties, extending up to six months for
major customers.

Since the Group's trade receivables are related to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. All trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the revenue recognition date and
invoice date, is as follows:

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

3. BE5RWFIA

AEENE S RUKBERBHEDE
MEREMERREHMEERR -

ERMEHENKERE T RREBE
BEpZENGERXN AREEHEERE
MERRHRYEEERGA - —REK
EFPEA/BFRANR  AEE KR
ARENFEABRBART=EANEHE
H FEFPALERERZANEA -

HRASKENE 5 RIGIRE—# 5 B
BEFAEM HUBREREESETER -
AEBYARZFERFTATMAMER
mn o KEREMIMBERERE IBE
SENGIRIG B -

RI|BEHR - B 5 RUGAEN KK DT
(A AR LEZAHFE)MT

2020 2019

=E-FF ZFNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETIT

Current to 90 days ENEAZ 90 H 212,531 697,530
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 16,761 76,036
181 to 365 days 181 HZ= 365 H 2,944 123
Over 365 days 365 BEA £ 9,257 8,453
241,493 782,142

The financial impact of ECLs for trade receivables was
insignificant for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

BHE_Z -2+ _A=+—HBK=F
—NFE+-_A=1+—HItFE B5E
WERHIESEEEENI ST EYTE
j(o
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

24.

TR BRIR B WO TR &
Hih&E

2020 2019
—EF-FF  ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARKTET

Prepayments (note) Faft R () 5,218,306 6,988,361
Deposits ot 1,736,009 1,385,303
Other receivables H i e U B 5,110,230 4,724,285
Cost of obtaining contracts ESERAA 441,564 321,414
12,506,109 13,419,363
Non-current portion ER BN (3,107,817) (4,969,729)
Current portion mEnE 9,398,292 8,449,634

Note: The balance included prepayments for the acquisition of land use
rights in Mainland China amounting to RMB3,084,403,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB4,914,247,000).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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M AT _TFE+_A=+—BEHBsHE
A AR B A9 5k LSS 3t (5 FR AR A TR BRIE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 25.

An analysis of the balances with related parties is as follows:

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

FEWFEA AR TS 5R0A

ERRET RTINS

2020 2019
—g-%F —Z-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Due from related parties: FEWEBE S FRIE ¢
Companies controlled by the Wong Family & XK e &lE) A 7 36,310 -
Joint ventures BERRE 3,341,170 3,923,055
Associates iR ol/NE] 134,890 456,110
3,512,370 4,379,165

Due to related parties: PEASERE T 7RIE ¢
Companies controlled by the Wong Family B = KK EEHIRIA A - 5,052
Joint ventures XN 5,257,846 7,430,402
Associates LN 88,346 69,705
5,346,192 7,505,159

Except for the amounts due from related parties of
RMB35,133,000 (2019: RMB1,221,419,000) which are non-
trade in nature, unsecured, borne interest at 8.0% (2019: 7.6%
to 10.0%) per annum and repayable on demand, other balances
are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

None of the amounts due from related parties is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Br A% 35,133,000 T (= —H4F : A
R #1,221,419,000 7T ) & Ye B8 33 77 7708
RIFESHE - E\ER - RFFE8.0%
—ENF:76%210.0%)5tERE
REXKERI EMHRELRIFES MU
g EIE - RERAREREE -

7 4 8 Uk B S 5 OB B SO E o Bt
EHRABIEN SR A E R &R ER
LENERRERER RZ2T=_FF
+ZA=F+—BERZZE—AF+=A
=+—H ' ZEBRRECTEERMD -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. AN BEF=EEEEE A

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS Bl E/mEE

2020 2019

—EF-FF  ZTNF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREEF T

Listed equity investments, at fair value ETRARE - BHARE - 34,668

Other unlisted investments, at fair value FELETRAKRSE  BARE 816,687 630,402

816,687 665,070

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has not elected
to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other
comprehensive income.

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

27.

ERBARESEARAREHEAR
BEHABRNSRERE  HARLE
B3R R R E (2 TSR AR
s A -

He MRTFEY - XRH|

RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS e MEHEBTFR
2020 2019
=E-RF ZFNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTIERRE & 22,175,742 23,898,660
Time deposits TEHRF R 1,224,000 =
Less: Restricted cash (notes) B ZBRFIZRE (FIFE) (4,305,393) (4,297,558)
Pledged deposits (note (e)) B E R (K5 () (679,283) (450,253)
Cash and cash equivalents HE RESZEY 18,415,066 19,150,849
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place at
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales proceeds of
properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the related
properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases of
construction materials and payments of construction fees for the
relevant property projects. As at 31 December 2020, such guarantee
deposits amounted to RMB866,703,000 (2019: RMB1,002,610,000).

According to the relevant mortgage facility agreements signed by
certain subsidiaries of the Group with their banks, the subsidiaries are
required to place at designated bank accounts certain amounts as
deposits for potential default of mortgage loans advanced to property
purchasers. These guarantee deposits will be released after the
property ownership certificates of the relevant properties are passed
to the banks. As at 31 December 2020, such deposits amounted to
RMB1,196,677,000 (2019: RMB820,468,000).

Pursuant to a management agreement entered into between the
Sports Bureau and Straits Sports Centre, the funds advanced by the
Sports Bureau that are deposited in a designated bank account can
only be used for payments of construction costs and expenditures
incurred for the construction of the Facilities. As at 31 December
2020, such advance amounted to RMB6,000,000 (2019:
RMB6,000,000).

In addition to the restrictions as detailed in notes (a), (b) and (c) above,
certain subsidiaries of the Group are also required to place certain of
their bank deposit amounts as guarantee deposits for public
maintenance funds, or there are restrictions as to the use of certain
unutilised bank loan proceeds deposited in the subsidiaries’ bank
accounts. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of such
deposits amounted to RMB2,236,013,000 (2019: RMB2,468,480,000).

The bank deposits were pledged to secure general banking facilities
and bills payable granted to the Group (note 43).

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

27. BENBEZEEBY - IRH
HWe MEEHER @)

GEE

(a)

(@)

(e)

BEPEAREER  AEESETHEMRE
ARERETHENBREEMBRER
AEERBTEO - (FAREEEMENE
RiZE - ZSESENRAREERENR
REMEEMENREER R-ZT=_%
FH+-A=1+—H8 ZFEREREEAR
#866,703,000C( —E— HL&E: AR
1,002,610,0007T) °

BIEREBE THER R EESHNERITER
ENBBRERBE DS  ZZEWBARZA
BETEeEFARERITED - AfEYME
BERAIEHERIZBERBRNIES - 25
BERIESERBEEDNEN XX EETES
BIRITIR H MR c RZZE_TF+=A
=+t B %SEhReAARE
1,196,677,0007c( =& — L : AR
820,468,0007T) °

RIEEE BEGREE RO HEER
& AEERBRMNITFEABEERITEREN
B ERAEX N ERZSREHMESEDN
ERERBEAX -N-T-_ZTE+_A
=+—H8  Z25% A5 AR¥6,0000007T
(ZZ—NF : AR¥6,000,0007T) °

R A_EFHEE (@) © (b) B (0 FTEE it A BR 5N -
NEEWETHBRARNAEARLE TF
REBIEARNHBEELSNERIES &
W EMBARERRETEOMNKE A
BITERESNERBMES - R=ZT=
TE+-—A=+—H ZZREEEAA
R#2,236,013,000TC(Z2—h4E : AR
#2,468,480,000 7T ) °

ZERTEAREERARSE T AEED
—RRITERBERENRR(HFE43) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

27.

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB21,222,705,000 (2019: RMB20,974,502,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. All
the bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27.

28. H

ReMIRSEZFEY - XRH
HWeE MR ER @)

RBEIR  REEUARBSIEHE
ERIBIOTFEREHRREHRTRBARE
21,222,705,0007c (ZE—1F : AR
20,974,502,0007T) - ARBEARAI B R A
RAEEMEE - AW BIEF BRI
HE B IR 1501 ) MK - SIERSEESE
RE) » AEETE BB ETTINE ZEFS
HIRITIARELBRAEME -

RITEFRRESBRTERNELTE R
REVH S - EHIERFERZBRA—

NF—REZFAATSE  TB/RTAE
Bz BeFIR & F ki e - Wik 878 %= 5f

EHERAAE 2 M RREF B - FTA R
THEFRER R EBRFRAFR AL ETH

& AR S B IRTT -
BIORMNFBNMEE
# 5 A A R B R

RBEHR
BRIZZERBEMOMNMT

2020 2019

— 7 — ﬂi 7)‘15'5

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARETT

Within 1 year —FRN 11,540,147 14,702,354
Over 1 year —FE P E 265,963 257,344
11,806,110 14,959,698

The trade and bills payables are unsecured and non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled based on the progress of
construction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

20. Efb NI NESTER K

CONTRACT LIABILITIES aRAE
2020 2019
—E-FF ZTNHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET R ARET T
Contract liabilities ERAE (a) 45,695,562 34,902,065
Deposits received B Uiz 637,008 488,802
Accruals EEtEA 661,836 553,802
Advances from non-controlling FEIE IR AR B AR
shareholders (b) 1,924,188 4,035,500
Proceeds from securitisation B LB B R IA
arrangement (©) 1,544,140 2,263,084
Other payables H b e~ B (d) 8,971,277 5,031,996
Lease liabilities HEEEF 16(a) 352,484 246,792
59,786,495 47,522,041
Non-current portion — lease liabilities JEjREIE D — FHEAE (279,697) (186,421)
Current portion EENELD 59,506,798 47,335,620
Represented by: K& :
Contract liabilities ERAE 45,695,562 34,902,065
Current portion of other payables Hib A RIB R ETERA
and accruals ViEE=5%) 13,811,236 12,433,555
59,506,798 47,335,620
Notes: B
(a) Contract liabilities include advances received from buyers in (a) AREEREEAREBEEMEEBART

()

connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties. The net increase
in contract liabilities was mainly due to the increase in advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of properties at the
end of the year, offset by the decrease in advances received from
customers upon recognition of revenue in the current year when the
purchasers obtained the physical possession or the legal title of the
relevant properties.

Advances from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The balance represented proceeds received from a financial institution
in the PRC, to which the Group has transferred the right of receipt of
the remaining sales proceeds of certain properties to be delivered by
the Group. Under the assignment arrangement between the Group
and the financial institution, as and when the Group receives the sales
proceeds from customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it
collects on behalf of the financial institutions.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

()

FYRERHIE - & RAEFENIEEH
RERFRAR Y 3 8 & (75 P LR B IR
IS T IS HEBE M EE MG AR
BIRPT AR Y EHERRERE LUK
HURIER A Prif sy o

SRRBERBRDEIER - 8 RARE

fEiiE P B2 BB R 1S 5K0R -
MARE D EE WA KB K TRAET
) E R B PR S SIR MR o RIBEA
SEMZEREENERDS - AREB
TP UER S & PS5 ORE - AERESRE
PEHE AR Z e BB R EMR SR

=
EL©

HMENFIRARE RBRERER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. AT RIRIT R EMERK
BORROWINGS
2020 2019
i “ENE
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity RMB’000 per annum Maturity RMB'000
HES) HES)
EFIE(%) A  AR%TR EH% (%) e ARETRE
Current ik
Bank loans — secured  $RITE N — B 3.38-5.70 2021 5,921,169 3.82-8.70 2020 5,808,229
Bank loans — unsecured $R{TEZ — MK 3.48 2021 114,947 5.97 2020 34,866
Other loans —secured ~ EthEZH —AEA  5.22-10.10 2021 3,354,141 5.22-10.90 2020 3,015,395
9,390,257 8,858,490
Non-current Elirt)
Bank loans —secured  $R{TEZ — BIKHA 2.78-6.90 2022-2034 15,024,365 4.40-7.30 2021-2034 9,646,567
Bank loans — unsecured 3178 3 — EIKIF 3.48 2022 180,631 5.97 2022 313,794
Other loans — secured ~ E &7 — B H 8.50-9.50 2022 1,080,359  643-1080  2021-2022 2,441,405
16,285,355 12,401,766

25,675,612 21,260,256
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥ B

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. sTESRIT AN EMER @)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

2020 2019
—EB-FF  ZTNHF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: JEEERITER
Within one year or on demand —FRILBE K 6,036,116 5,843,095
In the second year F_F 3,654,207 4,768,381
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZhE(PREEREMF) 10,177,554 4,081,871
Beyond fifth years EREF 1,373,235 1,110,109
21,241,112 15,803,456
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEHMER
Within one year —F R 3,354,141 3,015,395
In the second year F_F 1,080,359 1,761,405
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZhE(PREEEMF) - 680,000

4,434,500 5,456,800

25,675,612 21,260,256
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group's bank deposits, property and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development and completed properties
held for sale, details of which are disclosed in note 43 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings with an aggregate amount of RMB5, 143,806,000 (2019:
RMBS5,649,205,000) were secured by share charges in respect of the
equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group, details of which
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Except for certain bank and other borrowings of RMB3,214,046,000
(2019: RMB3,351,778,000) and RMB1,564,620,000 (2019:
RMB61,710,000) as at 31 December 2020 which were denominated
in HK$ and United States dollars (“US$"), respectively, all of the
Group's bank and other borrowings were denominated in RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, except for certain bank and other
borrowings of RMB6,296,277,000 (2019: RMB5,961,790,000) with
fixed interest rates, all of the Group’s bank and other borrowings bear
interest at floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank and other borrowings of
RMB4,778,666,000 (2019: RMB3,216,807,000) were secured by a
specific performance obligation imposed on the Wong Family and
pursuant to which (i) the Wong Family must remain the single largest
shareholder in the Company; (ii) the Wong Family must hold legally
and beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% or 40% or more of all
classes of the Company’s voting share capital and/or must directly or
indirectly control the Company; and (iii) Mr. Wong or a member of
the Wong Family must remain to be the chairman of the Board of the
Company.
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(a)

()

H 55K )

REEME TRITREMERAAREED
RITFR  MERRE  BREVE R
PYEERERECERMEERR - B
RARHIE R R 5 R MR 43 405 -

EAf:,quﬂL A=+—8  N&EEH

ETHROREMBMEREARYE
5,143,806,0007{:(7 —NF: AR
5,649,205,0007T) B A EE THE A A
BIRR AN i ORI VEHEHR - B HR TS
WMEMFE -

BRZZ-_ZFF+-_A=1+—HNETE
TREMERARY 3,214,046,000 T (=
T—N4F : AR#¥3,351,778,0007T) & A
R#1,564,620,000 L(ZE—NF : AR
#61,710,000 7T ) 9 B LA 7T R ZE T ([ £
TDIVEN  AEERMARTREME
FIEAANRETIE -

RIBEER - BRETRIEREMGERAR
#6,296,277,000C (= —NF : ARY
5,961,790,000 7T ) LAE & FIZ 5+ 250 + R
EBERATERTT REMEFIRZEF X
TR

R-ZE-_THE+-_A=+—0 AEED
%Eﬁ&ﬁmiéf XA R #4,778,666,000 7T

—h%F : AR#3,216,807,0007T)
m%&%&m—iﬁ)@iﬁi{ﬂﬂfﬁﬁ &
It )V EERRE NS BEE BN AR — &
KER  (NEEKRENBEEERERIE
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AN35% 840% 3k IA £ K SN B E K
MEEFHARAR Rii)EEEXHTRR
PREAP (I B N EEEETARRES
GEF o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥ B

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS 31. BAZRBMEANES
2020 2019
k- 3.3 “ENE
Principal  Contractual Principal ~ Contractual
at original interest at original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million  per annum Maturity RMB'000 ‘il per annum Maturity R\B'000
EE HE)
RAE Friz RAe £
BET (%) U8B ARKTR BET (%) HEE  ARETR
Senior Notes due in “S--E-RIH
March 2022 BiER US$500% 7T 5.875 2022 3249909 US$S00%ET 5875 2022 3438934
Senior Notes due in T -FmAYH
Apil 2021 BrZE USS600 £7 145 W1 39097%  USSG0ET 745 00 4131251
Senior Notes due in “5--F-R3IH
January 2021 BrZE - - - - US$S00%TC 875 2001 3443581
SeniorNotesdue i~ —E-MI4EM A3
April 2024 BiZ US$500% 7T 1315 2024 3255329 US§350%TT 7375 2024 2,395,960
Senior Notes duein ~~ —Z-=%MAF|H
Apil 2023 BrZE USS500£7 125 W3 33N USSSET 7.5 03 3430408
SeniorNotesduein ~~ —Z-RFRATIH
May 2025 BrZE US$500% 7T 1 2025 3,230,858 - - - -
DomesticBonds duein ~ R=E-FETAR
October and TZRIBNARES RVB
December 2020 - - - - ARE3444 76 2020 3,436,692
DomesticBonds duein -~ S =F ==&\ A5I4 RMB RMB
August 2023 HRAES ARH#540 6.95 2023 540,000  ARM540 6.95 2023 540,000
Domestic Bonds duein ~ W=+ AZI5 RMB
July 2024 WARES ARH1,460 55 200 1,460,000 - - - -
Domestic Bonds duein ~ A=E=RE+ A RMB
October 2025 OUNGI[G AR%2,000 55 2025 2,000,000 - - = =
20,887,264 20,816,826
Non-current portion Enahn (16,437,468) (17380,134)
Current portion TaHH 4,449,796 3,436,692
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

31. BARBEMEANES @)

(Continued)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T

Repayable: FE1E :
Within one year —F R 4,449,796 3,436,692
In the second year F—F 6,709,909 7,574,832
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZRF(BEEEMTE) 9,727,559 9,805,302

20,887,264 20,816,826

(a) Senior Notes

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of
the Senior Notes due in March 2022, the Senior Notes
due in April 2021, the Senior Notes due in April 2024, the
Senior Notes due in April 2023 and the Senior Notes due
in May 2025 (collectively, the “Senior Notes”) at any time
prior to the maturity date at the redemption prices
(principal amount plus applicable premium) plus accrued
and unpaid interest up to the redemption date, as set
forth in the written agreements between the Company
and the trustees of the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes are secured by pledges over the equity
interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company (note 1).

In January 2020, the Group issued additional senior notes
at coupon rate of 7.375% due 2024 with aggregate
principal amount of US$150,000,000 at a price of
103.181% of the principal amount. The additional senior
notes have been consolidated and formed a single class
with the Senior Notes due in April 2024.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Senior Notes (Continued)

In November 2020, the Group issued senior notes at
coupon rate of 7% due 2025 with aggregate principal
amount of US$500,000,000.

On 22 November 2020, the Company redeemed in full
the outstanding Senior Notes due in January 2021 before
maturity at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount thereof, plus the applicable premium as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption
date.

The fair values of the early redemption options of the
Senior Notes were not significant and therefore were not
recognised by the Group on inception and at 31
December 2020.

Domestic Bonds

At the end of the second year subsequent to the inception
date in August 2019, Xiamen Zhongjun as the issuer is
entitled to adjust the interest rate. The holders of the
Domestic Bonds due in August 2023 may at their options
to sell back the bonds to Xiamen Zhongjun in whole or in
part at their principal amounts at any time prior to the
maturity. In light of the above terms becoming effective
for the year ending 31 December 2021, the Domestic
Bonds due in August 2023 have been classified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

In July 2020, Xiamen Zhongjun, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued domestic corporate bonds of
RMB1,460,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.5% due in July
2024 at a price of 100% of the face value.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

31. BARBENMEANES @)

(a)

(b)

BEARE @)

R _ZTFE+—F  KEFEET
RZE_AFEHPNAE B
500,000,0003 757 % HIB L EIE -

RZZE-ZTF+—A=+=H &
RNEIEREIARRT 2 BB B P B R (E
EN-_T-_—F—A3HELE
% BEEAENZEBERNSEN
100% N L@ AR EREZEER A
R EET AR A FIE

HANEBAEENRERERPENR
AETTREK  NREBRERET
Ak-—ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H0H%

RAFRNIE -
BRES

REBABR_Z—NFN\ALNE
ZHFEFR - BFIPEWEREITA)
EREFAEFE MRZTEZ=FN\
RABEN A RMERFE ATEER
FEARTBER M EPIR B AR RS E
B2 EDES o B LR
REBILEE_E-—F+=-_A=+—
HERNER  RZTE==FN\AF
HHARESAR T -_TF+ -8
= t+—HEWSEARBARE -

RZZE_ZFLAH ARRzEE
MBAREFIFRERPEETR
TN F L ARENASEEARA
R #1,460,000,000 7T 5.5% 3 A A&
AIES - BEEREER100% °
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31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

(Continued)
(b) Domestic Bonds (Continued)

At the end of the second year subsequent to the inception
date in July 2020, Xiamen Zhongjun as the issuer is
entitled to adjust the interest rate and the holders of the
Domestic Bonds due in July 2024 may at their options sell
back the bonds to Xiamen Zhongjun in whole or in part at
their principal amounts at any time prior to the maturity.

In October 2020, Xiamen Zhongjun, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued domestic corporate
bonds of RMB2,000,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.5%
due in October 2025 at a price of 100% of the face value.

At the end of the second year and the fourth year
subsequent to the inception date in October 2020,
Xiamen Zhongjun as the issuer is entitled to adjust the
interest rate and the holders of the Domestic Bonds due
in October 2025 may at their options sell back the bonds
to Xiamen Zhongjun in whole or in part at their principal
amounts at any time prior to the maturity.

The aggregate fair value of the Senior Notes and
Domestic Bonds as at the end of the reporting period was
RMB21,467,923,000 (2019: RMB21,218,161,000).

The fair values of the Senior Notes and the Domestic Bonds are
based on price quotations from financial institutions at the
reporting date.
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. RAEFHIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the RER  EERBABELREENEZSN
year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIBEAE
Revaluation
of properties
EAYE
Notes RMB’'000
Bt aE ARBTFT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NF—A—H 2,304,830
Charged to profit or loss during the year MEFANEZ= 365,253
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT A~ A 38 1,354,574
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary R R E — R E A A 38 50,262
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 40 (26,654)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—HRK
—ZE_T¥—HA—H 4,048,265
Charged to profit or loss during the year MEFRER 139,814
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B A =) 38 149,307
Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not a business 4 f JE 2 7514 & &Y Kt B A F) 39 14,973
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB_ZF+_A=+—H 4,352,359
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

32. IREFIE ()

Deferred tax assets BELEBIBEERE
Losses
Unrealised available for
profits offsetting
arising from against future
intra-group Provision taxable
transactions of LAT profits Total
SERH AALE
RHH TibEESR ARERB
AR EH B b oA @t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Pisr ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2019 —Z-nNE5—HA-H 47,156 292,942 247,063 587,161
Acquisition of subsidiaries &= yNg 38 - - 1,512 1,512
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary REYE-EREAR 38 - - 17,272 17,272
Acquisition of subsidiaries that are WK E RO B AR
not a business 39 - - 22 22
Credited to profit or loss during the year &t AF R84 12,403 20,874 97,661 130,938
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZE-NE+=-A=1—H
1 January 2020 k=F=-TF—H—H 59,559 313,816 363,530 736,905
Acquisition of subsidiaries e =yNg 38 - - 4,79 4,79%
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RAKE—AERBAR 38 - - 12,578 12,578
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBR 40 - - (40,357) (40,357)
Credited to profit or loss during the year 5t AFERE 49,300 23,519 202,097 274,916
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=1+—H 108,859 337,335 542,644 988,838
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 — = -ZTH#+_H=+—H
32, BIETIA ()

REIMS  BETEEHEEELAR
EEAZ*AHT%#R%W%LMK% AR

financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred ﬁﬁﬁls’j IETR B AR DT - 1EBT TS
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: wERS -
2020 2019
—ECEH —NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARETTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RGBSR RN TER
in the consolidated statement of BRI EE 5
financial position 981,237 714,805
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE BRI R AR
in the consolidated statement of EERIA B &SR
financial position 4,344,758 4,026,165

At 31 December 2020, the Group has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of RMB2,189,623,000 (2019: RMB1,473,167,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of certain of these losses of RMB8,719,000 (2019:
RMB19,048,000) as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
these tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement
became effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

RZZEZZTF+_A=+—0 ' &x&5H
RPEAEEENRDARBEBEAR
#2,189,623,000L(ZE —NF : AR
#1,473,167,0007T) * ZEHIBEEA
HEBLENFEREE AT - UEH
IR E ) T IE B A8 R R eY B AR B A
B o BB A R 26 E 8 5| AT IE
BEDETREZERRERE ER
BN IEZETIEEE - WASEN
Rt ARHS, 719,000 (= FE— A4 :
AR ¥ 19,048,000 ) M Fi B S 1B FER
RIETRIB A E o

RIFFBEBERMAEHZA ﬁl\l&é{%ﬁﬁ
R EMINIREERAESHR
AIRIR10% B R TR E%‘EE
R-ZTZNF-A—-REER @A
—EELFF A=+ HERINA
) o i B BR 2 HMNE AR B 3 P B BA R
B2 HAT AN BEERE AT RRE
BHWEHE - Akt - AERBBAEEH
R BERBRZIOHBARR —EZN
F-A—BEEENENADIROKE
B TEA -
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32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB19,384,366,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB15,141,144,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

As detailed in note 17 to these financial statements, the Group
has contractual obligations to fulfil as a condition of the
Operating Concession under the Operating Right Agreement.
The obligations are (a) to maintain the Facilities it operates to a
specified level of serviceability and (b) to restore the Facilities to
a specified condition before they are handed over to the Sports
Bureau at the end of the Operating Concession. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the sports and
recreation facilities, except for the upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at
the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The future
expenditure on these maintenance and restoration costs is
collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where
appropriate.
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33. PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS 33. Kig#tm @)
(Continued)
The movements in the provision for major overhauls of the FRN - ZERBONEBELSHOT

Facilities for the year are as follows:

2020 2019
—EF-FF  TNHF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AREBTE

At 1 January n—HA—H 52,677 45,412
Additional provisions (note 8) IR (P EE8) 5,710 5,465
Increase in a discounted amount arising R By P80 7 44 1 /25 A RO ST BR (B S8 B
from the passage of time (note 7) (B$zE7) 2,724 2,372
Amount utilised during the year FRNEASHE (492) (572)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 60,619 52,677
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. fg7
Shares dv)
2020 2019
—EIEF —E—NF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JARE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of FRXHEEO0.108TH
HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,000 A% & 378 A 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
4,222,133,380 (2019: 4,182,133,380) FRYHEEO0.108Th
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 4,222,133,380f% (=T — L5 :
4,182,133,380 A% ) &A% 422,213,338 418,213,338
Equivalent to RMB’000 HENARET T 365,064 361,497
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital

is as follows:

34. I &)

R (&)

ARRIEBRTHRAZZBHEMNT ¢

Number of
shares Issued
in issue capital
BT
RABEE BERTRA
Notes HK$
FisE BT
At 1 January 2019 W_ZE—nF—H—H 4,087,583,380 408,758,338
Share options exercised BT (a) 94,550,000 9,455,000
At 31 December 2019 and RZEBE-—hE+=-A=1+—8H
1 January 2020 ;rZE-ZHF—HF—H 4,182,133,380 418,213,338
Share options exercised BT E (b) 40,000,000 4,000,000
At 31 December 2020 RN-E-EE+-_A=1+—H 4,222,133,380 422,213,338
Notes: BteE -
(@)  Subscription rights attaching to 38,550,000 and 56,000,000 share (@ 38,550,000 7 K 56,000,000 7 i f 1 i Fff

options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$2.4 per share
and HK$2.78 per share, respectively (note 35), resulting in the issue
of 94,550,000 shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of approximately HK$248,200,000. An amount of approximately
RMB24,535,000 was transferred from the share option reserve to the
share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

Subscription rights attaching to 40,000,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$2.78 per share (note 35),
resulting in the issue of 40,000,000 shares for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$111,200,000.
An amount of approximately RMB12,321,000 was transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the option scheme adopted by the Company on 23
April 2018 (the “2018 Scheme”), the directors may, at its
absolute discretion, invite any participant to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. A total of 382,384,000
shares is available for issue under the 2018 Scheme, which
represented 10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue on 23
April 2018, the date of the ordinary resolution passed. Each
participant is entitled to no more than 1% of the total number
of shares in issue in any 12-month period. The options shall
expire, in any event, not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option subject to the provision for early termination
set out in the 2018 Scheme. The 2018 Scheme remain in force
until 22 April 2028.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2018 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the 2018 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 — = -ZTH#+_H=+—H
fEAx st 2

BEARTR=_E—N\FLA=+=H
((ZZ—N\F5T8l ) R —EE R
g EETEERNEEREMN2HEERE
REREARBRAG RGN - ZF—N\
FEHE| 8174 £ 382,384,000 A% A% 15
HERARRABRGR=ZT—/\FHEA
T+t =HERAERZBBBENDET
IR BER 10% - BR2EERE[ 12
B ABEAR A RENBBE ETRM
%@m1%°EEH%RT*%k%%T
SEAEMNR L EREBBRET 5
WS E - N\FREBEFEFHCRER
RIEIERAIBRIN e ZF— NFEHEIHR
—E-N\FUA -+ _HRABEK -

BRIEERE T — \Fia R Ea W
RITEERESREE RBESNEET
FRAR BB BTG 30% HEEE - B
FEFRRRRESRKERLE  TAFT

HL2EATEEMI12ERA NERNERET
LATTIE R RT3/ T R G BT E HF NS HE
BARBIEBEITNEBEMNESFN1% -

BTYARARIES TBTBRABRHEE
BRER Sk 18 ST B B A BB AR iR IES
RATBIIERITEETHELERE - 11t
SN RAEM 12 A BRA - ZBTFARF
TERRKBILIENTESRESEM
B2 A MBE AN A R B BT 89 0.1%
S4B E (R R ARG R % B AR
B3 ) R 5,000,000 7 7T A 1E {a] BE A%
REAEREAS FESRENSLIE -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. BT 2] ()
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 5 BREERENEZENTNREL HE#EETS
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal HRBEARASZNEEZI1BTHRER
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise REGEEN REBERENTESHRSE
period of the share options granted is determinable by the EETF YR TEREREZLY AL
directors and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years F10FEZEBKRIE -

from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share option is determinable by the BRENITEEREZEEETE  BEFREERE
directors, but should not be less than the highest of (i) the RUAT=FERHNESE : ()ARQ 7 RM%
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the REBRER Y HREREH TS H®R
Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of BEMAHWTE : (VA2 RDNE
the share options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of BB 48 R A AR 5 B fE 5 22 PPt
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange for the five BFHRTE KA ARG HEE -

trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends B IR A N B T H i A A RE R WL E AR &
or to vote at shareholder’s meetings. R AE FIRE o
The following share options were outstanding under the 2018 TR —F— \FFEBETEKRITED
Scheme during the year: BREEINT
2020 2019
—EBE —E-NF
Exercise Number of Exercise ~ Number of
price options price options
TEE BREXA TR BAREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 HBIT F1n
At beginning of year REH) 2.78 326,000 2.78 382,000
Exercised during the year NERTTE 2.78 (40,000) 2.78 (56,000)
At end of year REFER 2.78 286,000 2.78 326,000
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

LR E R

31 December 2020 — = -ZTH#+_H=+—H
35. IR T2 ()

RBERR - HARITEBRENTTEE
RATHEEAESIIT

2020
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—EC-ERF
BRERE 1T1E(E 1T1E R
‘000 HK$
T BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—NF+rA—BEZE-_N\F+=-A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—E_THEH+A-HEZZZN\F+ZA+—H
286,000
2019
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—NE
BREHA 17fE(E 175
‘000 HK$
T BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—E-NEF+A-BEZZE-N\F+A+—H
191,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—ECEFEA—HEZZ)N\F+ZA+—H
326,000
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted in 2018 was
HK$137,017,000 (equivalent to RMB120,397,000) (ranged
from HK$0.33 to HK$0.38 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of RMB21,429,000 (2019:
RMB93,776,000) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
2018 Scheme in 2018 was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted and the

35.

HEREREST 2 ()

RZZE-—NEAREBRENAAE
#$137,017,000% T(#H & N A R %
120,397,0007T) (B M F033BTE
0.38%7T) HRAAREERHBE_T_F
FTr-A=T—HIEFECERERE
MY A AR21,429,000t(=ZFE— A
F: AR¥93,776,0007T) °

RZZE-—N\FRE-_FT-N\FHEMEX
hESEEBERENAAERK LA S
KA —EAEEEE G S AR
o B SR RO SRR B AR - T R R SIUR

following table lists the major inputs used: Fir{s AR B == B A B -
2018
Sr S
Dividend yield (%) A% B % (%) 7.19
Expected volatility (%) T BB 0 (%) 28.63
Risk-free interest rate (%) A [, B 1) 2K (%) 2.7

Exit rates of the grantees of the options BIE=T— N\ Far 8l HERED

granted under the 2018 Scheme (%) AR AR KE (%) 0

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.
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35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
286,000,000 (2019: 326,000,000) share options outstanding
under the 2018 Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 286,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$28,600,000 (equivalent to RMB24,084,000) and share
premium of HK$766,480,000 (equivalent to RMB645,453,000)
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 286,000,000 share options outstanding under
the 2018 Scheme, which represented approximately 6.77% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group'’s reserves and the movements
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 110 and 111 of
the financial statements.
(b) Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the difference between the
amounts of consideration and the carrying values of non-
controlling interests acquired or disposed of.
(c) Statutory surplus reserve
Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the

Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

35.

36.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H
REpcEsTEl )

RBEIR » RRABE=ZF— /\Fir 2
™ # %286,000,000( — & — J1 F:
326,000,000) 17 18 AR 17 {5 B AR 4 o £ 7R
REBREEREBET  BEITEZER
TEEREKS BARQAREIT
286,000,000 R FEANE AR - 2 A FE AN
% 7<28,600,0007% T (1 & X A B &
24,084,000 7T ) & % 17 4 B 766,480,000
BT (FEE R AR 645,453,0007T) (K
MNREITER) -

Rt EMEHmRREMERR - NARE
—Z— )\ & & T # & 286,000,000 f
BARITEEREREE - HERARRNZA
KB BEITIRNDA6.77% °

4

(a) A&EHE
REEBRFRNFEE M EESH 25
RARFERE1I0EME 111 BHE
AREEEEFRNA -

(b) EXfEE
BN RIEPTIE S  E IR AR
SR EREEEZFNERE

(0 EEBERHE

BRB R FE R 5T BRGERE T
REFEABRAFERARAR
RIE AR B AR ST RO B A R AR A 5
SEBITEL - WIS EREE R
Ao
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36. RESERVES (Continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus reserve
can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion to equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the excess of the
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s
cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common
control upon the group reorganisation completed in
December 2007.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options vested which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy of share-based
payments in note 3 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related share options are exercised, or
transferred to retained profits should the related share
options lapse or be forfeited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

37.

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

RN 2 g

g IS

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BB A A
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- A EAJEIEIRERNAEEN B A A
controlling interests are set out below: BN
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
Percentage of equity interest held IEERERFTIERES D
by non-controlling interests:
Nanjing Junyuan Real Estate AR RE M E
Development Co., Ltd. AEARAF
(“Nanjing Junyuan”) (TFmEER]) N/A* 50%
Xiamen Junyou EFi8% N/A** 54%
Hangzhou Taixin Enterprise Management  fu/NZEMEEEEER A A
Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Taixin") ([T MZ=R]) 50% 50%
Hangzhou Runyi Aviation Services N EEMZERE R A
Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Runyi”) ([ MEzE ) 51% 49%
Xiamen Junming EFIEES 61% -
Xuzhou Junxing RN B 54% 54%
2020 2019
—E-EF —E2-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 5B IEIE IR SR
non-controlling interests: FREAM,(EE)
Nanjing Junyuan A R BR R N/A* (6,334)
Xiamen Junyou EM%E N/A** =
Hangzhou Taixin LN ZRR 95,047 (6,116)
Hangzhou Runyi A (15,002) (561)
Xiamen Junming EFEES - -
Xuzhou Junxing RN 58 5 (10,108) (5,294)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling  ¥R45 B HAZE1EARAE RS 8
interests at the reporting dates: Retitek
Nanjing Junyuan Epst 3 N/A* 992,164
Xiamen Junyou EF8&1A N/A** 1,099,988
Hangzhou Taixin FLINZRAR 841,299 746,252
Hangzhou Runyi TN R 649,233 636,439
Xiamen Junming [EFIEES 1,813,781 =
Xuzhou Junxing RN BE B 759,428 769,536
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. BEEARERER IR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EANENGING )
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIRMIMNER - M EHE - B
information of Hangzhou Taixin, Hangzhou Runyi, Xiamen NE K 14 )1 B4 B A BA FS A ALt - B
Junming and Xuzhou Junxing. The amounts disclosed are before BTRER A B EE AT H B
any inter-company eliminations:
Hangzhou Hangzhou Xiamen Xuzhou
Taixin Runyi Junming Junxing
2020 —ECEH WA EI T mNEE Er9EES L3

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTRT AR®TRE AR®BTT

Revenue WS 1,239,279 - - -
Other income E A 1,943 2,032 - 1,236
Total expenses BREX (1,051,735) (31,367) - (19,983)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREA(EE) 189,487 (29,335) - (18,747)
Total comprehensive income/ FRZEU A (EE)

(loss) for the year k] 189,487 (29,335) - (18,747)
Current assets BN E 2,797,564 3,670,002 8,959,859 4,498,840
Non-current assets FERBEE 50 7,009 13,692 7,969
Current liabilities mEBaRE (1,120,383) (1,969,160) (6,022,394) (2,948,375)
Non-current liabilities ERFEE - (438,330) - (150,000)
Net cash flows from LETEATSIRE

operating activities e HE 1,805,736 601,000 - 1,745,885
Net cash flows from/(used in) =& EEIFTE, (FRTE)

investing activities WEMEFE 52,207 (293,782) - )
Net cash flows used in & EEFTREERE S

financing activities mEFE (2,005,211)  (903,152) - (1,512,302)
Net increase/(decrease) ReKIREEEY

in cash and cash #h, O ) F 58

equivalents (147,268) (595,934) - 233,576
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37. BEEARIEERERZIER
EIEMNGINE )

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Nanjing Junyuan, Xiamen Junyou, Hangzhou
Taixin and Hangzhou Runyi. The amounts disclosed are before
any inter-company eliminations:

TRIVRERER - BEFI%E - MMZE
BN B f 75 ER R - AR
TS ME R R SH AT IR R

Nanjing Xiamen Hangzhou Hangzhou
Junyuan Junyou Taixin Runyi
2019 —T—NF B EPIEG M ZRAR B =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT AR®TT ARETT
Revenue U z5 - - - -
Other income E bl A 167 = 497 11
Total expenses FElES I3 (12,846) - (12,690) (1,155)
Loss for the year FAEIE (12,679) - (12,193) (1,144)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEIBLE
for the year (12,679) - (12,193) (1,144)
Current assets RENEE 3,023,452 7,705,090 2,788,628 2,690,342
Non-current assets ERENEE 4,988 17,746 2,234 287
Current liabilities mEE & (260,524) (5,633,672)  (693,743) (1,391,773)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (782,000) (50,262) (609,375) =
Net cash flows used in RESTEEFTAIR S
operating activities e R (383,125) = (674,355) (924,161)
Net cash flows used in KETHMRERES
investing activities mEFEE (85) = (68,745) (32)
Net cash flows from METHEES
financing activities mEFE 478,678 - 920,658 1,675,705
Net increase in cash and B NIBEEEY
cash equivalents EHNFEER 95,468 - 177,558 751,512

* K

As a result of losing control by the Group over Nanjing Junyuan in
2020, Nanjing Junyuan has now become a joint venture and been
deconsolidated from the Group’s financial statements; and therefore,
the summarised financial information of Nanjing Junyuan for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is not presented in the financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors, as a result of acquisition of non-
controlling interest by the Group over Xiamen Junyou in 2020,
Xiamen Junyou is no longer considered as a non-wholly owned
subsidiary with material non-controlling interests of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020, and therefore, the summarised
financial information of Xiamen Junyou for the year ended 31
December 2020 is not presented in the financial statements.

* %

BN T - REAREEKERRERRNE
HEm A RERERKEE QA RTHER
REBEPERERAOF - FTABRBENERK
RHBE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HILLF
EEITSE R I N AR RRIRE

BEEZERR ANAKERN-_Z_TFKE
EFSERIERES  HE_T_FTF
TZA=Z+—HLEFE - EFBRETBRE
BRARBEEAFERES 22 EME
RA AABBREMRENEBE—F =
ZE+-A=+—BLEFEFBAERD
WENAAEWRIRE
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Year ended 31 December 2020

Acquisition of subsidiaries

In June 2020, the Group acquired an additional 20% equity
interest in Beijing Junle Enterprise Management Consultancy
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Junle”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary
(collectively "Beijing Junle Group”), which were previously
50.01%-owned joint ventures. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group held 70.01% of equity interest in Beijing
Junle Group and has obtained control over the board of Beijing
Junle Group. Beijing Junle Group is engaged in property
development and property investment in Beijing, the PRC. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of
cash of RMB60,500,000.

In September 2020, the Group acquired an additional 41.93%
equity interest in Nan’an Junbang Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Nan’an Junbang”), which was previously a
50.07%-owned joint venture. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group held 92% of equity interest in Nan'an
Junbang and has obtained control over the board. Nan’an
Junbang is engaged in property development and property
investment in Quanzhou, the PRC. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB209,650,000.

The acquisition of Beijing Junle Group and Nan’an Junbang
were completed in 2020 and consequently, Beijing Junle Group
and Nan‘an Junbang became subsidiaries of the Group.
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RZE_TFNA AEERKBERL
BREHWEREER AR (EEEFL])
(ER%—M50.07% & é%ﬁ?)%%ﬁ
HNA1.93% IR HE BT 37 16 = R 5 T
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. ¥ EH®)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued) BE-_ZE-_Z®+=-_H=+—H
IEFEE#E)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) BB AT ()
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
acquisition of subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition were as

Y BB PN B B U EE B e R BRI B E K
BEARENT

follows:

Beijing Nan’an
Junle Group Junbang Total
TREEER [k & st
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ks ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Property and equipment LIEYNE'S 14 125 123 248
Investment properties TEMZE 15 - 283,909 283,909
Properties under development R 2,315,000 1,233,136 3,548,136
Prepaid income tax SERNE R 2,589 47,089 49,678
Deferred tax assets B IBEE 32 - 4,796 4,796
Other current assets HiREEE 1,659,018 1,967,765 3,626,783
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEFEY 44,859 110,121 154,980
Trade and bills payables B RN HIERER (6,212) (2,357) (8,569)
Contract liabilities ARAaRE (327,326) (1,377,546) (1,704,872)
Other current liabilities Hitwrshams (2,225,057) (322,682) (2,547,739)
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRITRHAMER
other borrowings (1,000,000) (1,726,000) (2,726,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIERE 32 (149,307) - (149,307)
Non-controlling interests ElSudilgr (94,075) (6,905) (100,980)
Total identifiable net assets at BANREFER
fair value AR EERE 219,614 211,449 431,063
Gain on bargain purchase EAEL G0 6 (33,673) - (33,673)
185,941 211,449 397,390
Satisfied by: AT F R
Cash fizkcy 60,500 209,650 270,150
Reclassification from SRR G &R A
pre-existing investments KEEHERN
in joint ventures to M B A RHIRE
investments in subsidiaries 125,441 1,799 127,240
185,941 211,449 397,390
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. XA #)
Year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued) BE2-_Z_FF+-A=t+—H
LLFE#E)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WM E LR ()
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as ZW IR S e DI ¢
follows:
RMB’000
ARBT
Cash consideration HERE (270,150)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrEIR S RIS ZEY 154,980
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ARWENEBATNES K
in respect of the acquisitions of subsidiaries BeSEMRLFEE (115,170)
The results of the Beijing Junle Group acquired during the year FRAMRENI RBEEEE 2 £2EHAK
had no significant impact on the Group'’s consolidated revenue SEEE—_T_ZF+_A=+—HL
or profit for the year ended 31 December 2020. FEMGERGIRNLBEERNTE -
Since the acquisition, Nan‘an Junbang contributed RMB1,121,326,000 BWEE  BEERBRELEE—_2=F
to the Group's revenue and RMB246,164,000 to the Group's F+_A=T—HLEFEAAEEETE
profit for the year ended 31 December 2020. I zs AR 1,121,326,000 7T K2 AN 5= B %%
FARY 246,164,000 7T ©
Had the combination of Nan’an Junbang taken place at the NEREBRRNFERBEAN &
beginning of the year, the revenue and the profit of the Group REENWR R&m MDA R
for the year would have been RMB32,572,605,000 and A K #32,572,605,0007TC & A R ¥
RMB4,421,698,000, respectively. 4,421,698,0007T °
The gain on bargain purchase is attributable to the market & B UL B U 5 A R R B B 9 T IS AR
condition at the time of acquisition and the Group's ability in //DLJ//( Fe 78 5= 1B B2 B 7 19 PR 22 5 O 0 TE 16k
negotiating the agreed terms of the transaction with the RHIEE
vendor.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

On 1 December 2020, the Group reached a resolution (the
“Resolution”) with the joint venture partners of Xiamen
Junming, pursuant to which the Group is entitled to appoint
three of the five directors in the board of directors of Xiamen
Junming. Xiamen Junming was previously a 38.54%-owned
joint venture, and as a result of the Resolution, the Group
obtained control of Xiamen Junming. Xiamen Junming is
principally engaged in the business of property development in
Xiamen.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 — = -ZTH#+_H=+—H
38. X & 0@

BE-_Z-ZH¥+=-A=+—H
IEFEE#E)

BEWE-EHWEQF

R-ZF-_FTE+-_A—B AKEHE
FIBRISH & &R ERORZE (DRFE]) -

AEEERZEIEMREEEZTEREE
ENHEP=Z@E - EMRBRER —H
38.54% A ENF]  INRFHR - A&EH
EREPIBGHEHIE - EMKRBEER
EEFIETYRBRRER

15 1D B — T B 2 0 20 K R A T 3
BIEEREEAAENT :

Xiamen

Junming

EMER

Notes RMB’000

Fd5E ARETR

Property and equipment S E YL 14 1.114
Properties under development BRPYE 6,592,000
Deferred tax assets BRI A E 32 12,578
Other current assets HEitnsEE 2,152,113
Prepaid income tax TN 179,433
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEEYD 36,439
Trade and bills payables B I RENFIBERER (9,985)
Contract liabilities AREE (5,653,821)
Other current liabilities EMnEaE (358,714)
Non-controlling interests FEIARRERS (1,813,781)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAREFENR RN FEERE 1,137,376
Reclassification of investment in a joint venture A —F&& A TR EESE (1,102,345)
Gain on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary 5 [ U — R B & J) s 6 35,031
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. X1%E 0t
Year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued) BE2-_Z_FF+-A=t+—H
LLFE#E)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) HEWE—EMEAR (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as MBI SR oI -
follows:
RMB’000
ARETR
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiEIR & RIREFEY 36,439
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect FARRRE - B ARNIRE K&
of deemed acquisition of a subsidiary REFEWRAFEE 36,439

The result of Xiamen Junming acquired during the year had no
significant impact on the Group's consolidated revenue or profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Year ended 31 December 2019

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 11 November 2016, the Group entered into agreements in
relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interests in Best
Century (Worldwide) Limited (“Best Century”) and 40% equity
interests in Taiwan Commodity Trading Center (Kunshan) Co.,
Ltd. (“Taiwan Commodity”). Best Century and its subsidiaries
and Taiwan Commodity are engaged in property development
in the Jiangsu province in the PRC. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB1,361,522,000.

On 7 December 2018, the Group entered into an agreement in
relation to the acquisition of 51% of the equity interests in
Hong Hui Development Company Limited (“Hong Hui”). Hong
Hui and its subsidiaries are engaged in property development in
the Jiangsu province in the PRC. The purchase consideration for
the acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB628,728,000.
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BE_Z_TF+t_A=1+—HLLFE
MR B IRE OB W BEARE -
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ltilz

s B BB 1 ]

R-ZF—A"E+—A+—B AKEHR
WiEF A R AR QA ([HER])
MEBRERGEERRZ ST O (EIL)
BRAR(TRE®EmR])#)40% IAERT L
e o B LENBAR R ERA
IREPERTIHEETOEERRER -
ERBEBEBREREZARR
1,361,522,000 7T °

R_ZE—N\E+-AtH AEBERK
FEoAERZEER AR ([5AE]) K51% %
BRI e - LB REMBAREER
FETHE BT ERREER - B
BRERE S AR 628,728,000 7T °
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 38.

Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisitions of Best Century, Taiwan Commodity and Hong

Hui were completed in 2019 and consequently, Best Century,

Taiwan Commodity and Hong Hui and their respective

subsidiaries became non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Group.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

acquisition of subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition were as

follows:

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H
E LS XIE )

E=—2-hnft+=A=+-A
1%:3:-4€ )

WEEME QR (4F)

HER aEEmMoABRBER=-F
—NEZTK - RE - KK BEE®
KolEREZEBZMBARK AR EHE
FEEWBAR

IR B BT 2 A MR B RO T S BB R
aEAREMT :

Notes RMB’000
ME ARBTT

Property and equipment I EYS &L 14 325
Investment in an associate REEE R RIRIRE 67,364
Properties under development ERPYE 4,649,300
Completed properties held for sale FELEB BRI 490,900
Other current assets HAibRB & E 62,315
Cash and cash equivalents RERHACEEY 1,266
Trade and bills payables B I ENFIBREE (2,573)
Contract liabilities ERAE (108,636)
Other current liabilities Hitmeh B & (331,921)
Tax payable FEfSHEIR (7,866)
Deferred tax liabilities BLEFIBEE 32 (1,353,062)
Non-controlling interests e (912,813)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREFENRENFEERE 2,554,599
Gain on bargain purchase A EREER I 6 (564,349)
1,990,250

Satisfied by: LATRF AR
Cash Re 1,990,250
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. %

Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as

WEEME QR (&)

ZEWBNRSREDNWT :

follows:
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration HeRKE (1,990,250)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired kiR e RIS EY 1,266
Outstanding consideration at the end of HMEMRKRANRE
the reporting period 375,360
Consideration prepaid in 2018 RZZE— ) N\FEMHRE 904,199
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in ARWERBATNIRE RIS
respect of acquisition of subsidiaries EEYRL FE (709,425)

The results of Best Century, Taiwan Commodity, Hong Hui and
their respective subsidiaries acquired during the year had no
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or profit
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The gain on bargain purchase is attributable to the market
condition at the time of acquisition and the Group’s ability in
negotiating the agreed terms of the transaction with the
vendor.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. ¥ & @

Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

On 19 December 2019, the Group reached a resolution (the
“Resolution”) with the joint venture partners of Xiamen Junyou,
pursuant to which the Group is entitled to appoint three of the
five directors in the board of directors of Xiamen Junyou.
Xiamen Junyou was previously a 50%-owned joint venture, and
as a result of the Resolution, the Group obtained control of
Xiamen Junyou. Xiamen Junyou is principally engaged in the
business of property development in Xiamen.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

Z2-E-hhE+=ZH=+—H
IEFEE#E)

BEWE-EHWEQF

RIE-NAFE+-A+NLB AEEH
EFfBRENEEBHERRZE(R
&) AEBERZREEFIRKESS
ﬁf%%ﬁ’]ﬁqﬂzﬂofﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ*
B50% A ZERF  MRFHR  A&H
EREPIBMHEHIE - EMRAEE
EEFIETYRBRRER

BRWE-RMEARNKRE B H
AMEERBBAAEBENT :

Xiamen

Junyou

=P8kt

Notes RMB’000
et ARETT

Property and equipment I EYS &L 14 474
Properties under development BRI 4,425,000
Other current assets Hityme & e 2,545,862

Prepaid income tax SEANE A 207,291

Cash and cash equivalents ReE KA EEY 526,937

Trade and bills payables E ZIENTIBEREE (83,415)
Contract liabilities aRBE (5,547,657)
Other current liabilities Hit R A& (2,600)
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBEE 32 (32,990)
Non-controlling interests FEfE R = (1,099,376)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARENENAH#HIFEERE 939,526
Reclassification of investment in a joint venture A —R& 4 ATINIREESHE (939,526)

Gain on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary R R EE — R E A

Aas -
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. K550t
Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) BE=-Z—h&E+=-A=+—H
IEFE )
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) HEWE—EMEAR (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as ZW IR SO T ¢
follows:
RMB'000
ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Fri e iR & RIR & EEY 526,937
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in AR R RIS —EH B AR
respect of deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RekIREEEMRARE 526,937
The result of Xiamen Junyou acquired during the prior year had AR PP IR Y R FI B8R 1R 2 RIRET AR
no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or SEHEE_T-NAFT_A=t+—AL
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019. FENLRERSSORFITREALE -
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT ARE 39, WHESEEKE B RMHE R A
NOT A BUSINESS

Year ended 31 December 2020 E-_E-_EF+-RA=+—H
LLFE
In March 2020, the Group entered into an agreement in relation R-IEBE-_TF=F KNEBRBRWKEERN
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Xiamen Hui ERMIEEEEZAERAR([EFE
Sheng Cheng Investment Management Consultancy Co., Ltd. B ) B2 ERRRMERT S ek o EPTERX
(“Xiamen Hui Sheng Cheng”). Xiamen Hui Sheng Cheng is HEEBERE LB ETYEREER -
engaged in property investment in Shanghai, the PRC. The %?}’CH&Z%{%{EEEE%)\E%BO 000,000
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of T ZWEBEFHEEN _ZE_EF =A%
cash of RMB30,000,000. The acquisition was completed in B MEFEXRBEKAAEENEE
March 2020, and Xiamen Hui Sheng Cheng became a wholly- LR EPNG]

owned subsidiary of the Group.

The net assets acquired by the Group in the above transaction is AREBR LR ZFHATKNENEEFE
as follows: AT

Xiamen Hui

Sheng Cheng
EPERRHE

Notes RMB’000
gz ARBF T

Net assets acquired: P s & 2R 18
Investment properties wEMZE 15 766,280
Other current assets HEMREEE 24,650
Cash and cash equivalents RERASEBY 1,553
Other current liabilities Hiymsh & i (747,510)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAE 32 (14,973)
30,000

Satisfied by: LATRFI AR AT
Cash T4 30,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT ARE

NOT A BUSINESS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as

CWEEIER B IEE R B A A

(&)

E-E-_Z2F+-A=1+—H
f1:3:-4¢))

ZWEEENRSRESNIT

follows:
RMB’000
AR®TR
Cash consideration RERE (30,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiEIR & MRS FED 1,553
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AR UL EE — B IEEB M E A B A F 8
in respect of acquisition of a subsidiary BekIREeEEMRLFRE
that is not a business (28,447)

Prior to completion of the acquisition, Xiamen Hui Sheng Cheng
had not carried on any significant business activities except for
the holding of investment properties. This acquisition was
accounted for by the Group as acquisition of assets, as the
operations of Xiamen Hui Sheng Cheng did not constitute a
business.

Year ended 31 December 2019

In May 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party for the acquisition
of a 51% equity interest in Chongqging Sanchengyihui at a
consideration of RMB510,000,000. The acquisition was
completed in May 2019, and Chongging Sanchengyihui became
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT ARE

NOT A BUSINESS (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

In June 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with two independent third parties for the
acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Sky Peace Holdings
Limited (“Sky Peace”), which wholly owned each of Shanwei
Dongweiya Development Property Co., Ltd. and Shanwei Xinji
Development Property Co., Ltd. (collectively, “Sky Peace
Group”), at a consideration of RMB458,010,000. The
acquisition was completed in June 2019, and Sky Peace Group
became wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group acquired certain property
development companies with an aggregate consideration of
RMB155,750,000 during the year.

The net assets acquired by the Group in the above transactions
are as follows:

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

39. WIRIEZ IS E B A

(&)

BE-®-AF+=A=+—8
f1%:3:-4¢))

RZZB—NENA AEEERE B
BEZFRRBAMEBERA A X
M EEALETREDERREXFR
RAIKNETHEREEXAR AR (K
MBIRXFMER]) B 100% BAE) 2B
BIIUROHERRE RERARYK
458,010,0007C - Z WEEBEER =T
—NEXNAEK - MAMEBEK AL
SEMNZENBAR -

BRIA LR ES - AEERFAYRES
THXBREAR BRERBARYE
155,750,000 7T ©

AEER LR ZHAKRBENEEFE
o

Chongging Sky Peace

Sanchengyihui Group Others Total
EE = ANEE HAh st
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT

Net assets acquired: ke EESE
Property and equipment LIESET 14 - 7 _ 7
Properties under development BRPYE 565,001 607,087 243,239 1,415,327
Deferred tax assets ERERIELE 32 = 22 = 22
Other current assets Hitme & E 691,650 95 308 692,053
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEY 6,846 279 180,000 187,125
Trade and bills payables B HRNFEREE (514) (223) 8) (745)
Other current liabilities HibREas (263,841) (149,257) (188,539) (601,637)
Non-controlling interests R (489,142) - (79,250) (568,392)
510,000 458,010 155,750 1,123,760

Satisfied by: PRNIVESTE
Cash He 510,000 458,010 155,750 1,123,760
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT ARE o1

NOT A BUSINESS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as

I

WHEFERFIEE M B A 7

(&)

B8EZE-_F-NF+=-A=1t—H
I BE (48)

ZEWREEENRSRENTNT -

follows:
RMB'000
ARETIT
Cash consideration RENRE (1,123,760)
Consideration payable KRB 255,200
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrkiER e RIREeEEY 187,125
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in AU BE JE TS IEE HIBT B A R/
respect of acquisition of subsidiaries that are HeRReEBYRLIFE
not a business (681,435)

Prior to completion of the respective acquisitions, these
subsidiaries had not carried on any significant business activities.
These acquisitions were accounted for by the Group as
acquisition of assets, as the operations of these subsidiaries do
not constitute a business.
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 31 December 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥ B

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

40. HEHMB R A

B8Ex-_F-_FF+=-RA=1t—H

ItHFE
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of during AEELHEWBARNEEFENMEE
the year and the financial impacts were as follows: SIEE S EENTT
Notes RMB’000
Bt aE ARETR
Net assets disposed of: FritEEEFE -
Property and equipment L EYNE 14 1,541
Properties under development EEPYE 9,840,308
Completed properties held for sales BIELEE AR ME 1,639,488
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIRE B 32 40,357
Trade receivables B Z IR 458,013
Prepaid income tax AR IE 46,882
Other current assets Himeh & E 1,974,917
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBSEEY 467,873
Trade and bills payables B RNFIEREE (995,293)
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRITREMER
other borrowings (4,026,000)
Other current liabilities HimEa & (3,903,288)
Tax payable FESITRIE (118,934)
Non-controlling interests IRV R = (1,953,354)
3,472,510
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEKB AR EEFE 8 (216,790)
Reclassification to investments in joint ventures AHE B AR ETENNREL AT
at fair value at date of disposal* HIREESE* (2,608,430)
647,290
Satisfied by: LA 7175 L 4ER.
Cash HE 647,290
* For certain disposals, the Group has retained joint venture interests in @ HETHESEMNES AEERRZHEMDN

the investee after the transactions.

RERFIRE QAR

ABDTES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)

40. HEMEB AT #)

B8z -_FF+=-RA=1t—H

LEFE#E)
An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents AR ENBATNRESLEESEEBY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: EASEEEA O
RMB’000
ARB TR
Cash and cash equivalents deconsolidated BIEAEHFNRERESEEY (467,873)
Cash consideration RERE 647,290
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BRHENRBATMNES RESE
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BYIRAEEE 179,417
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. BEMBAR @)
Year ended 31 December 2019 2-_E-NEFE+=-—A=+—H
LHEE
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of during AEELHEWBARNEEFENMEE
the year and the financial impacts were as follows: SIEE S HET ¢
Million
Thrive
International
Sure Limited
Source and its
Group  subsidiaries Total
& BREIR
BRARR
IEREE  HTEAR et

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
eE ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT

Net assets disposed of: FTHEEESE
Property and equipment LEYS 14 - 7 7
Investment properties B 15 1,083,000 638,000 1,721,000
Other current assets HihmEh & & 293,987 12,799 306,786
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 5,999 58,656 64,655
Trade and bills payables S ENFENREE (10,241) (160,356) (170,597)
Interest-bearing bank and STRBRITREMER
other borrowings (371,000) (227,000) (598,000)
Other current liabilities HipREh A& (286,538) (53,811) (340,349)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBAE 32 - (26,654) (26,654)
715,207 241,641 956,848
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEHB A RA
subsidiaries Wi (&) 6 39,890 (22,673) 17,217
Reclassification to investments in ~ RAHE BIE AR ETER
joint ventures at fair value REERARINREE
at date of disposal D (357,604) (120,820) (478,424)
397,493 98,148 495,641
Satisfied by: LA 1 75 2 IR -
Cash e 397,493 98,148 495,641
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. HEMBRR @
Year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) BZ2-_ZE—-—hEt+=-—A=+—H
LEFE#E)
An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents FEREENEBEARNE S RESEEY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MANFRA DT -
RMB'000
AREFTT
Cash and cash equivalents deconsolidated KIEAEHNR S KRS EEY (64,655)
Cash consideration BeNRE 495,641
Cash consideration receivable RUERH) IR 2 KB (46,493)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BERHERBARMNRE KEE
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ZEMRNFE 384,493
41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  41. &R AIR & mE XM=
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions () EEFHERS
During the year, the Group had deemed acquisition of a FR - AEBEREWE RS
subsidiary with total identifiable net assets fair value of NE) EBENHNFEEAAE
RMB1,137,376,000 (2019: RMB939,526,000). Further AR#1,137,376,000 L(=Z— N,
details are set out in note 38 to these financial statements. F : ARM939,526,0007T) © #—

FHBERIMEIHRKRME3S -

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FR - EFHEZHME © AEE
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB160,852,000 FTHEEENRTEAENIFERSN
(2019: RMB211,021,000) and RMB160,852,000 (2019: B Rl A AR 160,852,0005C( =
RMB211,021,000), respectively, in respect of lease Z—hE - ARBE211,021,0007T) &
arrangements for buildings. AR 160,852,000 (ZE— N4 :

AER#211,021,0007T) °
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31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 41. &G4 e R Mz @)
OF CASH FLOV\/S (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEFEFMEENEEESH
activities

Interest- Senior notes

bearing bank and
Lease and other domestic
liabilities borrowings bonds

AERT BEARE

HEAE REMER RERES

Notes RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
e ARBTRT AR®TR ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—HA—H 78,645 20,132,001 13,205,644
Changes from financing REEDHRLRES

cash flows (42,874) 1,632,515 7,142,491
New leases g 211,021 = =
Foreign exchange movement & i, 2= & £ &) = 65,062 391,883
Interest expense MBI 19,774 28,678 76,808
Interest paid classified as DEARKEEDHRERE

operating cash flows HEFIE (19,774) = =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 40 - (598,000) =

At 31 December 2019 and R-E—hFE

1 January 2020 +-—A=+—HEK
—Z-TF—H—H 246,792 21,260,256 20,816,826
Changes from financing REEHIR S RE
cash flows (55,160) 5,966,547 921,268
New leases Mg 160,852 - -
Foreign exchange movement [ i, = £ &%) - (287,276) (922,787)
Interest expense FEXH 22,346 36,085 71,957
Interest paid classified as DERKEEDRERE
operating cash flows WERFE (22,346) - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WP A R 38 - 2,726,000 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AT 40 - (4,026,000) -
At 31 December 2020 NZZE—FTF
+=A=+—H 352,484 25,675,612 20,887,264
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R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 41. A8 & ne XMzt @)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases () EEHENRESRHAEE
2020 2019
—ECEE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Within operating activities R EE 27,790 24,186
Within financing activities REVEES 55,160 42,874
82,950 67,060
42. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES . SRR

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit NEEW EBERTE EAERRSCHE

enhancements over the guarantees. The financial guarantee iEERE - UBEREFRRERES

contracts are measured at the higher of the ECL allowance and B8 B R 4] 2 W 5R 2 2R R B MR U

the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount of 2iteBOREEE BHEEEIE

income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by BEDEAGHRSERTE Bl
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected REENEEZEAMELEESEN
payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss that it incurs TR EARRIE R AN 5k B TR B B B 15 A U EY
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the EAIEFE - Y ERSEEMBERY

debtor. The amount initially recognised represents the fair value FHERBARE °

at initial recognition of the financial guarantees.

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had (@) MBEBRR AKEEMBERS
financial guarantees which are not provided for in the FIARRAG BomERABRELT
financial statements as follows:

2020 2019
ZBZEF TNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTRT ARETET

Guarantees in respect of mortgage MAEEETYEERD
facilities provided for certain RREFRENER
purchasers of the Group’s (F3E)
properties (notes) 28,666,035 20,307,223
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes:

(0)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating
to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
in the event of default on mortgage payments by these
purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any sales proceeds
as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, in the event of default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open
auction or other appropriate means. The Group is responsible
for repaying the banks when the proceeds from the auction of
the properties cannot cover the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance of
real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the
directors of the Company consider that in the event of default
on payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties and
therefore no provision has been made in the financial
statements for the guarantees.

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

G ER )

(@ &

RZZEZFEF+A=+—RH K
E@EBETRITMAEEE TYE
BERRIZBE R MR H RS
% RIR IR o BBERGK - 40
ZEBERNERDE R R IZB A
B KEEEWWTm%%%%ﬁ
HEARBREREREBRRITAR
B ZRBASERZFF8 A KR E
W\ °

RE A2 HEMEXCERT
RITIERZRBERNIER - —BE
FIERIZIBANR - RITEREER
o WEBARBEREMEED
AR ERYEER - EWEMR
B PTASFRIA R A B P A R 248
AeBRREHBIARE K - A&
BAABEERTRT -

AEEMERBEXTHBZEER
mﬁﬂtiﬁ I REMEHEMA
ﬁé &R 0 B HLEPT A R A

REFIERBEYMER —EMF
W@ﬂﬂ%°

ZEERNAABEALIFEN - AR
AAEBERRERERBRNRNIE
ST AR A 2 IRRE R A
ENMERIRIBAEERRFHE
AR ISR - Bt SR IREK
ABLZ S ERIEL R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

42. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued) 42. AT ER (@)

(@) (Continued) (a)

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and
associates’ own financial guarantees, which are not
included in the above, is as follows:

(%)

oh - REES(hEE R T R
RAARE R EER (A RHA L
X)W

2020 2019
—g-8% —T-N%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETET

Guarantees in respect of mortgage BRSNS VNG
facilities provided for certain ETMEERNIRE
purchasers of the joint ventures’ ERIR M ER
and associates’ properties 4,643,228 2,652,313
(b) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees (b) MIMEHR @ WERYEHRREH

given to banks in connection with loan facilities granted
to joint ventures and associates are not provided for in the
financial statements is as follows:

ZEBARRITRTEE AR REE
RAIERMERENVBERNA
T

2020 2019
—E-RF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Guarantees given to banks in MR TEERRIRIEEE AT
connection with loan facilities ZEREVE M4 T iRIT
granted to joint ventures 2R
and associates 6,340,780 7,935,790
In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the guarantees EERE REERNERENARLE
at initial recognition and the ECL allowance are not significant. REREEEHEREHETTERX -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥ B

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to secure certain bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group:

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

43. BEHRMH

RBEHR - AEBHATEEER
DRGSR TASENE TRITREME

ET
AN

2020 2019

—EF-FF TR

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Liks3 AR®T T AREFTT

Bank deposits RITIFIX 27 679,283 450,253
Property and equipment LI EINET 14 537,296 10,630
Investment properties wREMZ 15 9,606,200 10,260,000
Properties under development ERERAPYE 18 25,582,739 31,504,324
Completed properties held for sale ~ #H{EHED &A% 22 2,039,828 2,117,351
38,445,346 44,342,558
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R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

44. COMMITMENTS 44, HEHE

REBRHERRER A TEAAE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

2020 2019
—ECBRE  —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: BB LB KRB
Capital expenditure for properties under — 7EFR Bl KPR 2R R ¥ % &
development and construction of BRI EYHER
investment properties in Mainland China BARMRY 19,423,718 18,951,500

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and AN REBDHEERNT RBEEL AT

REMEARAFECRAAA LR )T

associates’ own capital commitments, which are not included in

the above, is as follows:

2020 2019
—E-BE —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: 22 4018 AR B -
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ BERNE MBS RNRE
and associates’ properties under R RBERERE A FE K
development and construction of FEPIREYED
investment properties in Mainland China BARMRAY 4,357,887 3,737,499
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed in

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

() MHUMBERME2AFLANRS

45. BET RS

note 25 to the financial statements, the Group had the RGEERIN  INEFER - ANEB H B
following transactions with related parties during the year: FEUTRS :
2020 2019
—EB-BF —TNF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt & ARET T ARETT
Property rental income KEERKETEH
from companies controlled AR YEE SN
by the Wong Family 0) 4,982 5,531
Property rental income KB = K R P 128 i B i
from associates controlled AR YEE SN
by the Wong Family 0) 2,260 2,823
Property management fees received 2K B & B 5 ik P15
from companies controlled REMYEERE
by the Wong Family 0) 1,130 1,070
Property management fees received 7 [ & K 5% ik P12 i Bt i
from associates controlled REMYEERE
by the Wong Family 0) 5,091 4,836
Property rental expenses paid to 5 F & X R ik AT B &
associates controlled NRAMYFER S H
by the Wong Family 0) 15,937 15,162
Aircraft leasing expense paid to T EEEFTEG B —H
a company controlled NRINREE S ER
by Mr. Wong (i) 4,139 4,102
Project management income KREEEARIRIER
received from joint ventures EIBUA (iii) 129,969 174,313
Interest income on amounts due  JEUA & A B ZKIEHY
from joint ventures FlEWA (iv) 68,352 150,358
Consultancy service income received 38 B & & A 7] R Bk &
from joint ventures and associates A B #3882 U A (v) 107,199 47,071
Subscription of shares in TR B O K IR Pzl
a company controlled NGIE) E5)
by the Wong Family (vi) - 200,000
Sales of a property to the HE—EELTERRIE
Wong Family (vii) - 38,699
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The transactions were based on terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

(ii) The leasing expense was charged at US$50,000 (2019:
US$50,000) per month.

(i) The project management income was charged with reference
to the contracted sales amount and certain costs incurred on
property development projects.

(iv)  Interest was charged at rates ranging from 6.8% to 8.8%
(2019: 7.6% to 10.0%) per annum.

(v) The consultancy service income was charged with reference to
the consultancy service agreements entered into between the
Group and related companies.

(vi)  On 25 January 2019, the Group subscribed for 25% equity
interests in Fun Work Group Holdings Limited (“Fun Work") at
a consideration of RMB200,000,000 and Fun Work and its
subsidiaries became associates of the Group.

(vii)  The property was sold at prices mutually agreed by both
parties.

(b) In the opinion of the directors, the directors of the
Company represent the key management personnel of
the Group. Further details of the compensation of key
management personnel of the Group are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

Transactions of items (a)(i), (a)(ii), (a)(vi) and (a)(vii) above also
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair value, other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
financial assets and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,
respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and senior notes and domestic bonds, reasonably approximate
to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, the current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
amounts due from/to related parties approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 47 ARERARBEER @
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments as at 31 December R-_E-—TE+_-_A=+—BE_-Z
2020 and 31 December 2019 are based on price quotation —NF+ZA=1+—"8 " FLmERK
from the respective fund manager or estimates based on ERARBEABBES SIBREASER
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation T ERCEBEY LR ATNE
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple for similar companies XEE(EKZREETHNEERIBLSA
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the investments. B)NEMTERBEHMAMN(TRRE

&,/EBITDA]) £ & o

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the UNTFE—E—_EFR_F—NF+_A
valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss =F=[E &’Afﬁfﬁaf%ﬂﬁi\m@ﬁ)\?ﬁ
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 =L R EEF GEBRE AT B
December 2020 and 2019: B A\ SR N EEBRIED T
Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Valuation technique input Value to the input
DAEHZE
fhEt% TABREARE EE AHBHNHRE

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-Z5+-A=+—H

Unlisted equity investments Valuation multiples Average EV/EBITDA 18.39 5% increase/(decrease)
at fair value through multiple of peers in multiple would have
profit or loss rate no material impact on

the fair value

FETRAAEAEELEED HERBH TR RE g,/ Cid)
ATABENRARE {818, EBITDA 5% ¥ DA B

(ET BEATE
Discount for lack of 25% 5% increase/(decrease)
marketability in discount would

have no material impact
on the fair value

RS mig R EEES: ) Vg
i ORL) 5% % 4
AVIRERIZ:: PN
P&
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY A7. AR ERARERSR @
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Valuation technique input Value to the input
AREHZE
st AABERARE EE ABBHRRE
As at 31 December 2019
RZB-NF+-A=+—H
Unlisted equity investments Valuation multiples Average EV/EBITDA 9.13 5% increase/(decrease)
at fair value through multiple of peers in multiple would have
profit or loss rate no material impact on
the fair value
FETRAAEAELEEE HERH FHREEE fEgugm,/ Chd)
AABROREARE {B18,/EBITDA 5% ¥ DA B
(34 BEAYE
Discount for lack of 25% 5% increase/(decrease)
marketability in discount would
have no material impact
on the fair value
SRRy ik WHREEM,
iR (7‘@24\) 5% 1% ¥
AIRERIE:EDN
-z
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group'’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

47.

R=ZB=-FF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

DNAEFEER
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER EATEE EATAUBERE
TG RE BWASE BABE
(B—%) (B=%) (B=4) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT
Financial assets at fair value BEAREEEEE
through profit or loss ATABENEREE - - 816,687 816,687
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ—hF+=—A=1+—H
Fair value measurement using
NAEE-RR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
PR EBERAEE BEATNAEE
TI5ME B ABUR B A\ B
(=4 (B=4) (B=4&) #@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT ARBFT AREFT
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFGEEEES)
through profit or loss AABENEREE 34,668 = 630,402 665,070
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48.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between level 1 and level 2 and no transfer into
or out of level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic
bonds, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Other than
deposits held at banks, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets. Restricted deposits were held at banks in
the PRC at the same savings rate of unrestricted deposits
throughout the year. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates.

47.

48.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax. There is no material impact on other
components of the Group’s equity.

48. BIFSEBREIE B MR (&)

R RE g (#)

TRINREMB R ] #E R REFTE
MERT  R|MEHR - FENEERA
EREHHAKERHAENNEE - B
BRI BT & B A SR [ A LA HE 2 AR AR D
MERKERTZE

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
basis points before tax

% B A= F
#hn,GRd) 8 Omd)

RMB’000
ARET T
2020 —E-EHF

RMB AREE 150 (219,010)
HK$ BT 150 (48,211)
us$ ETT 150 (23,469)
RMB AREE (150) 219,010
HK$ BT (150) 48,211
Us$ ETT (150) 23,469
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) in profit

basis points before tax

HE H Al v A

#hn, CRd)  #in CRd)

RMB’000

ARETIT

2019 —ET—NF

RMB AR 150 (181,276)
HK$ BT 150 (50,277)
Us$ ETT 150 (926)
RMB AREE (150) 181,276
HK$ BT (150) 50,277
us$ ETT (150) 926
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

Under existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of
current account items, including dividends, trade and service-
related foreign exchange transactions, can be made in foreign
currencies without prior approval from the State Administration
for Foreign Exchange Bureau by complying with certain
procedural requirements. However, approval from appropriate
PRC governmental authorities is required where RMB is to be
converted into a foreign currency and remitted out of China to
pay capital account items, such as the repayment of bank and
other borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries may also retain foreign currencies
in their current accounts to satisfy foreign currency liabilities or
to pay dividends. Since foreign currency transactions on the
capital account are still subject to limitations and require
approval from the State Administration for Foreign Exchange
Bureau, this could affect the Group's subsidiaries’ ability to
obtain required foreign currency through debt or equity
financing, including by means of loans or capital contributions
from the shareholders.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are
transacted in RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except for the Company and
certain investment holding companies within the Group
operating in Hong Kong, in which bank and other borrowings
and senior notes were denominated either in HK$ or US$. The
fluctuation of exchange rates of RMB against other foreign
currencies will not have material adverse effect on the operating
results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group'’s profit before tax.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

48. IR EIE B IENINE @)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) ShEE LB (&)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rate before tax
fE = BAnER
#whn,CGRd) O
RMB’000
AR® TR
2020 —EC-EHF
If HK$ weakens against RMB ERTAARERE 3% 19,653
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ERTTHAREHE (3%) (19,653)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rate before tax
i = iR A
g Crd) Ol
RMB’000
ARBTT
2019 —E-NF
If HK$ weakens against RMB EATARAREERE 3% 12,768
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ERTTHEAREAE (3%) (12,768)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers are required to pay
deposits in advance of the purchase of properties. In addition,
the Group does not have any significant credit risk as the credit
given to any individual or corporate entity is not significant. The
Group performs appropriate and sufficient credit verification
procedures for every credit sale transaction to minimise credit
risk. There is no significant concentration of credit risk within
the Group.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure of these
guarantees is made in note 42(a).

The credit risk of the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets, which mainly comprise cash and short term
deposits, other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are all classified
under stage 1 for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. The loss allowance provision for restricted cash, pledged
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and amounts due from related parties were not
significant as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s business, the

Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit lines

to meet its liquidity requirements. The Group’s objective is to

maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility

through the use of bank and other borrowings. In the opinion

of the directors of the Company, the Group will have adequate

sources of funding to finance its operation needs and manage

its liquidity position.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

48.

PHERREE B ERBR®

REBE <k

HRAKRENXGBEATSRMEE - &
L AREEBRESTHONRENEE
BE UWENERDHESHE - A%KHE
MERTEBNARTEEMER &
ﬁ@k BEURBEEE 2 FESTE - K

REBEERR AEESEBERHES R
BARNEZEFTEREEARDES
AR ©

RBEHR  AEEEREENIIHA
T BERITORFTENNREEZ

undiscounted payments, was as follows: 5l -
2020
—RIRE
In the
Within In the third to
one year or second fifth years, Over five
on demand year inclusive years Total
RE=Z
R—FLR ERE
HEER REZF BREEMF RRIF mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TRT ARBTRT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and other STESRTREMER
borrowings 10,600,341 5,355,396 10,597,830 1,628,890 28,182,457
Senior notes and domestic bonds BEEBERIERNES 5,649,443 7,598,026 10,702,071 - 23,949,540
Trade and bills payables EHRNFTERER 11,540,147 243,763 22,200 - 11,806,110
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A B 5008 F2 e 5+
payables and accruals ERARNERAR
(excluding lease liabilities) (REEERIN) 13,738,449 - - - 13,738,449
Lease liabilities HEERE 78,030 63,978 129,211 219,216 490,435
Due to related parties fEftEEE A 5,346,192 - - - 5,346,192
46,952,602 13,261,163 21,451,312 1,848,106 83,513,183
Financial guarantees issued: BB LB ER
Maximum amount guaranteed R ERHE 35,006,815 - - - 35,006,815
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. Bif&R e &1 B 12 KBS ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REHESRE &)
2019
=% e
In the
Within In the third to
one year or second fifth years, Over five
on demand year inclusive years Total
RE=ZF
R—FLR FRhE
FHRER REZF BREEEME RREF a5t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETE

Interest-bearing bank and other FERITREMER

borrowings 9,834,808 7,145,394 5,132,961 1,359,089 23,472,252
Senior notes and domestic bonds BAZBERIENES 4,951,727  8381,691 10,400,729 - 23,734,147
Trade and bills payables EHEMNFERER 14,702,354 241,433 15,911 - 14,959,698
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A EL 4t {5 7008 &% fE

payables and accruals ERANERAE

(excluding lease liabilities) (REEERIN) 12,373,184 = = - 12,373,184
Lease liabilities HEERE 64,786 49,148 82,607 154,954 351,495
Due to related parties (BB S 30E 7,505,159 = = - 7,505,159

49,432,018 15,817,666 15,632,208 1,514,043 82,395,935

Financial guarantees issued: BELMBEER

Maximum amount guaranteed ReERTE 28,243,013 - - - 28,243,013
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity. Net debt includes total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
domestic bonds (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and bank balances (including
restricted cash, time deposits and pledged deposits). Capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e., share capital, non-
controlling interests and reserves). The Group aims to maintain
a healthy and stable net gearing ratio.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. Bi R EIE B 2 RS &)

49.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The net gearing ratios as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019 were as follows:

BEAREE (#)

R_E_EFF+_A=+—HEZ=Z
—NE+-_A=+—HHFABLRN

T
2020 2019
= —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & AR%T R AREFTT
Interest-bearing bank and FFEESRITREME K
other borrowings 30 25,675,612 21,260,256
Senior notes and domestic bonds BRERRIENES 31 20,887,264 20,816,826
Less: Cash and bank balances W BE RBITERES 27 (23,399,742) (23,898,660)
Net debt RES 23,163,134 18,178,422
Total equity et M ER 39,152,614 30,286,187
Net gearing ratio FERELE 59% 60%
=+
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 49. ¥FEHIR SR
In January 2021, the proposed spin-off entity, SCE CM, RZT_—F—HF HEEERBRM
submitted the listing application form (Form A1) to the Stock RREMEREBRE(A1ERE) - BEZOHF
Exchange. Upon completion of the proposed spin-off and B FTSERE - TEEAR QR HEE R
listing, the Company is expected to have an interest of not less AERAD50% #Em - PREEEBRNAXR

than 50% in SCE CM and SCE CM will remain as a subsidiary of
the Company.

In February 2021, the Group issued additional senior notes at
coupon rate of 6% due 2026 with aggregate principal amount
of US$350,000,000 at a price of 100% of the principal amount.

A= NGI

RZZZ—F=Zf AEERTHR=F
— N F B H A AN € 48 %8 350,000,000 3
6% MELAER BEERASEN
100% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

In March 2021, the Company, as borrower, executed a facility
agreement with, among others, various subsidiaries of the
Group as guarantors and a syndicate of banks as lender for a
three years and six months dual tranche term loan facility in
aggregate amounts of HK$351,000,000 and US$342,500,000
to refinance existing financial indebtedness of the Group and
funding payment of any fees, costs and expenses payable by the
Company and its relevant subsidiaries in connection with the
facility agreement and other related documents.

In March 2021, the Group issued senior notes at coupon rate of
5.95% due 2024 with aggregate principal amount of
US$300,000,000 at a price of 100% of the principal amount.
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RZEBEZ—F=F " ARAI(HEARER
A) AEEMETHBRAR (EAER
N EBE(ERERA)BZIL—MHRE
Wi WERAH=FNEAARBLE
#$351,000,000% 7T K 342,500,000 3% J©
MWEKTHERRE  LARAEER
EREGKBERE  WAAATREME
78 M B 1 R sk B & 1 I EL b AR A S
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R A Y ot

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—-_HA=+—H

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 50. ANA Al Z AR 3R
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the REIPEHRKR - KRB 2B ERIRFZOT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
b=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Prepayments TERTRIE - 44,482
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARMNEE - =
Due from subsidiaries )= NGIE S 2,306,947 2,449,128
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 2,306,947 2,493,610
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TETFRIE 1,101 475
Due from subsidiaries e E=NGIE €] 20,853,329 12,957,470
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBESEEY 663,484 198,865
Total current assets MENEERAE 21,517,914 13,156,810
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H fth fE I8 KB R E A 263,014 424,174
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 88877 R HE M E X 2,152,756 948,583
Senior notes BEEE 3,909,796 -
Total current liabilities mEEEERE 6,325,566 1,372,757
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHR 15,192,348 11,784,053
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 17,499,295 14,277,663
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 8 8217 & H ffl & 3% 1,758,534 2,464,904
Senior notes BLEEE 12,977,468 16,840,134
Total non-current liabilities EREAEARE 14,736,002 19,305,038
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(BRE)F8E 2,763,293 (5,027,375)
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 365,064 361,497
Reserves (note) ft s (M%) 2,398,229 (5,388,872)
Total equity AR 2,763,293 (5,027,375)
Wong Chiu Yeung Huang Youquan
EHE B
Director Director
EE g
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R TRt

31 December 2020 —E —ZEF+—_HA=+—H

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

50. KRR B Z &R R (#)

Note: BT -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: UTAEARBERE :
Retained
Share Exchange profits/
premium fluctuation ~ Share option (Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses) Total
EXKE BRE RERF/
R R ER it e (REER) @it
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2019 —T-hF—H—H 1,726,337 (321,144) 14,321 (4,486,726) (3,067,212)
Total comprehensive loss FREEFBESE
for the year - (87,487) - (1,673,765) (1,761,252)
Share options exercised BITfFEERE 240,999 - (24,535) = 216,464
2018 final dividend T \EREERE (507,878) - - - (507,878)
2019 interim dividend —T-NERHRE 12 (362,770) - - = (362,770)
Equity-settled share option RS ERER
arrangements 35 - - 93,776 - 93,776
At 31 December 2019 and R-Z-N&+-A=+—H
1 January 2020 k=F-TF—-A—H 1,096,688 (408,631) 83,562 (6,160,491) (5,388,872)
Total comprehensive income FREAMAEE
for the year - 418,567 - 8,168,810 8,587,377
Share options exercised BiTfRiERE 107,922 - (12,321) - 95,601
2019 final dividend ZE-NERERE 12 (523,436) - - - (523,436)
2020 interim dividend “ZoTERHRE 12 (393,870) - - - (393,870)
Equity-settled share option RS EERER
arrangements 35 - - 21,429 - 21,429
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZFF+-A=1+—H 287,304 9,936 92,670 2,008,319 2,398,229
N A AT
51. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  51. #E/#EB 5 3K
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AUBHREENR_E-_—F=A=1H

by the board of directors on 30 March 2021.

BE=git/E M@ -

In case of any inconsistency between the English text and Chinese translation of the
financial statements, the English text shall prevail.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEPHERE

TREAAEERENAVRFEZEERE
E - A KABARTERIFZERER )
FRAECDTEZEBAWBRE LGRS L
TEHEE 287

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities, perpetual capital
instruments and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below:

Mz 35
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BCEf  —Z-NF ZE-N\F ZE—+tF ZZZT—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

REVENUE Wz 32,572,605 21,369,802 17,782,886 16,105,245 12,480,683
Cost of sales SHE KA (24,708,788)  (15,477,931) (11,636,290) (10,620,061) (9,354,990)
Gross profit E | 7,863,817 5,891,871 6,146,596 5,485,184 3,125,693
Other income and gains H A R 1,252,155 1,155,838 386,637 122,812 341,472
Changes in fair value of REMENRERE

investment properties, net FEE 596,565 1,404,861 1,082,540 1,262,744 548,382
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAY (758,913) (516,031) (398,421) (530,538) (407,116)
Administrative expenses GG (2,094,020)  (1,616,310)  (1,298,702) (963,431) (471,771)
Other expenses Hibpix (255,414) (92,243) - (332,561) (129,454)
Finance costs B & H (682,775) (528,142) (401,686) (392,048) (316,894)
Share of profits and losses of: FEME TSI & E S F R E1E

Joint ventures SN=/NE] 607,657 181,599 513,275 814,542 803,593

Associates NG| 33,975 (27,168) 22,217 (6,062) (120)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR FI 6,563,047 5,854,275 6,052,456 5,460,642 3,493,785
Income tax expense BIER Y (2,117,421) (1,830,809) (2,375,633) (2,012,091) (1,053,334)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERBEF 4,445,626 4,023,466 3,676,823 3,448,551 2,440,451
Attributable to: THEIBREL,

Owners of the parent ISYNCIL/Z=PN 3,803,238 3,510,045 3,385,284 2,840,035 2,072,284

Holders of perpetual capital KABRTERHEA

instruments - 35,408 58,363 51,975 49,967
Non-controlling interests FEPR R o 642,388 478,013 233,176 556,541 318,200
4,445,626 4,023,466 3,676,823 3,448,551 2,440,451
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBERE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, PERPETUAL CAPITAL BE B kKABEARTAKIE
INSTRUMENTS AND NON-CONTROLLING EIRE S
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BoBF ZFNF ZFN\F ZFLF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 170,614,421 149,382,054 101,490,775 66,175,008 50,834,872
TOTAL LIABILITIES BeE (131,461,807) (119,095,867) (79,351,368) (49,617,138)  (38,763,041)
PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS kA &ATE - = (700,000) (700,000) (900,000)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (18,154,211)  (12,707,177)  (5,957,221)  (3,399,744)  (2,764,014)

20,998,403 17,579,010 15,482,186 12,458,126 8,407,817
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